
MOUNTAIN BROOK CITY COUNCIL 
MEETING AGENDA 

CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBER 
56 CHURCH STREET 

MOUNTAIN BROOK, AL 35213 

TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 12,2013,7:00 P.M. 

Approval of the minutes of the October 28,2013 regular meeting of the City Council. 

Public hearing: Consideration of an ordinance amending the Cahaba Village Master Development Plan (to provide 
for additional surface parking). 

Consideration: Resolution declaring certain property surplus and authorize its sale at public Internet auction. 

Consideration: Resolution recommending to the ABC Board the issuance of an 040 -Retail Beer (On or Off 
Premises) and an 60 -Retail Table Wine (On or Off Premises) licenses to Delizioso, LLC (trade name Delicios) 
located at 3 150 Overton Road. 

Consideration: Resolution awarding the police department uniform bid. 

Public hearing to consider revoking the business license issued to Ms. Regina Powers (dba\Steakhouse Supply). 

Consideration: Resolution(s) authorizing the execution of the following service agreements: 
a. Alabama Symphonic Association 
b. Birmingham Botanical Society 
c. Birmingham Museum of Art 
d. Alabama Veterans' Memorial Foundation. 
e. Jefferson County Historical Commission. 
f. Exceptional Foundation. 
g. Birmingham Zoo 

Consideration: Resolution authorizing the appropriation of two thousand one hundred dollars ($2,100) to the 
Jefferson-Blount-St. Clair Mental Health Authority in consideration of its commitment to provide mental health 
programs, activities, and services to residents of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama for the fiscal year ending 
September 30,2014. 

Consideration of an Ordinance authorizing the placement of a stop sign on Montevallo Park Place at its intersection 
with Montevallo Road. 

Consideration of an ordinance annexing the property located at 106 Lockerbie Lane, Jefferson County, AL 35223- 
2902. 

Public hearing: Consideration of an ordinance amending Chapter 129 of the City Code by adding a new "Vine 
Street Transitional" zoning district and amending the Article XXXI (Village Overlay Standards) and Section 129- 
41 6 (Advisory Design Review Required in the Villages of Mountain Brook). 

Announcement: The next regular meeting of the City Council is Tuesday, November 25,2013, at 7 p.m. in the 
Council Chamber of City Hall located at 56 Church Street, Mountain Brook, AL 35213. (There will be no meeting 
of the City Council on Monday, November 1 1,20 13 in observance of Veterans' Day.) 

Other business. 

Comments from residents. 

15. Adjourn. 



Minute Book 85 

MOUNTAIN BROOK CITY COUNCIL 
PRE-MEETING DISCUSSION 

OCTOBER 28,2013 

The City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama met in public session in the Pre-council 
Room (A 106) of City Hall at 6:30 p.m. on Monday, the 28th day of October, 2013. The Council President 
called the meeting to order and the roll was called with the following results: 

Present: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
Amy G. Carter, Council President Pro Tempore 
Jack D. Carl 
William S. Pritchard I11 
Jesse S. Vogtle, Jr. 
Lawrence T. Oden, Mayor 

Also present were City Attorney Whit Colvin, City Manager Sam Gaston, and City Clerk Steven 
Boone. 

I. RECOGNITION OF GUESTS 

Council President Smith recognized Boy Scout Jim Williams of Troop 63 in attendance to satisfy the 
requirements for the Coms~unications merit badge. 

2. AGENDA 

1. Declare certain Library property surplus and authorize its sale at public Internet auction. 

2. Authorize an amendment to the Sain Associates construction, engineering, and inspection fees 
in an amount not to exceed $130,000.00 (formerly 75,302.58 as provided in Supplement No. 2, 
Resolution No. 2013-1 18 dated August 26,2013) with respect to the Mountain Brook Village 
Walkway System, Phase 6, CMAQ-98-02(921) due to contract delays that have extended the 
construction completion date. 

3. Authorize the execution of a 3-year Auxiliary Audit Agreement between the City and PRA 
Government Services, LLC (d/b/a RDS) for tax and license auditing services. 

4. Authorize the execution of an agreement between the City and The Mercer Group, Inc. with 
respect to an organizational and staffing study for The Emmet O'Neal Library Board. 

The members of the City Council stated that they want to see the following revisions 
incorporated into the proposal: 1) clarify that the interviews shall include representative of the 
Junior Women's Committee of 100 (JWCIOO), 2) all Library Board members shall be 
interviewed, 3) the chairperson of the Library Foundation Board shall be interviewed, and 4) 
the peer group of libraries to be used for comparisons shall include other Blue Ribbon libraries. 

5. Authorize the City Planner and City Attorney to draft amendments to any article of the Zoning 
Ordinance to eliminate all self-imposed requirements to publish notices in the newspaper. 

After the City Council's review of the formal [7 p.m.] agenda issues above, City Attorney Whit 
Colvin discussed a request by Crown Castle to extend its lease(s) with respect to the cellular communications 
towers located at Public Works and the Old Leeds Road fire station. The members of the City Council 
expressed their general agreement that the lease negotiations should proceed and "finalized" lease agreements 
shall be considered by the City Council once said negotiations have concluded. 

October 28,2013 



Minute Book 85 

Upon conclusion of said discussion, Council President Smith adjourned the meeting. 

Steven Boone, City Clerk 

October 28,2013 



Minute Book 85 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 

OCTOBER 28,2013 

The City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama met in public session in the City Hall 
Council Chamber at 7:00 p.m. on Monday, the 28th day of October, 2013. The Council President called the 
meeting to order and the roll was called with the following results: 

Present: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
Amy G. Carter, Council President Pro Tempore 
Jack D. Carl 
William S. Pritchard 111 
Jesse S. Vogtle, Jr. 
Lawrence T. Oden, Mayor 

Also present were City Attorney Whit Colvin, City Manager Sam Gaston, and City Clerk Steven 
Boone. 

The City Council President stated that a quorum was present and that the meeting was open for the 
transaction of business. 

1. RECOGNITION OF GUESTS 

Council President Smith recognized Boy Scout Ty Barton of Troop 320 in attendance to satisfy the 
requirements for the Citizenship in Community merit badge. 

2. AGENDA 

Council President Smith announced that the following matters will be considered at one time on the 
consent agenda provided no one in attendance objects: 

Approval of the minutes of the October 14,2013 meeting of the City Council. 

20 13- 157 Declare certain Library property surplus and authorize its sale at Exhibit 1 
public Internet auction. 

2013-158 Authorize an amendment to the Sain Associates construction, Exhibit 2, 
engineering, and inspection fees in an amount not to exceed Appendix 1 
$130,000.00 (formerly 75,302.58 as provided in Supplement 
No. 2, Resolution No. 201 3-1 18 dated August 26,2013) with 
respect to the Mountain Brook Village Walkway System, Phase 
6 ,  CMAQ-98-02(921) due to contract delays that have extended 
the construction completion date. 

Authorize the execution of a 3-year Auxiliary Audit Agreement Exhibit 3, 
between the City and PRA Government Services, LLC (d/b/a Appendix 2 
RDS) for tax and license auditing services. 

Authorize the execution of an agreement between the City and Exhibit 4, 
The Mercer Group, Inc. with respect to an organizational and Appendix 3 
staffing study for The Emmet 07Neal Library Board. 

October 28,2013 



Minute Book 85 

Authorize the City Planner and City Attorney to draft Exhibit 5 
amendments to any article of the Zoning Ordinance to eliminate 
all self-imposed requirements to publish notices in the 
newspaper. 

Thereupon, the foregoing minutes and resolutions were introduced by Council President Smith and 
their immediate adoption was moved by Council member Pritchard. The minutes and resolutions were then 
considered by the City Council. Council member Vogtle seconded the motion to adopt the foregoing minutes 
and resolutions. Then, upon the question being put and the roll called, the vote was recorded as follows: 

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
Amy G .  Carter, Council President Pro Tempore 
Jack D. Carl 
William S. Pritchard I11 
Jesse S. Vogtle, Jr. 

Nays: None 

Council President Smith thereupon declared that said minutes and resolutions (nos. 201 3-1 57 through 
161) are adopted by a vote of 5 - 4 .  

3. PUBLIC HEARING: CONSIDERATION OF AN ORDINANCE (NO. 1896) REZONING A 
PARCEL OF LAND IN THE CITY OF MONTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA FROM 
RESIDENCE-D TO RESIDENTIAL INFILL DISTRICT (RID), AND THE APPROVAL OF A 
MASTER DEVELOPMENT PLAN (RE: CALTON HILL PROPERTY LOCATED ON 
MONTCLAIR ROAD). (EXHIBIT 6, APPENDIX 4) 

Council President Smith opened the public hearing, introduced the ordinance in writing, and invited 
comments and questions from the audience. 

David Averett with MJK, LLC (developer) of 3505 Bent River Road: 
The property was acquired recently after the original developer declared bankruptcy. 
The proposal before the City Council is essentially the same as approved about 10 years ago 
[although the portion of the development actually in Mountain Brook has been determined to be 
much less than what was presented to the City by the previous owner/developer]. 
Another change from the original proposal is that the properties shall be single family detached 
residences instead of condominiums as proposed by the previous owner/developer. 
All other aspects (design, landscaping, etc.) previously approved shall be adopted by the new 
owner and incorporated into the development. 
Regarding the municipal boundary line, the original application and development plan showed a 
much larger development in the City. However, it has been determined that a portion of the 
property is accually in the City of Birmingham [since 19491, therefore that portion of the City's 
annexation was not valid and is not part of this application. 
The homes will be a minimum of 3,000 square feet of living space with a minimum valuation of 
$4 10,000. The owner anticipates that the starting price of the first units completed will be around 
$490,000 and are expected to increase as the units are completed. 

Miller Peterson of 3936 Montclair Road: 
Represents Mrs. Edward J. Peterson who owns a piece of property north of this proposed 
development which is not adjacent but contiguous to any public road or highway. The closest 
public road to Mrs. Peterson's property is 3rd Street. 
Requests that the City Council include in the master development plan to be approved tonight an 
access by way of 3rd Street to Mrs. Peterson's otherwise landlocked property. 
Sec. 18-3-1 Code of Alabama allows for a right-of-way to the most convenient road or highway. 

Council member Pritchard questioned how Mr. Peterson's request is relevant to the action under 
consideration as it appears that 3rd Street is not part of the subject property. 

October 28,2013 



Minute Book 85 

Mr. Peterson: 
Expressed his belief, which he claims is supported by a recent survey, that there is a strip of land 
in the development that would allow the requested access to his client's property. 
Mr. Peterson reiterated that he simply wants the access incorporated into the master development 
plan. 

Other issues discussed included: 1) the implications of modifying the published ordinance, and 2) 
questions as to whether the land where access would be granted is located in Mountain Brook or Birmingham. 
It was determined after said discussions that nothing will preclude Mr. Peterson from seeking said access at a 
later date and that modifying the master development plan is therefore unnecessary at this time. 

Jennifer Nunnelley of 3433 Cherokee Road: 
Wants to be sure that 3rd Street is not being vacation [which was affirmed as such vacation is not 
currently proposed.] 

There being no discussion or comments, Council member Pritchard made a motion that all rules and 
regulations which, unless suspended, would prevent the immediate consideration and adoption of said 
ordinance be suspended, and that unanimous consent for the immediate consideration of said ordinance be 
given and that the reading of the ordinance at length be waived. The motion was seconded by Council member 
Vogtle and was carried, as follows: 

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
Amy Carter, Council President Pro Tempore 
Jack D. Carl 
William S. Pritchard 111 
Jesse S. Vogtle, Jr. 

Nays: None 

The President of the Council declared the motion carried by a vote of 5 - 4 .  

After said ordinance had been considered in full by the Council, Council member Pritchard moved for 
the adoption of said ordinance. The motion was seconded by Council member Vogtle. Thereupon, Council 
President Smith called for vote with the following results: 

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
Amy Carter, Council President Pro Tempore 
William S. Pritchard 111 
Jesse S. Vogtle, Jr. 

Nays: Jack D. Carl 

The President of the Council declared that the ordinance is hereby adopted by a vote of 4-1 and, as 
evidence thereof, she signed the same. 

4. ANNOUNCEMENT REGARDING THE NEXT REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY 
COUNCIL. 

Council President Smith announced that the next regular meeting of the City Council will be Tuesday, 
November 12,2013, at 7 p.m. in the Council Chamber of City Hall located at 56 Church Street, Mountain 
Brook, AL 35213. (There will be no meeting of the City Council on Monday, November 11,2013 in 
observance of Veterans' Day.) Please visit the City's web site (www.mtnbrook.org) for more information. 

October 28,2013 



Minute Book 85 

5. ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business to come before the City Council at this time, Council President Smith 
adjourned the meeting. 

Steven Boone, City Clerk 

EXHIBIT 1 

RESOLUTION NO. 2013-157 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE SALE OR DISPOSAL 
OF CERTAIN SURPLUS PROPERTY 

WHEREAS, the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, has certain items of personal property which are 
no longer needed for public or municipal purposes; and 

WHEREAS, Section 11-43-56 of the Alabama Code of 1975 authorizes the municipal governing 
body to dispose of unneeded personal property. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, as 
follows: 

Section 1. It is hereby established and declared that the following property owned by the City of 
Mountain Brook, Alabama is not needed for public or municipal purposes and is hereby declared surplus 
property: 

Count 
2 1 
20 
6 
3 
2 
2 
2 
2 
2 
1 
1 
1 

Description 
Dell Optiplex 755 
Dell Monitor 
Dell Monitor 
Decorative table 
Dell Optiplex 760 
Dell Optiplex 780 
Toshiba laptop 
Craft table 
IBM Typewriter 
HP Laserjet Printer 
Optoma Projector 
Activity display 

Model 
755 
2007FP 
E198FPf 
d a  
760 
780 
Satellite A 105 
d a  
Wheelwriter 5 
CP2025 
d a  
d a  

Description 
computers 
20" wide flat panel monitors 
19" square flat panel monitors 
Handpainted tables 
computers 
computers 
Laptop computer 
Craft tables for children 
Electric typewriters 
color printer 
Portable projector 
Display with children's activities 

Section 2. That the City Manager, or his designated representative, is hereby authorized and directed 
to sell the above property by way of public Internet auction or to otherwise dispose of such property that does 
not sell at said auction. 

EXHIBIT 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 2013-158 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama that the City 
Council hereby accepts and approves a modification to Supplement No. 2 (re: Resolution No. 2013-1 18 
adopted August 26, 2013) with respect to the construction, engineering, and inspection service fees in an 
mount not to exceed $130,000.00 (see Exhibit A attached hereto) with respect to the Mountain Brook Village 

J:\Minutes & Agendas\CouncilDGi3\2013 1028 Minutesdoc October 28,20 13 



ORDINANCE NO. 1898 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CAHABA VILLAGE MASTER DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
TO CONSTRUCT ADDITIONAL SURFACE PARKING 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of the City of Mountain Brook, 
Alabama, as follows: 

Section 1. Development Standards. The Master Development Plan and the materials submitted by 
the applicant, as required by Section 129-234 of the Mountain Brook City Code, as approved upon 
the adoption of Ordinance 1642, and amended by Ordinances 1757 and 1792, are hereby amended to 
include the changes set forth in the Amended Master Development Plan Application, dated October 
3, 2013, which is approved herewith, made a part hereof, and specifically incorporated herein by 
reference, said Plan and materials constituting regulatory standards for use of the subject property, 
subject to further modification only as provided for in Article XIV, Chapter 129 of the Mountain 
Brook City Code. 

Section 2. Repealer. All ordinances or parts of ordinances heretofore adopted by the City Council 
of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that are inconsistent with the provisions of this ordinance 
are hereby expressly repealed. 

Section 3. Severabilitv. If any part, section or subdivision of this ordinance shall be held 
unconstitutional or invalid for any reason, such holding shall not be construed to invalidate or impair 
the remainder of this ordinance, which shall continue in full force and effect notwithstanding such 
holding. 

Section 4. Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 
publication as provided by law. 

ADOPTED: The day of ,2013. 

Council President 

APPROVED: The day of ,2013. 

Mayor 



CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby certify the above to 
be a true and correct copy of an ordinance adopted by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, 
Alabama, as its meeting held on ,2013, as same appears in the minutes of record of 
said meeting, and published by posting copies thereof on ,2013, at the following 
public places, which copies remained posted for five (5) days as required by law. 

City Hall, 56 Church Street Overton Park, 3020 Overton Road 
Gilchrist Pharmacy, 2850 Cahaba Road The Invitation Place, 3 150 Overton Road 

City Clerk 







RESOLUTION NO. 2013-162 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE SALE OR DISPOSAL 
OF CERTAIN SURPLUS PROPERTY 

WHEREAS, the City of  Mountain Brook, Alabama, has certain items of personal property which 
are no longer needed for public or municipal purposes; and 

WHEREAS, Section 11-43-56 of the Alabama Code of 1975 authorizes the municipal governing 
body to dispose of  unneeded personal property. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, 
as follows: 

Section 1. It is hereby established and declared that the following property owned by the City of 
Mountain Brook, Alabama is not needed for public or municipal purposes and is hereby declared surplus 
property: 

Count 
1 
2 

Description 
3COM 101100 16 port switch 
Adtran atlas 550 router. 
Configured for use in a fiam relay 
environment. Unit comes with 1 
T1 network module, 1 QUAD 
TlPRI  module, and 2 OCTAL 
FXO modules for connecting 
phones lines. 
3 Allied Telesyn Switches. 2 
ATFS 716 101100MB 16 port 
switches 

Cisco 1841 router 
Cymphonix DC30 Network 
Composer 
Howard brand laptop. 
1 ?screen,wifi, 100meg network 
card, 80GB hard drive. 
HP OfficeJet J5780 ALL-IN-ONE 
printerlscannerlcopierlfax 
machine. 
HP 62 10 all-in-one 
printerlfaxlcopier. 
HP 0ffic:jet Pro 8500 ALL-IN- 
ONE printerlscannerlcopierlfax 
machine. 
HP Pavilion Laptop Model 
N5420. 
9 Flat screen and 1 tubed 
monitors. 
3 HP desktop PC's 

Model 
3C16470 
1200305LI 

10072287D and 
L16Z4170C, and 
1 ATFS724L 
1011 OOMB 24 port 
switch PN: 
ATFS724 
246 1 B 
DC30 

Description 
SN: LUNZQ6H00545 16 
SN: DAMAKHOERA 

SN: A0 1936L04 1000 

SN: 5BlOSoB0063 
SN: 083427G1035 

SN: TW3TFCCLB549056F 

SN: CN77GCW 1 Q2 

SN: CN55BDElTZ 

SN: MY9 1F220WK 

SN: TW124000678. 

SN: 2UA78303,2UA7370GDS, 
2UA60307X 1 



Count Description Model Description 
13 3 Dell d~sktop PC's W46LB 1,4B7XNB 1, BZVM 1 B 1 
14 1 Dell server SN: GKTGBB 1 
15 42" Samsung plasma display. SP-R4232 SN: 39FY 

Comes with tabletop stand and 
wall mount and remote control. 

16 SonicWall brand Firewall. Pro 3060 SN: 0006B-1DEECA8 
17 Sony Vaio laptop. Unit will not PCG-72GL SN: 28241230 

power up. 

Section 2. That the City Manager, or his designated representative, is hereby authorized and 
directed to sell the above property by way of public Internet auction or to otherwise dispose of such 
property that does not sell at said auction. 

ADOPTED: This 12th day of November, 20 13. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 12th day of November, 20 13 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby certify the above to 
be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook at 
its meeting held on November 12,2013, as same appears in the minutes of record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 



RESOLUTION NO. 2013-163 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that 
the City Council hereby recommends to the State of Alabama, Alcoholic Beverage Control Board, 
the issuance of a 040 - Retail Beer (On or Off Premises) license and a 060 - Retail Table Wine 
(On or Off Premises) license to Delizioso, LLC, doing business as Delicios, located at 3 150 
Overton Road, Mountain Brook, AL 35223. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Clerk is hereby instructed to forward a 
copy of this resolution to the State of Alabama, Alcoholic Beverage Control Board. 

ADOPTED: This 12th day of November, 20 13. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 12th day of November, 20 13. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby 
certifjl the above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the 
City of Mountain Brook at its meeting held on November 13,20 13, as same appears in the minutes 
of record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Delicios ABC License 



STATE OF ALABAMA 
1 ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE CONTROL BOARD 

ALCOHOL LICENSE WPUCATION 
Confirmation Number: 20131031 101427672 

Type I i ~ e n s e :  040 - RETAIL BEER (ON OR OFF PREMISES) State: siso.aa County: $75.00 

Type License: 060 - RETAIL TABLE WINE (ON OR OFF PREMISES) State: %iso.oo County: $75.00 

Trade Name: DELICIOS Filing Fee: $1 00.00 

Applicant: DELlZlOSO LLC Transfer Fee: 

Location Address: 31 50 OVERTON RD MOUNTIAN BROOK, AL 35223 

Mailing Address: 15 OFFICE PARK CIRCLE; SUITE 140 BIRMINGHAM, AL 35223 

County: JEFFERSON Tobacco sales: NO Tobacco Vending Machines: 

Sale of Products Containing Ephedrine: NO Type Ownership: LLC 

Book, Page, or Document info: LR201318 1751 7 Do you sell Draft Beer: N 

Date Incorporated: 10/02/2013 State incorporated: AL County Incorporated: JEFFERSON 

Date of Authority: 10/02/2013 Alabama State Sales Tax ID: ROO880821 0 

Name: Title: Date and Place of Birth: Residence Address: 

Has applicant complied with financial responsibility ABC RR 20-X-5-.14? YES 
Does ABC have any actions pending against the current licensee? NO 
Has anyone, including manager or applicant, had a FederalIState permit or license suspended or revoked? NO 
Has a liquor, wine, malt or brewed license for these premises ever been denied, suspended, or revoked? NO 
Are the applicant(s) named above, the only person(s), in any manner interested in the business sought to be 
licensed? YES 
Are any of the applicants, whether individual, member of a partnership or association, or officers and 
directors of cooperation itself, in any manner monetarily interested, either directly or indirectly, in the profits 
of any other class of business regulated under authority of this act? NO 
Does applicant own or control, directly or indirectly, hold lien against any real or personal property which is 
rented, leased or used in the conduct of business by the holder of any vinous, malt or brewed beverage, or 
distilled liquors permit or license issued under authority of this act? NO 
Is applicant receiving, either directly or indirectly, any loan, credit, money, or the equivalent thereof from or 
through a subsidiary or affiliate or other licensee, or from any firm, association or corporation operating 
under or regulated by the authority of this act? NO 

CHARLES MICHAEL MATSOS 
5203023 - AL 

THOMAS GREGORY BRADDOCK 
6907205 - AL 

MACON WILSON TAYLOR 
5519123 - AL 

Contact Person: MAC TAYLOR 
Business Phone: 205-4 14-1 000 
Fax: 205-414-1 002 

PREVIOUS LICENSE INFORMATION: 
Trade Name: STEEL DRUM GRILL 
Applicant: JMP FOODS LLC 

MEMBER 

MEMBER 

MEMBER 

Home Phone: 205-222-1 879 
Cell Phone: 205-789-71 31 
E-mail: MAC.TAYLOR38@GMAIL.COM 

Previous License Number(s) 
License 1 : 01 01 19737 
License 2: 

031 31968 
BIRMINGHAM, AL 

1111 711963 
SAN DEIGO, CA 

032311 971 
DECATUR, AL 

2314 BROOK MANOR DR 
BIRMINGHAM, AL 35223 

5132 WEATHERFORD DR 
BIRMINGHAM, AL 35242 

3340 SANDHURST RD 
MOUNTAIN BROOK, AL 35223 



STATE OF ALABAMA 
F ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE CONTROL BOARD 

ALCOHOL LICENSE APPLlCAV0061 
Confirmation Number: 20131031 101427672 

If applicant is leasing the property, is a copy of the lease agreement attached? YES 
Name of Property ownerflessor and phone number: OVERTON ROAD PARTNERSHIP LLC 205-803-3000 
What is lessors primary business? REAL ESTATE 
Is lessor involved in any way with the alcoholic beverage business? NO 
Is there any further interest, or connection with, the licensee's business by the lessor? NO 

Does the premise have a fully equipped kitchen? YES 
Is the business used to habitually and principally provide food to the public? YES 
Does the establishment have restroom facilities? YES 
Is the premise equipped with services and facilities for on premises consumption of alcoholic beverages? YES 

Will the business be operated primarily as a package store? NO 
Building Dimensions Square Footage: 1 2 0 0  Display Square Footage: 
Building seating capacity: 60 Does Licensed premises include a patio area? YES 
License Structure: ONE STORY License covers: ENTIRE STRUCTURE 
Number of licenses in the vicinity: 2 Nearest: 1 
Nearest school: 2 miles Nearest church: 2 blocks Nearest residence: 1 blocks 
Location is within: CITY LIMITS Police protection: CITY 

Has any person(s) with any interest, including manager, whether as sole applicant, officer, member, or 
. . 

partner been charged (whether convicted or not) of any law violation(s)? 
Name: 
THOMAS GREGORY 
BRADDOCK 

Violation & Date: 
DUI 1999 

Arresting Agency: 
ALABAMA STATE 
TROOPER 

Disposition: 
PAID FINE 



STATE OF ALABAMA 
ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE CONTROL BOARD i 

ALCOHOL LICENSE APPLICATION 
Confirmation Number: 20131 031 101427672 

Initial each Signature page 
In reference to law violations. I attest to the truthfulness of the responses given within the application. 

In reference to the Leaselproperty ownership, I attest to the truthfulness of the responses given within , ,&T , the application. 

In reference to ACT No. 80-529, 1 understand that if my application is denied or discontinued. I will not be 

III 
refunded the filing fee required by this application. 

In reference to Special Retail or Special Events retail license. I agree to comply with all applicable laws and 

regulations concerning this class of license, and to observe the special terms and conditions as indicated 

I/I 
within the application. 

In reference to the Club Application information. I attest to the truthfulness of the responses given , within the application. 

In reference to the transfer of licensellocation, I attest to the truthfulness of the information listed on the 

attached transfer agreement. 

In accordance with Alabama Rules & Regulations 20-X-5-.01(4), any social security number disclosed 

under this regulation shall be used for the purpose of investigation or verification by the ABC Board 

and shall not be a matter of public record. 

[hr\7 The undersigned agree. if a license is issued as herein applied for, to comply at all times with and to fully 

observe all the provisions of the Alabama Alcoholic Beverage Control Act, as appears in Code of Alabama, 

Title 28, and all laws of the State of Alabama relative to the handling of alcoholic beverages. 

The undersigned, if issued a license as herein requested, further agrees to obey all rules and regulations 

promulgated by the board relative to all alcoholic beverages received in this State. The undersigned. 

if issued a license as herein requested, also agrees to allow and hereby invites duly authorized agents of 

the Alabama Alcoholic Beverage Control Board and any duly commissioned law enforcement officer of 

the State. County or Municipality in which the license premises are located to enter and search without 

a warrant the licensed premises or any building owned or occupied by him or her in connection with 

said licensed premises. The undersigned hereby understands that he or she violate any provisions of the 

aforementioned laws his or her license shall be subject to revocation and no license can be again issued 

to said licensee for a period of one year. The undersigned further understands and agrees that no changes 

in the manner of operation and no deletion or discontinuance of any services or facilities as described in this 

application will be allowed without written approval of the proper governing body and the Alabama 

Alcoholic Beverage Control Board. 

I hereby swear and amrrn that l have read the application and all statements therein and facts set forth are true 

and correct, and that the applicant is the only person interested in the business for which the license 

Applicant Name (p 

Signature of Appli 

Notary Name (print 

Notary Signature: 

Application Taken: 10 -3I-a App. Inv. Completed: Forwarded to District Office: 
Submitted to Local Government: Received from Local Government: 
Received in District Office: Reviewed by Supervisor: Forwarded to Central Office: 



RESOLUTION NO. 2013-164 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that 
the Police Department uniform bid submitted by Municipal and Commercial Uniforms and 
Equipment (MAC Uniforms), having been determined to be in conformance with the expressed 
specifications and to be the best bid received, is hereby accepted. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, 
Alabama, that the City Manager is hereby authorized and directed, for and on behalf of the City, 
to issue a purchase order to MAC Uniforms and to execute any other documents that may be 
determined to be necessary with respect to said uniform purchases. 

ADOPTED: This 12th day of November, 20 13 

Council president 

APPROVED: This 12th day of November, 2013 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby 
certify the above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the 
City of Mountain Brook at its meeting held on November 12,2013, as same appears in the 
minutes of record of said meeting. 

Steven Boone, City Clerk 

Police Department Uniform Bid 2013-164 



Mountain Brook Police Department 
Chief Ted Cook 
101 Tibbett Street 
Mountain Brook, Alabama 35213 
Phone: 205.802.3852 
Fax: 205.802-2415 

MBPD Uniform Bid 2013 

Recommendation: Municipal & Commercial Uniforms and Equipment. 

Bids were let out for the Mountain Brook Police Department uniform purchase on 
September 25,2013. Bids were opened October 22,2013. Only 2 vendors of the 8 that 
were sent bid invitations submitted bid packets. The "Bid Amount (as per 
specifications)" was dramatically different in the 2 bids: $5,218.10 McCain Uniform 
versus $4,729.70 MAC Uniform. Cursory review that day revealed possible 
mathematical errors on the MAC bid package. Our final tabulation of bid amounts 
shows: $5,218.10 McCain and $4,679.70 for MAC. 

MAC Uniform is no longer a Blauer representative. Most of our bid specs were using 
Blauer products as a baseline. MAC submitted a bid using Elbeco brand uniforms and 
other products as a substitute. We found no significant difference between the bid spec 
and bid submission of MAC, and believe that both vendors submitted bids with 
acceptable approved equivalents (section 8 bid documents). 

Therefore, we recommend accepting the lower bid amount from MAC Uniform. 



CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK 
56 Church Street 

MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 35213 
OFFICE OF PURCHASING AGENT (CITY MANAGER) 

BID COVER SHEET 

Bid Request Posted this Date: September 25, 2013 
Bids to be Opened this Date and Time: October 22,2013 10 a.m. 

To Whom It May Concern: 

Bids shall be sealed and delivered to the Office of the Purchasing Agent in the City Hall, City of 
Mountain Brook, Alabama, prior to the above specified date and time. Bids shall be publicly opened at 
the date and time specified above or as soon as practicable thereafter. 

To be considered by the City, a bid must comply with Alabama law, including, but not limited 
to, Ala. Code (1975) $841-16-50 er seq. and 31-13-1 er seq., and provide documentation of enrollment 
in the E-Verify program pursuant to Ala. Code $3 1 - 13-9. 

All bidders must use the bid form provided by the City for the project. This Bid Cover Sheet 
should be completed and submitted with the bid. Bids completed in pencil will not be accepted. Bids 
should be clearly marked "SEALED B I D  and indicate on the outside of the envelope the project for 
which the bid is submitted and the date of bid opening. 

The City reserves the right to require a bid bond, in which case specific information shall be 
provided with the request for bids. 

J 
The City reserves the right to utilize life cycle cost analysis in determining the lowest responsible 

bidder, in which case specific information shall be provided with the request foi bids. 

to accept or reject any or all bids and toiwaive formalities. 

Agent I 

Purchase of Police Uniforms & Related Equipment 

W C'n&ecYP - TELEPH~NE a 0s- s ~ q -  \ 
ADDRESS 3- 0 7 3  EMAIL &-ssfCI~\b 

CITY % Lb-fn\m STATE ZIP 3 sabs 
BID AMOUNT (AS PER SPECIFICATIONS) s 452 % 70 
Note: MUNICIPALITIES A m  EXEMPT FROM STATE SALES TAX 



MOUNTAIN BROOK POLICE 

1 Item I Qty 1 Description I Price 1 .~otal  
each 

Armorskin Vest 
dark Navy * 

1 Long sleeve street 
shirt dark navy * 

2 

Short sleeve street 
shirt dark navy * 

Blauer 8470 
ELB ~a 

5 

Long sleeve shirt 
dark navy * 

Blauer 847 1 
E L  u\/ 

5 

Short sleeve shirt 
dark navy * 

Trousers dark navy 

Featherweight rain 
jacket with gore tex / / B1auer 9691 

5 

Coat, Goretex Ike 
length 991 52  * 

Blauer 8472 

l a - L ,  ~d 

5 

5 

3bXs /8/.629 
Blauer 8450 
E L  8 4 0  

1 

fabric blackhigh 
is *** 

1 

reversing to I I I I 

s i l q s  &Js'7 < 
' d  

Blauer 8460 
m &  ~~~o 

Blauer 8560 )I[L E e  

Feather weight rain 
coat gore tex 
breathable fabric 

&aci' 3'/$75 
4 b@ 

I - 
Blauer 99 152 

GevLec 

c",QAS~P 

\ 95" / $?gi9L 

1 1 5 ~  /7(j!ud 
1 

fluorescent yellow 
*** 

ANSI Certified vest I 1 I Blauer 339P 1 I 

Blauer 9690 

~ x - b ~ ~  
Feather weight 
shell pants with 
gore tex fabric 
color black 

I 

1 

color fluorescent 
yellow 

~ o d y  armor 

Blauer 9 134 

1 

T I  

C-e- b~ 
Level 3A wI2 carriers 

2495 dF%' 
K D ~ "  S O ~ , O ~  



MOUNTAIN BROOK POLICE 

?<# 

q & r  
$9 f 70 

d q p )  
A',2d5/ 
22 Fa 
/8,93 - 

7- 

Qd 5-0 
C 

/ d&aa , ,  
0 7 ~ ~ ~ ~ -  
072 00 
J$OO 

dgL<i?2 

d&s" 

Armorskin 
suspension system 

V-Neck sweater 
with fleece liner 
dark navy * 
Mock turtle neck 
dark navy 

Mock turtle neck 
dickey dark navy 

Handcuffs 

ASP Baton 

ASP Baton end cap 

rain hat cover 

Flashlight wand 

Flashlight 

Holder handcuff 

Holder report form 

Holder ticket book 

Holder flashlight 

Holder baton 

Holder OC 

Style # 174 

F& 
Blauer 225 

t5S-L- 
Blauer 8 1 1 OX 
P L . b  

Blauer 8 1 19X 

Peerless chain 

26" Model 5261 1 black 

Model 52921 black 

clear plastic 

Streamlight 759 13 

Streamlight 75 8 13 

Safari land model 90 blk 

Saunders model CM 85 12 

Saunders AH57 106 

5.11Tactical53001&& 

-do Safariland ~ o d e l  g-5;- 
F26-2 black 

Safari land Model 3 8 blk 

1 

1 

3 

3 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

a 3w 

ei 10"" 

aq 9" 

4" 
a s  
mqD 

I p ip -  

e$Pf 
\al-/"O- 
a L,= 

cU a 7 
aqcD 

62~1~- 

Holder Magazine 

Holster Duty 

Belt keepers 

Belt outer duly 

Belt inner duty 

Safari land Model 77 blk 

Safari land Model 6280 blk 

Safari land Model 65-2 
black with hidden snap 

Safari land Model 94-2 blk 
w/ velcro closure 

Safari land 99-2 black with 
velcro closure 

1 

1 

4 

1 

1 

dWs' 
\ \ q% 

fl 

3 ~t~ 

// yc ?<# 

3, 20 

b5?/  
a 5 4  



MOUNTAIN BROOK POLICE 

1 0 5  
I9qs  
3- 
v 

37%- 

\ tPS 
9" 

;sc $ qq 

1 o+"lS 

~9~ 
aqsa 

/&.c5/ 
/7'5?5 . 

7 

7 4 00 

37'95- 

12, $73 / 

Ad4 tis' 
.. 

/& 

Safariland33-32Vblack 

Hatch Model NS430 blk 

Navy, clip or tied tie 

Midway uniform Cap 
Navy Air force style with 
gold or silver band 

Blackinton Model A41 80 
Officer silver, Cpl and 
above gold 

Throlo Model WSXL 13 
black or over calf 

Bates Model 942 Corfim 

Rocky Model 5005 plain 
toe leather 

Rocky Model 2 1 73 plain 
toe leather 8" or 6" 

Danner Model 2 12 10 
leatherplaintoe8"or6" 

Under armor model 5039 

- 
Glove belt pouch 

Gloves 

Tie 

Hat, uniform 

Name tag 

Socks 

Shoes *** 
Shoes *** 

b 

Boots *** 

Boots *** 

T-shirt SS 

%!fj' 

d&T& 

1 

1 

2 

1 

1 

3 

1 

1 

1 

1 

3 

, 

.. '., . .. 
T :. 

blk 

Blauer model 8 120 black 

Northwestern SNlOOO 

Premier PBG-08 1 

Slimline Model 1 

Strong leather Model 
8 1 120 black in color 

T-shirt SS 

Template 

Duty bag 

Badge Wallet 

Badge belt backer 

Includes 
embroidered 
badges, name tags, 
patches, and 
chevrons where 
applicable * 

1 qqJ- 
?qcjr 
low 

I 34S- 

3 

1 

1 

1 

- 1 

I/ 

1445 
34, (25-, 
/be 2'5 

fi. 6 

, 

A 



MOUNTAIN BROOK POLICE 

Officers can chose 
one of these items 
*** 

Grand Total. This amount 
should include each 
itemlitems that were bid. 

I I I I' 



CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK 

RECE& 8 &w SEP 7 56 Church Street 
MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 35213 

BID COVER SHEET 

Bid Request Posted this Date: September 25,2013 
Bids to be Opened this Date and Time: October 22, 2013 10 a.m. 

To Whom It May Concern: 

Bids shall be sealed and delivered to the Office of the Purchasing Agent in the City Hall, City of 
Mountain Brook, Alabama, prior to the above specified date and time. Bids shall be publicly opened at 
the date and time specified above or as soon as practicable thereafter. 

To be considered by the City, a bid must comply with Alabama law, including, but not limited 
to, Ala. Code (1 975) $941 -1 6-50 et seq. and 3 1-1 3-1 et seq., and provide documentation of enrollment 
in the E-Verify program pursuant to Ala. Code 93 1 - 13-9. 

All bidders must use the bid form provided by the City for the project. This Bid Cover Sheet 
should be completed and submitted with the bid. Bids completed in pencil will not be accepted. Bids 
should be clearly marked "SEALED BlD" and indicate on the outside of the envelope the project for 
which the bid is submitted and the date of bid opening. 

The City reserves the right to require a bid bond, in which case specific information shall be 
provided with the request for bids. 

The City reserves the right to utilize life cycle cost analysis in determining the lowest responsible 
bidder, in which case specific information shall be provided with the request for bids. 

to accept or reject any or all bids and to waive formalities. 

Agent 

Purchase of Police Uniforms & Related Equipment 
BIDDER /Y)C &Y~,IA Udi %fi= 

ADDRESS 3ai, x&~+~ua &&Az, &zf EMAIL br~c ,A. w~LL,, ,  i , ~ i & / ~ ~  PML . c  
I ~ ~ L L ~ @ M ~ ~ ~ ~ I A ~ , J ~ ~ ; ) C ~ ~ . ~ ;  id,- 

CITY & zhl A(;&* STATE ,&(- ZIP 33&4 7 
BID AMOUNT (AS PER SPECIFICATIONS) 

Note: MUNICIPALITIES ARE EXEMPT FROM STATE SALES TAX 



MOUNTAIN BROOK POLICE 

Price 
each 

Item Total Qty 

I Armorskin vest 

Description 

2 1 Blauer 8470 R'wlk' 

Blauer 847 1 B1"&* 5gec 

dark Navy * 
Long sleeve street 
shirt dark navy * 
Short sleeve street 
shirt dark navy * 

Blauer 8472 6,a8)l .N+ 5- 

5 

5 

Long sleeve shirt 
dark navy * 1 Blauer 8450 ~ I ! ) . ) I N ( T  

length 99 1 52  * 
I 

Short sleeve shirt 
dark navy * 
Trousers dark navy 

Coat, Goretex Ike 

Featherweight rain 
jacket with gore tex 
fabric black/high 
vis *** 

Blauer 969 1 8i ~ .> I , v&  5 % ~  

5 

5 

1 

Feather weight rain 
coat gore tex 
breathable fabric 
reversing to 
fluorescent yellow 
*** 

Blauer 8460 Bj b.3wi'- s% 

Blauer 8560 A193+~6- 5 P U  

Blauer 99 152 B d o a e ~ ~  bet 

1 I Blauer 9690 ~?JJ\,#* 5 0 6  

Feather weight 
shell pants with 
gore tex fabric 
color black 

1 

ANSI Certified vest 
color fluorescent 
yellow 

Blauer 9134 d i b 9 b 6  5 , e .  

Blauer 339P & J  "u4f- g*c 



MOUNTAIN BROOK POLICE 

Armorskin 1 Style # 174 G loa*SR c 

suspension system 33.35  3 3  8s- 
V-Neck sweater 1 Blauer 225 81D9t04- 5 1 w  
with fleece liner 
dark navy * 64' 35' 85 5' 
Mock turtle neck 3 Blauer 8 1 1 OX A r 91>t1& CQtc 8/ 5'5' 
dark navy J 7 / 5  M%=+ 
Mock turtle neck 3 Blauer 8 1 19X &li~3ld"l- > *C 

dickey dark navy I /  db 33 6, 3 

Handcuffs 1 Peerless chain A,ILJ~*G 53% 

B l~3 j /u2  5% 
29 1-5 3 $- 6- 

ASP Baton 1 26" Model 5261 1 black /< 
:!>3as(, Suti 

95 15' 
ASP Baton end cap 1 ~od t l 52921  black /.5 cw /5- 03 

rain hat cover 1 clear plastic 8 19 3 ->&L 325- 3 ~5'  
Flashlight wand 1 Streamlight 75913 S;OK 

8/30' W- 

Lj 5 0  
81 OD,&- 

?=' 
Flashlight 1 Streamlight 758 13 jyq* l r  4 

8, i) i I,*& 

25/ 
Holder handcuff 1 safari land model 98 blk 36 $5- 

r,W~i- 5% 
Holder report form 1 Saunders m%del CM 85 12 3 7 3 ~ ,  2 7  bS) 

1 a9 23-. gw3c-p -IYG f c r & a ~  &/LS-?L;S~ 
holder tic oo 1 8  aunders AH47 106 
I MIA& fiM;qr<t L A / 3 3  5 f Y c G + 3 d G l / - &  0,s' 

I4 3- / d  3c 
holder &ashlight 1 5.1 1 Tactical 5300 1 -,+- 23- 90 32 4D 



MOUNTAIN BROOK POLICE 

* 

/-Y)Cc&,2) l! i:,61.06 
&? ,b 6i L/ 5-4L 

Glove belt pouch 

Gloves 

Tie 

Hat, uniform 

Name tag 

Socks 

Shoes *** 
Shoes *** 

Boots *** 

Boots *** 
&4~,-,,* F k L u G l L L k  

'CIYL~E #7CC 

T-shirt SS 

T-shirt SS 

Template 

Duty bag 
W L ~  !3+ 11 I 4  

fit&& %%t 

Badge belt backer 

Includes 
embroidered 
badges, name tags, 
patches, and 
chevrons where 
applicable * 

1 

1 

2 

1 

1 

3 

1 

1 

1 

1 

3 

3 

1 

1 

1 

B1DDiJ.k- 5- 
Safari land 33-32V black 

Hatch Model%8&?6 iz 
~IAL??L BREL'+ e. 

qavy, clip or tied t.~k$$,~ 44- 
/3'/4'f b Win bPrt 

&y unffonn Cap 
Na Air force style with 

30180r s&!:eand 

Blackinton M t h % % % h F  
Officer silver, Cpl and 

jS (53- 

j3 +/5' . 

l C  R 
/5, rs- 
4 3c 

41 70 

145 *75- 

15- ~5. 
ti LC; 

L//  

b,d5' 

/3 45- 
1 

14 3~ 

32 ' 25  

f74 F5/ 

/ I &  75- 

sl/* 

74 C L  

CGJ 5.5- 

52m 
/3' qa 
3s +a 

4 /q  30 

:.i-Jr 24f &+ec 
Strong leager aodel 
8 1 120 black in color 

above gold,& D,,, dE 
,OD IN&- g Q F C  

Throlo Mod3 WSXL 13 
black or over calf 

3 & d  
Bates Mode9942 CO= 

c. 
Rocky Mo%ei?6%5 3&1 
toe leather 

3 f'cc 
Rocky ~ o d 8  8% p l ~  
toe leather 8" or 6" 

Danner Model 2 12 1 0 
leather plain toe 8" or 6" 

B / Da, ,~ t$  O" 
Under armor mo el 5039 

blk-+F/, L* 

Blauer modef 8 120 black 
8195, 

Noahwestern ~#fdo"'~ 
&. j , ~ 1 , 4 -  sat-C 

Premier PBG-08 1 
/oc*D+ 

lrnline Model 1 

/ o  75" 
1j5~ 

/lo #75 

84 30 

174 (,LC 

5-s' 
d I + & L - ~ - - - -  1 7 6 

15 4 b  

38- 40 



MOUNTAIN BROOK POLICE 

Officers can chose 
one of these items 
*** 

Grand Total. This amount 
should include each 
itern/items that were bid. 



RESOLUTION NO. 2013-165 

WHEREAS, Regina Powers (dba\Steakhouse Supply) has willfully violated the City's business 
license ordinance and the expressed conditions upon which her frozen food delivery service Mountain 
Brook business license (No. 201303909) was issued; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 26-223 of the Mountain Brook City Code, the City Council 
issued proper notice of and conducted a hearing this 12th day of November, 20 13, to consider the 
revocation of said business license; and 

WHEREAS, after due consideration of the facts and information regarding the business license 
code violations, it is the finding of the Mountain Brook City Council that it is in the best interest of the 
public that said business license be revoked; now, therefore, 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama that the City 
Clerk hereby authorizes and directs the City Clerk, for and on behalf of the City, to revoke the 
aforementioned business license effective immediately. 

ADOPTED: This 12th day of November, 20 13. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 12th day of November, 201 3. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby certify 
the above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of Mountain 
Brook at its meeting held on November 13,2013, as same appears in the minutes of record of said 
meeting. 

City Clerk 

Steakhouse Supply License Revocation 



Sec. 26-m. - Procedure for revocation or suspension of license. 

(a) Any lawful license issued to any person to conduct any business shall be subject to 

revocation by the municipal governing body for the violation by the licensee, his agent, 

servant, or employee of any provision of this article or of any ordinance of the 

municipality, or any state statute relating to the business for which such license is issued; 

and shall also be subject to revocation by the municipal governing body if the licensee, 

his agent, servant, or employee under color of such license violates or aids or abets in 

violating or knowingly permits or suffers to be violated any penal ordinance of the 

municipality or any criminal law of the state; and shall also be subject to revocation by the 

municipal governing body if, in connection with the issuance or renewal of any license, 

the licensee or his agent filed or caused to be filed any application, affidavit, statement, 

certificate, book, or any other data containing any false, deceptive or other misleading 

information or omission of material fact. 

(b) The conditions hereinabove set forth as grounds for the revocation of a license shall also 

constitute grounds for refusing to renew a license. 

(c) The municipal governing body shall set a time for hearing on the matter of revoking or 

refusing to renew a license; and a notice of such hearing shall be given to the licensee, or 

the applicant for renewal, as the case may be, at least ten days before the day set for 

said hearing. At the hearing the municipal governing body shall hear all evidence offered 

by any party and all evidence that may be presented bearing upon the question of 

revocation or the refusal of renewal, as the case may be. 

(Old. NO. 1 738, § 19, 8-13-2007) 



From: Lance Ziska <ziskal@mtnbrook.org> 
Date: Mon, Nov 4, 201 3 at 2.1 5 PM 
Subject: Re: Steakhouse Supply Business License 
To: Jay Williams <williamsi@mtnbrook.org> 

Lt. Williams, 

On October 15, 201 3 at 2:24 prn I received a call to the area of 3533 
Victoria Road on man going door to door selling steaks (case # 
201300023688). 1 did not make contact and clear up. While I was 
driving the area I found the truck in a driveway of 2639 Brookwood 
Road at 2:43 pm. I got out on it (case #201300023690) and found one 
subject at the door of the residence and another sitting in the truck. 
The truck was an older Ford F-150 silver in color and it had a 
Louisiana temporary tag. The truck had a sign for the Steakhouse and 
an industrial cooler holding the steaks in the bed of the truck. When 
I made contact with the two white males, they were both aware that 
they where not allow to go door to door in the City of Mountain Brook. 
They gave an excuse of they thought they where in Birmingham. The two 
subjects came back negative. They were warned again and advised to get 
a map that showed the city limits. The two subjects then left the area 
and 3-1 1 was advised of the situation. 
I did not run the tag of truck and I do not have any information of 
the two males. I am not sure if dispatch would be able to pull their 
information. 
Officer Lance Ziska 

From: Matt Sulenski ~sulenskim@mtnbrook.org~ 
Date: Fri, Oct 18, 2013 at 6:08 PM 
Subject: Meat truck 
To: Drew Evans <evansdr@rntnbrook.org> 

Sgt. Evans 
I just finished deaiing with Steakhouse Supply. These are the 

meat sellers that Hodgens has been dealing with and the company who's 
employee was involved in the theft of property. Officer Hodgens 
informed me prior to my arriving at the call that the business licence 
they have acquired states that they are only allowed to sell to 
customers that have called them and asked them to deliver meat. When I 
arrived I observed the two individuals from Steakhouse Supply talking 
to an older couple. When I approached them the manager Regina Powers 
told me that the older couple solicited them while they were making a 
delivery. I questioned the couple away from the meat people and the 
older couple told me that they were walking down the street when the 
male employee started trying to sell them meat. Ms. Powers told me 
that she was not aware that the older couple was solicited by her 
employee. I told them that it was time for them to go and that they 
needed to follow their business license parameters. After they left 
another resident came outside and asked if Steakhouse Supply was 
allowed to sell in Mountain Brook. I informed her of what the business 
license said and she told me that the male employee had knocked on her 
door and tried to sell her meat before I arrived. She told me that she 
did not call them or ask them to come to her house. Based on the 
information I have received I believe that we should revoke the 
business license and make sure they do not come back. It seem like it 
will only be a matter of time before we arrest them or they do 
something else. 

Matt Sulenski 



From: Matt Sulenski csulenskim@mtnbrook.orq~ 
Date: Fri, Oct 18,201 3 at 6:08 PM 
Subject: Meat truck 
To: Drew Evans <evansdr@mtnbrook.orq> 

Sgt. Evans 
I just finished dealing with Steakhouse Supply. These are the 

meat sellers that Hodgens has been dealing with and the company who's 
employee was involved in the theft of property. Officer Hodgens 
informed me prior to my arriving at the call that the business licence 
they have acquired states that they are only allowed to sell to 
customers that have called them and asked them to deliver meat. When I 
arrived I observed the two individuals from Steakhouse Supply talking 
to an older couple. When I approached them the manager Regina Powers 
told me that the older couple solicited them while they were making a 
delivery. I questioned the couple away from the meat people and the 
older couple told me that they were walking down the street when the 
male employee started trying to sell them meat. Ms. Powers told me 
that she was not aware that the older couple was solicited by her 
employee. I told them that it was time for them to go and that they 
needed to follow their business license parameters. After they left 
another resident came outside and asked if Steakhouse Supply was 
allowed to sell in Mountain Brook. I informed her of what the business 
license said and she told me that the male employee had knocked on her 
door and tried to sell her meat before I arrived. She told me that she 
did not call them or ask them to come to her house. Based on the 
information I have received I believe that we should revoke the 
business license and make sure they do not come back. It seem like it 
will only be a matter of time before we arrest them or they do 
something else. 

Matt Sulenski 

From: John Hodgens chodqensi@mtnbrook.orq> 
Date: Tue, Oct 22,201 3 at 9:52 PM 
Subject: Door-to-Door meat sales by Steakhouse Supply 
To: Jay Williams <williamsi@mtnbrook.orq> 
Cc: Al Eason <easona@mtnbrook.org>, Drew Evans <evansdr@mtnbrook.orq> 

Lt. Williams, 

Here is the information you requested in regards to Steakhouse Supply. 
My first contact with the employees and the company was 1015/2013. 

On that date I was dispatched to the Dunbarton Drive area on a 
suspicious vehiclelpersons call. I arrived in the area and made 
contact with Stephen Deshazo and Leland Frink. I asked them if they 
had a business license to solicit door-to-door and they said that they 
did not. I told them both that the would be arrested next time, if 
they were conducting business without a license. It was later 
determined that one or both off them stole a package off of an 
citizens porch. They also hid some prescription medication in another 
citizens garage when they saw me. The next week Officer Nichols 
stopped the same vehicle for speeding through Mountain Brook and 
Stephen Deshazo admitted that they were selling again in Mountain 
Brook without a license. This time his manager was with him but I do 
not remember her name. After being stopped by Officer Nichols they 
went and got a business permit for delivery only. A few days later, 
Officer Sulenski was dispatched to the Crestline area on the same 
vehicle. They told him that they had a business license to sell in 
Mountain Brook and that they were called to come out. Officer 
Sulenski talked to the citizen at the address were they were parked 
and the citizen told him that he did not call them to deliver meat to 
his address. Officer Sulenski talked to 2 other citizen in the area 
that said they were also asked to buy meat. If there is anything else 
you need let me know. 

Thanks,- 
John Hodgens Mountain Brook Police Department 



CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK 

P. 0. Box 130009 
Mountain Brook, Alabama 35213 
Telephone: 205.802.2400 
www.mtnbrook.org 

November 5,201 3 

Ms. Regina Powers 
Steakhouse Supply 
2007 Old Montgomery Hwy 
Birmingham, AL 35244 

RE: Mountain Brook Business License Revocation 

Dear Ms. Regina Powers, 

You are hereby notified that on November 12,2013 at 7:00 p.m., the City Council will 
conduct a hearing to consider revoking business license number 201303909 issued to 
Regina Powers (dba\Steakhouse Supply) for the willful violation and disregard of the 
City's business license ordinances 173 8, 178 1, 1809, and 18 10 and failure to meet the 
expressed conditions upon which said license was issued. 

You were issued a business license for a frozen food delivery business and were told at the 
time of issuance that you could not solicit business without a separate door-to-door 
solicitor's license. Our police department has received multiple complaints from residents 
that you or representatives of your company have been going door-to-door soliciting 
business after being informed that those actions were not allowed under the license that 
you were issued. 

Section 23-223 of the Mountain Brook City Code provides that failure to comply with the 
provisions of these or other applicable municipal ordinances, State laws, or promulgated 
rules and regulations of the City shall be considered sufficient cause for the City to refuse 
or withhold the granting of any license or to revoke the same. 

If you wish to present information to the City Council for its consideration at the November 
12,2013 license revocation hearing, please do so on or before noon Friday, November 8, 
20 13. The hearing will be held on November 12,20 13 at 7 p.m. in the Council Chamber of 
Mountain Brook City Hall located at 56 Church Street, Mountain Brook, Alabama 35213. 
If you have any questions regarding this matter please contact Jack Bankston at 802-3808. 

Sincerely, 

Jack L. Bankston 
Revenue Examiner 



A@ June 7, 2013 

A L A B A,M A Mr. Sam S. Gaston 
City Manager 
City of Mountain Brook 
56 Church Street 

w " Mountain Brook, AL 35213 O R C H E S T R A  

Dear Sam: 

B .  Thanks to the support that the City of Mountain Brook provides to the Alabama 
~ : h n i r r r r s n  i n  h l r n l o r i s i n  : \ e t r r n ~ l n r  Symphony Orchestra, thousands of residents have reaped the benefits of having a full- 

D E L L  s. BROOKE time, professional orchestra in our community. Over the past ten years, the AS0 has 
C h a i r n r  nil significantly increased the number of programs delivered to City of Mountain Brook 

H .  C O R B I N  DAY 
residents and yields an annual positive economic impact of $18 million in Alabama. 

\'ic.e ( :ho i rn r  o n  
In the 2012113 season, the AS0 performed more than 100 concerts and reached 

G L O R I A  N MOODY 100,000 people through concert series, youth concerts, free community performances 
\'ic.e8 ~ h t r i r r l r  art and educational music programs. This included an audience base of 14,000 Mountain 

C H A R L E S  D. PERRY. J R .  Brook residents, a free school performance at a Mountain Brook public school, and 
V i c r  C I i d i r n r  cirl access to innovative educational resources for all Mountain Brook teachers. The AS0 

also brought our community widespread national attention winning an ASAP Award for 
W. Adventurous Programming and being invited to play Carnegie Hall in May 2012. 

President 

G.  R U F F N E R  P A G E .  J R .  Enclosed, please find our proposal requesting funding for Fiscal Year 2013114 in the 
v i c e  ~ r e s i d r n t  amount of $10,000 to support our $6.8 million operating budget. A report detailing the 

J A M E S  S. S N O W  
services the Alabama Symphony Orchestra has provided the citizens of Mountain 

TI.~*LIS src8 r' Brook over the past year is included as well. 

K.  WOOD HERREN Support from local government entities like the City of Mountain Brook is vital to our 
S r c r r  t d r y  education and outreach efforts since it provides the required match for our Alabama 

C U R T I S  S .  LONG State Council on the Arts funding, so every dollar you allocate makes twice !he impact. 
E x e c t r t i ~ ~ e  L > i r e c t o r  Again, we are grateful for our partnership with the City of Mountain Brook and your 

support allows the AS0 to reach thousands of Mountain Brook students and residents 
each year. If you have any questions regarding the AS0 request for funding, please 
feel free to call me at 314-6955. 

J U S T I N  BROWN 
M r r s i c  D i r e c t o r  L n n r e a t e  

MAILING A D D R E S S :  
3Gz1 Sixth Avenue South 

Sincerely, 

anager 

Birmingham. AL 35222 

TELEPHONEIFAX:  
Administration: 205-251-6929 

Box Office: 205-975-2787 
Fax: 20~-251-6840 



A@O 
201212013 Season Final R e ~ o r t  - Citv of Mountain Brook 

2012-2013 season Summary of Sewices to residents of the Citv of Mountain Brook 

The Alabama Symphony Orchestra (ASO) performed an Explorer concert at Brookwood Forest 
Elementary School on September 28,2012 for more than 200 students and their teachers. 
The AS0 performed two Explorer Concerts at the NE Miles Jewish Day School on February 28, 
2013 for more than 375 children, teachers, parents and seniors. 
The AS0 performed a concert at Mountain Brook Junior High on May 3,2013 for more than 500 
students and their teachers. 

- 

One student from the Mountain Brook Schools system is currently participating as a musician with 
the Alabama Symphony Youth Orchestra (ASYO). 
Students of the Mountain Brook Schools system were invited to attend any and all of the dress 
rehearsals during the A S 0  season. 
All Mountain Brook Schools were invited to attend the Young People's Concert series and given 
access to innovative lesson plans and teachers guides, which link concepts from the ASO's Music 
Education programs to all subject areas in the State of Alabama Curriculum Standards. 
The annual Symphony 30 concert was scheduled to be held at the Birmingham Botanical Gardens 
on September 30,2012, but was unfortunately cancelled due to weather. 

The Citv of Mountain Brook is a vital ~artner in the success of the A S 0  
The AS0 performed for more than 100,000 people in the 20 12/20 13 season. Nearly 2 1 % of AS0 
tickets are purchased by Mountain Brook households and 18% of AS0 individual donors reside within 
the City of Mountain Brook. Also, in the 201212013 season the AS0 gave more than 100 
performances, many free and open to the public. Several free educational workshops at schools, 
libraries and community centers were offered. Through the ASO's partnership with the City of 
Mountain Brook, we are able to bring classical performances, educational services, outreach to our 
community for your citizens to enjoy. 

Music Director Search continues 
With the transition of Justin Brown to Music Director Laureate, the search for the next leader of our 
great organization enters its second season. In the 201 2-20 13 season, the AS0 saw esteemed 
conduc6rs from all over the world visit to lead our musicians. The guest conductors spent time with 
AS0 musicians in preparation for performances as well as meeting with members of the Music 
Director Search Committee. Several guest artists have agreed to return for the 2013-2014 season. 

The A S 0  is a vital employer of artists in our community 
The AS0 employs 74 full-time employees, 8 part-time employees and more than 250 guest artists each 
season. These employees include 53 full-time, professional musicians who benefit the community not 
only by performing with the ASO, but also serving as adjunct faculty at all five major Birmingham 
universities and giving music lessons to area children. 

Leadership and Community Sup~ort  - 
The AS0 has received overwhelming support as a worthy cause among the city's top business and 
civic leaders. The AS0 has an energetic and engaged Board of Directors comprised of 60 prominent 
area citizens and 400+ v~lunteers through the Symphony Volunteer Council and Symphony 30. Of our 
$6.8 million budget this past season, 61% has come from contributed income from individuals, local 
corporations and foundations - all believing the AS0 a vital part of community and a high caliber 
cultural organization, worthy of investing in during these challenging times. 



w 2013 - 2014 Allocation Request from the City of Mountain Brook 

Requested Amount: $1 0,000 

2013-2014 City of Mountain Brook Services 

The AS0 will provide one concert at a venue or school for a community or education concert of the city's choosing. 
o Options include a Holiday Concert, Pops Concert, Young People's Concert etc. 
o The AS0 production team with work with the City of Mountain Brook to determine the best venue, time and 

date for each of the specified options. 
The AS0 will provide up to 300 tickets for Mountain Brook students to attend an AS0 Coffee Concert, Young People's 
Concert or Explorer concert during the 2013-2014 school year. 
The AS0 will provide Mountain Brook school teachers with access to innovative music education lesson plans 
associated with our Young People's Concerts. 
The AS0 will work with the Mountain Brook school system to provide music education lectures and demonstrations for 

teachers and students. 
The AS0 will provide opportunities for young musicians from Mountain Brook schools to participate in pre-concert 
performances and special masterclass offerings, and audition for the Alabama Symphony Youth Orchestra (ASYO). 

Package #2 - $18,000 

The AS0 will perform one outdoor concert in the City of Mountain Brook during the 2013-2014 FY - see attached 
budget for more information on pricing. 

o The AS0 will work closely with the Arts Council to determine program elements appropriate for the 
City of Homewood. 

o The AS0 Development staff will work closely with the City of Mountain Brook to develop appropriate 
funding structures for the chosen program. 

The AS0 will provide up to 300 tickets for Homewood students to attend an AS0 Coffee Concert, Young People's 
Concert or Explorer concert during the 2013-2014 school year. 
The AS0 will provide Homewood school teachers with access to innovative music education lesson plans associated 
with our Young People's Concerts. 
The AS0 will work with the Homewood school system to provide music education lectures and demonstrations for 
teachers and students. 
Provide opportunities for young musicians from Homewood schools to participate in pre-concert performances and 
special masterclass offerings, and audition for the Alabama Symphony Youth Orchestra (ASYO). 

Educational Offerings 
Early exposure to the arts plays a major role in a child's overall development. The mission of the AS0 is to change 
lives through music. Essential to this mission is touching the lives of young people in our community through our 
innovative and engaging education programs. In the 2013114 season, the AS0 will continue offering educational 
services to Mountain Brook schools. 

The AS0 Explorer Concerts series for students in Preschool through Second grade are held in multiple 
venues. The venues (churches, community centers) are smaller than a standard concert hall and give students a 
chance to truly see the orchestra "up close." The concerts are shorter in length (35-45 minutes) and contain shorter 
musical selections (no more than 3 minutes in duration) to accommodate the attention span of students this age. 
Themes, narration, interaction and educational content are carefully focused on the needs of this younger age group. 
The AS0 will investigate potential partnerships with other arts organizations for these concerts. The purpose of this 



2013 - 2014 Allocation Request from the City of Mountain Brook 
series is to introduce young children to the orchestra and reinforce basic learning skills through engaging, interactive 
performances. This year concerts were held at NE Miles Jewish Day School. 

The AS0 will continue its Young People's Concert (YPC) series and direct content specifically towards 
students in Grades 5-8. By maintaining a working relationship with 
Mountain Brook schools systems, particularly music teachers, the AS0 
education department designs programs which fulfill Alabama State . - 
Curriculum Siandards in a& and academic subjects, while maintaining 
a level of artistic excellence in performance. Concerts include 
comprehensive preparatory materials for teachers. The purpose of this 
series is to give students in Grades 5-8 a comprehensive concert 
experience that encourages creativity, integrates school curriculum, 
teaches sophisticated musical concepts and fosters a lifelong love of 
music. The AS0 performed a free YPC at Mt. Brook Middle School in 
2012-2013 

The AS0 performs with the AS0 Chorus in 
UAB's Alys Stephens Center 

L 

Community Engaqement Services 
The AS0 works with representatives from Mountain Brook schools, 
civic organizations, hospitals, nursing homes and churches to schedule performances by individual and small 
ensembles of AS0 musicians throughout the season at no charge. These services provide a unique chance for 
music lovers of all ages to interact in an intimate setting with orchestra members and hear a live performance in a 
relaxed, familiar setting. 

Composer In Residence: In the 2012113 season, the AS0 brought leading contemporary composer Judd 
Greenstein to Birmingham for five, week-long residencies, and he is the ASO's second Composer-In-Residence. As 
part of the special educational component to Greenstein's residency, he visited area schools to engage and educate 
children about the composition process. The Composer In Residence program also includes several adult education 
salons where AS0 stakeholders hear a lecture on the commission and learn about the composition process firsthand 
from the composer. Greenstein also conducted workshops for local college level compositions students at 
Birmingham Southern, the University of Alabama at Birmingham and Samford University. The AS0 is excited to 
continue this initiative to educate children and adults on all facets of music composition with composer Hannah Lash 
as our 201 311 4 Sound Investment Composer. 

Young Artists and the AS0 
Student groups regularly participate in AS0 performances, giving 
them more exposure to the rich array of musical talent in our area. 
For example, ensembles of student musicians are invited to 
perform in the lobby prior to AS0 Masterworks and Coffee 
Concerts. This year's performing ensembles include groups from 
the University of Alabama at Birmingham, Alabama School of Fine 
Arts, Samford University, Birmingham Boys Choir and the 
University of Montevallo. Participating students are given free 
tickets to the concert and the opportunity to showcase their talent. 

Masterclasses, Educational Lectures and Presentations 
AS0 world renowned guest artists, such as Yo Yo Ma and Conduc 
Avner Dorman, preseit classes which are free and open to the public. 



2013 - 2014 Allocation Request from the Citv of Mountain Brook 
During these classes guest artists work with young musicians from the University of Alabama, the University of 
Alabama at Birmingham, Samford University, Birmingham Southern College and the University of Montevallo on a 
variety of music study areas. Performing participants are chosen by audition or teacher recommendation. The AS0 
also allows college students to observe all daytime rehearsals including classes attending as a group or individual 
students. Concert Comments are lectures given before many AS0 Masterworks concerts to discuss the works on the 
program. This lecture series is open to the public and offers education opportunities for new and veteran audience 
members. 

Alabama Symphonv Youth Orchestra (ASYO): The ASYO is an integral member of the AS0 family and we plan for 
it to become a vigorous part of Alabama's cultural fabric. The ASYO strives for national preeminence among youth 
orchestras, while cultivating the artistic growth and excellence of its members through enriching orchestral 
experiences and the mentoring of AS0 musicians. The ASYO launched its inaugural season in 201 0 and is a 
signature priority for AS0 Music Director Justin Brown. The talented Roderick Cox is the Assistant Conductor of the 
AS0 and Music Director of the Alabama Symphony Youth Orchestra. The ASYO will endeavor to offer financial 
assistance to as many members as possible, The AS0 hopes to use the ASYO to help change the face of American 
orchestras. The AS0 has already secured multi-year financial commitments to support the ASYO, ensuring its 
stability. The ASYO represents 27 cities from throughout the state including members from Mt. Brook. 

AS0 2013114 Concert Series 
In the 2013- 2014 season, the Alabama Symphony continues its music director search as we welcome an exciting 
lineup of conductors and soloists to our stage. Our highly distinguished AS0 Masterworks series features guest 
artists Stephen Hough, Jennifer Koh, Tai Murray and many more. The AS0 is presenting six Coffee Concerts that are 
widely popular among our core patrons, seniors and student groups. The ASCAP award winning Classical Edge 
series returns for its eighth season and will feature orchestral compositions by Hannah Lash. 201 3114 Special Events 
include Handel's Messiah, New Year's Eve Celebration, our annual tribute to Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. We are also 
continuing our chamber music series on the campus of Samford University in the Brock Recital Hall. The 2013114 
SuperPops season features Johnny Mathis, Natalie Merchant and much more. Following in the footsteps of our 
successful Composer-In-Residence program, our new Sound Investment Composer program will feature celebrated 
composer Hannah Lash. As a part of our dedication to presenting and promoting new orchestral music, the AS0 
also engages in adult education through a series of learning salons with our Sound Investment Composer during 
which participants hear firsthand the process of composition and the inspiration that brings the AS0 commissioned 
work to life. 

Conclusion 
For your convenience we have included 201 3-14 program brochures, a list of our Board of Directors, our proposed 
2013-14 Budget and a list of other government contracts. If you have any questions regarding the ASO's application 
or report, please contact Zach Davis, Institutional Giving Manager at zdavis@alabamasymphony.com or 205-314- 
6955. The AS0 greatly appreciates our partnership with the City of Mountain Brook and thanks the city for joining us 
to provide hundreds of Mountain Brook residents with access to music education, free performances and concerts 
series - all enhancing the cultural health of the community we share. 



Mr Elton B Stephens 

Mr Marvin R. Engel 

Ms. Dell S. Brooke 
Chairman 

Ms. Gloria N. Moody 
Vice-Chairman 

MI. H. Corbin Day 
Vice-Chairman 

Mr Cliarles D Perry. Jr 
Vice-Chairman 

Mr William W. Brooke 
President 

Mr Ruffner Page 
Vice-Presiden t 

Mr James S. Snow 
Treasurer 

Mr. K. Wood Herren 
Secretary 

Mr. Steve Sanak 
Mr Harold Abroms 
Ms. Peggy Balliet 
Mr Edward M. Berko 
Mr William Bowron, Jr. 
Mr. Jon Blankenship 
Ms. Mindy Boggs 
Mr. Michael Bradt 
Mr. Barl Bretz 
Mr J David Brown 
Ms. Theresa Bruno 
Mr. Jeffrey Cain 
Mr. Russell W. Chambliss 
Ms. Brooke Coleman 

O R C  t i  E S T  \Xi\ 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
2013 - 2014 

Founder and Chairman in Memoriam Aeternam, 
EBSCO Industries, Inc. 
Founder, Highland Bank 

Board Member Emeritus 

Civic Leader - Birmingham 

Civic Leader - Birmingham 

Charman, Jemison Investment Company, Inc. 

Founder and Principal, Highland Associates 

Executive Vice President - Harbert Management Corporation 

President, McWane Inc. 

Owner. James S. Snow and Associates, LLP 

Partner, Bradley Arant Boult Cummings LLP 

Executive VP, BBVA Compass, Director of Private Banking 
Civic Leader - Birmingham 
Civic Leader - Birmingham 
Executive Vice President & Chief Risk Officer, Protective Live Corporation 
Chairman, President and CEO, Red Diamond, Inc 
President, Blankenship & Seay Consulting Group 
Civic Leader 
Orchestra Member 
Civic Leader - Birmingham 
President, Jemison Investment Company, Inc. 
Civic Leader - Birmingham 
GuitarisVSongwriter 
Chairman of the Board - Mason Corporation 
Civic Leader - Birmingham 



Ms Kathleen Costello 
Ms Lyndra Daniel 
Ms. Kay B. Donnellan 
Ms. Kelley Fitzpatrick 
Mr M Miller Gorrie 
Mr John B. Grenier 
Mr Wyatt Haskell 
Mr Philip Jackson 
Ms. Sheryl Kimerling 
Mr Robert E. Kristofco 
Ms. Lynn F LaRussa 
Ms. Sherrie LeMier 
Rev. Peggy McClure 
Dr Cecil Morgan 
Mr Drayton Nabers 
Dr Henry Panion , 1 1 1  
Mr Giles Perkins 
Ms. Leigh Perry 
Dr George P Petznick 
Ms. Karen Piassick 
Dr Lawrence Pijeaux, Jr 
Mr G. Gray Plosser, Jr 
Mr William D. Ritter 
Mr. Rusty Rushton 
Rep Rod Scott 
Dr. Sanjay K. Singh 
Dr Chandler H. Smith 
Mr Bart W R. Stephens 
Ms. Rae Trimmier 
Dr. Ray L. Watts 
Ms. Lisa Wienhold 

Ex-officio Board Members 
Ms. Linda Griggs 
Ms. Tracy Sproule 
Symphony 30, President 
Ms. Nancy Lewis 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
2013 - 2014 

Orchestra Member 
Civic Leader - Birmingham 
Senior Vice-President & Director of Personal Trust, Sterne Agee, Inc 
Civic Leader - Birmingham 
Cha~rman and CEO, Brasfield & Gorrie, LLC 
Partner, Bradley Arant Boult Cummings, LLP 
Partner, Haskell Slaughter Young & Rediker, LLC 
Civic Leader - Birmingham 
Civic Leader - Birmingham 
Director of Medical Education for Pfizer Pharmaceuticals 
Civic Leader - Birmingham 
President, Cahaba Government Benefits Administrators, LLC 
Civic Leader - Birmingham 
Civic Leader - Birmingham 
Shareholder, Maynard, Cooper & Gale, PC 
Professor, UAB; Owner, Audiostate 55 Recording Studio 
Attorney, Adams and Reese LLP 
President, Alabama Power Foundation, Inc. 
Dentist, Private Practice 
Civic Leader - Birmingham 
President & CEO, Birmingham Civil Rights Institute 
President, KPS Group, Inc. 
Central Region President, Regions Financial Corporation 
Professor, University of Alabama at Birmingham 
Member. Ala. House of Representatives, Instructor - Mlles College 
Associate Professor o l  Information, UAB 
Civic Leader - Birmingham 
General Manager, Wingscapes (a division of EBSCO Industries) 
Civic Leader - Birmingham 
President, The University of Alabama at Birmingham 
Orchestra Member 

Symphony Volunteer Council, President 

AS0 Chorus 



Budget Summary for Fiscal Year 2013-14 

EARNEDREVENUE 

Ticket Sales $1,450,000 
Fee Concerts $250,000 
Other Income $50,000 

$1,750,000 

CONTRIBUTED REVENUE 

Endowment 
Individuals 
Corporations 
Foundations 
Government 
Symphony 30 
svc 
Gala 

Total Revenue $6,850,000 

EXPENSES 

Artistic 4,475,000 
Production 485,000 
Marketing 750,000 
Development 520,000 
Administrative 620,000 

Total Expense 6,850,000 



.4L.4BAMh8j?y$&il O R C H E S T R A  

EDUCATION PROGRAMS FOR OLDER STUDENTS 

GUEST ARTIST ENRICHMENT PROGRAF 
As a part of the ASO's Education and Community Engagemellt 
Programs, the Guest Artist Enrichment Program brings our guest 
artists out into the greater Birmingham community to provide ma: 
classes, workshops and lectures. The ASO's guest artists have visite 
area middle schools, high schools, colleges and universities giving 
students the unique opportunity to learn from a world-class musici 
or conductor. Working with our &guests artists can provide students 
once-in-a-lifetime experience to deepen their love for music, discoc 
new career paths, or hone their craft with a professional in the fielc 

ASYO 
The Alabama Symphony Youth Orchestra is the official youth 
orchestra of the AS0 and will begin its fourth season in the autumn 
of 20 13. Led by AS0 Assistant Conductor, Roderick Cox, the ASYO 
is an ensemble dedicated to giving youilg musicians in the state of 
Alabama the opportunity to learn and grow through the rehearsal 
and performance of great orchestral music in a highly professional 
setting. Members of the ASYO rehearse weekly, work regularly with 
the musicians and conductors of the A S 0  and perform concerts 
spanning from standard orchestral repertoire to pops and chamber 
music. The ASYO currently consists of 64 young musicians between 
the ages of 12 and 22 from 27 Alabama cities and 26 schools. The 
ASYO performs both a fall and spring concert in addition to special 
holiday and collaborative performances in the communitj. 

I from the, 

To learn more about our education programs, please call Zach Davis, Institutional Giving 

Manager at 205.314.6955 or email him at zdavis@alabamasymphony.com 



AREGIONS MASTERFUL PERFORMANCES & LUMINOUS GUESTSTAR: 
. . 5 .: ;.:'..'?/i.> FE i< '5 Join us for another stellar season o f  all your favorite music from Mozart, Chopin, Beethoven and more 

. Justin Brown 1 Chopin's Piano Rimsky-Korsakov's 
i Conducts Schubert i Concerto No. 2 Scheherazade 
- Justin Brown, Conductor ; Maximiano Valdes, Conductor Danail Rachcv, Conductor 
: NORMAN Um&k : RafaI Blechacz, Piano David Aaron Carpenter, Violin 
: MAHLER Adagio from : MESSLAEN Lcs O f i d s  OuOuBlites BERLIOZ H(m&l in Itcrb 
: Symphony No. 10 : CHOPIN Piano Concerto No. 2 RIMSKY-KORSAKOV 
: SCHUBERT Symphony No. 9 SIBELIUS Symphony No. 2* Schetlcrazade 
: in C Major "Great'" 

: , . , ' , '  ' 
I w 

- 1 -  

i Two Pianos: 
Quattro Mani 

: Sarah Hicks, Conductor 
: Quattro Mani, Piano Duo 
: HIGDONSkyLinc* 
' POULENC Concerto for Two Pianos 
: FRANCK Symphony in D mino? 

Bach & Beethoven 
Stefan Sanderling, Conductor 
Jennifer Frautschi, V~olin 
BACH "Etemi& 0 wonl of Thdcr" 
BWV 60 
BERG V~olin Concerto "In Mnoly 

of anArtgel" 
BEETHOVEN Symphony No. 4 

Justin Brown 
Conducts Wagner 
Justin Brown, Conductor 
Heidi Melton, Soprano 
ROSSINI Willimn ZN Overture 
WAGNER Prelude and Liebestod 
from Titan d Isoldc 
SHOSTAKOVICH Symphony 
No. 15 

Schumann's Piano 
Concerto 
Cristian Mncelaru, Conductor 
Stephen Hough, P i n o  
BEIUIOZ Benhicc and Bmedict 
Ountun* 
SCHUMANN Piano Concerto 
BRAHMS Symphony No. 2* 

Bach's Concerto 
for Two Violins 
Jennifer Koh, V~olin 
Jamie Laredo, Violin 
Program to include: 

&OW 
&GGG= 

BACH Concerto for Two Violins 
and Orchestra 
CLYNE Aincc of Cloudr @ouble 
Concerto) 

Brahms' Violin Saint-Saens Piano Mozart's Requiem Tchaikovsky 's 
Concerto Concerto No. 2 The Alabama Symphony Violin Concerto 
Stefan Jackiw, V~olin Benjamin Grosvenor, Piano Orchestra Chorus Case Scaglione, Conductor 
Program to include: Program to include: Program to include: Tai Murray, V~olin 
BRAHMS Violin SAINT-SAENS Piano MOZART Requiem JARRELL Three Debussy Etudes* 
Concerto* Concerto NO. 2 \,d \_fJ TCHAIKOVSKY Violin Concerto* &o+ &o &o BARTOK Concerto for Orchestra 

==i G-9 -9 



LOCK I N  GREAT SEATS. 
GET FREE CONCERTS. 

RENEW TODAY! 
CALL 205.975.2787, 
visit UAB's Alys S t e p h e n s  Ticketing 

C e n t e r  at  1200 10th Ave.  South 
Birmingham AL, 35205 

or r e t u r n  the e n c l o s e d  invoice. 

c1wral 
Balcony 

RlpM 

Prices include ASC ticketing and facility restoration 
fees. An $8 per order subscription processing fee will 
be added at checkout. 

PRICES AND SEATING 
2013-2014 Regions M a s t e r ~ v o r k s  

Alys Stephens Center Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 4 

I PLATINUM 20 concer ts  
I Includes 5 FREE concer ts  I 

.-. - -  
I Includes 2 FREE c o ~ i c e r t s  

Save 10% 

BRAVO 6 Concei is  
Save 10% I 
COFFEE CONCERTS 6 Concerts  
Inc ludes I FREE concer t  ; $1 56.00 $1 20.00 $81 .OO 



A 

A L A B A M A a + j  O R c H I s T R *  ' " p S  6 

EDUCATION PROGRAMS: 
lL\fl 1" 

Changing lives through music bl! 

With the help of our Education Partners, the AS0 is committed to bringing the power and beauty of orchestra 
music to  every student in Alabama. Whether it's a preschooler seeing a full orchestra for the first time, a class- 

room discovering that music can make learning fun, or a high school cellist coming face-to-face with Yo-Yo Ma, the 
young lives we change today will be the leaders and music lovers oftomorrow. 

SYMPHONY STORYTIME 
Symphony Storytime is a program desi,gned to increase arts access and early childhood 
literacy for area pre-school children by presenting free pre-school programs for uilderserved 
Birmingham children. Carefully planned by music educators, child development experts, and 
musicians, the interactive musical presentation introduces young participailts to instruments 
of different chamber ensembles, stimulates the imagination with a story combined with 
music, and engages them in active listening. 

MAGIC 
MAGIC is a program designed to provide area elementary school students with hands-on, 
interactive lessons that integrate music with classroom curriculum and life skills, particularly 
in schools with little to no music instruction and after-school programs for at-risk youth. 
A S 0  musicians go inside the classroom to engage the students in learning of all subjects 
based on musical principles. The AS0 provides free professional development for teachers 
on creating curriculum-based music lesson plans which emphasize hands-on experiences 
for students through creative vocal, percussion and instrument exploration. In 20 13, A S 0  
musicians are working with 3rd and 4th grade students at Lewis Elementary. 

FIELD TRIP CONCERTS 
The AS0 tailors our education concerts for students of all ages and levels of 
learning. Explorer Concerts are designed for children in pre-k through second 
grade, connecting music to the world around them. The purpose of this series 
is to introduce young children to the orchestra and reinforce basic learning 
skills through engaging, interactive performances. Young People's Concerts 
are geared toward students grades 3-6 and provide a comprehensive concert 
experience which encourages creativity, integrates school curriculum, teaches 
sophisticated musical concepts, and fosters a lifelong love of music. The A S 0  
Education Department has designed programs which fulfill Alabama State 
Curriculum Standards in arts and academic subjects while upholding a high 
level of artistic excellence. Concerts include comprehensive preparatory 
materials for teachers; including free MP3 downloads of repertoire to be 
performed. Students Jr. High through High School are targeted through the 
ASO's Coffee Concert series which provides a condensed version of a sympho~ 
Masterworks program featuring canonized pieces by historically significant 
composers. These concerts introduce older students to the classical repertoire 
and what it's like to attend a real symphony performance. 



RESOLUTION NO. 2013-166 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that 
either the Mayor or the City Manager of the City is hereby authorized and directed, for and on 
behalf of the City, to enter into a contract with the Alabama Symphonic Association subject to 
such minor changes as may be determined appropriate by the City Attorney, a copy of which 
contract is attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

ADOPTED: This 12th day of November 20 13. 

APPROVED: This 12th day of November 20 13. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby 
certify the above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the 
City of Mountain Brook at its meeting held on November 12,2013, as same appears in the 
minutes of record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Authorize execution of Alabama Symphony contract 



CONTRACT FOR GENERAL SERVICES 

This contract for services ("Contract") is entered into by and between City of Mountain Brook, 
an Alabama municipal corporation ("City"), and the Alabama Symphonic Association, a nonprofit 
corporation organized under the laws of the State of Alabama ("Association"). 

Whereas, City desires to increase the learning opportunities for students in its school system, 
including music and other arts-related subjects; and 

Whereas, City also desires to enrich the cultural life of its residents by providing opportunities for 
them to participate in musical and other arts-related events, recognizing that exposure to educational and 
cultural experiences is valuable to the residents of the City of Mountain Brook; and 

Whereas, in consideration of the payment referred to hereinafter, the Association has agreed to 
provide musical programs and to perform services for the students of City's school system and for the 
residents of the City. 

Now therefore, in consideration of the premises and in consideration of the covenants and 
agreements contained herein, City and Contractor hereby agree as follows: 

1. City shall pay to the Association the sum of ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00) for services for the 
one-year period from October 1,2013 through September 30,2014 ("Contract Funds"). 

2. In consideration of the payment of the Contract Funds by City, the Association shall provide the 
following services to the students of City's school system and to the residents of City: 
a. The AS0  will provide one concert at a venue or school for a community or education 

concert of the city's choosing. 
- Options include a Holiday Concert, Pops Concert, Young People's Concert, etc. 
- The AS0 production team with work with the City of Mountain Brook to determine 

the best venue, time and date for each of the specified options. 
b. The AS0  will provide up to 300 tickets for Mountain Brook students to attend an AS0 

Coffee Concert, Young People's Concert, or Explorer concert during the 2013-2014 
school year. 

c. The AS0 will provide Mountain Brook school teachers with access to innovative music 
education lesson plans associated with our Young People's Concerts. 

d. The AS0  will work with the Mountain Brook school system to provide music education 
lectures and demonstrations for teachers and students. 

e. The AS0 will provide opportunities for young musicians from Mountain Brook schools 
to participate in pre-concert performances and special masterclass offerings, and audition 
for the Alabama Symphony Youth Orchestra (ASYO). 

3. The Association shall deliver to City's Finance Department a detailed report describing the 
Association's use of the Contract Funds by the earlier of sixty days following the expenditures or 
November 30,2014. 

Exhibit A 



4. The Association shall provide the personnel, supplies, equipment and expertise necessary 
to fulfd its obligations under this Contract. The Association- is an independent contractor and 
none of its agents, or employees shall be deemed to be under the control of City, nor shall any of 
the agents or employees or other persons, firms or corporations conducting business for, or on 
behalf of, the Association be deemed to be agents or employees of City. 

5. The Association shall indemnify City and its employees and elected officials, and hold 
them harmless from and against, all actions, causes of action, claims, demands, damages, losses 
and expenses of zny kind, including, but not limited to, attorneys' fees and court costs, which may 
be asserted against, or suffered by, City or its employees or elected officials arising out of, or in 
connection with: 

(a) the performance, or attempted performance, by the Association or its agents or 
employees of the Association's obligations under this contract; and 

@) any claim that the Contract Funds were improperly paid by City to the Association. 

6.  The Association agrees to employ accounting procedures which are appropriate to the types of 
operations conducted by the Association and which are customary to srmilar operations. All 
financial records and other documents pertaining to this Contract shall be maintained by the 
Association for a period of three (3) years after the expiration or termination of this Contract. 
City shall have full access to, and the right to examine, such financial records and other 
documents at all reasonable times during the term of this Contract and during said three (3) year 
period. The Association agrees that, upon request from City, the Association will submit to, and 
cooperate with, periodic audits by the Alabama Department of Public Examiners or other audit 
procedures requested by City. 

7. The Association and the representative of the Association, who executes this Contract, by 
the execution of this Contract, certify that: 

a. no part of the Contract Funds paid by City pursuant to this Contract shall be paid 
to, or used in any way for the personal benefit of, any elected official, employee or 
representative of any government or any family member of any such official, employee 
or representative, including federal, state, county and municipal governments and any 
agency of any such government; 

b. neither the Association nor any of its officers, agents, representatives or employees 
has in any way colluded, conspired or connived with any elected official, employee, or 
representative of City, or any other elected official or public employee, in any manner 
whatsoever, to secure or obtain this Contract; and 

c. Except as expressly set out in this scope of services of this Contract, no promise or 
commitment of any nature whatsoever of anything of value whatsoever has been made 
to any such elected official, employee or representative of City as an inducement or 

Exhibit A 



consideration for this Contract. 

Any violation of this certification shall constitute a breach and default of this Contract which 
shall be cause for termination. Upon such termination, the Association shall immediately refund to City 
all amounts paid by City pursuant to this Contract. 

In witness whereof, the Alabama Symphonic Association has caused this Contract to he 
executed by its duly authorized Executive Direct on (date) , and City of 
Mountain Brook has caused this Contract by its duly authorized representative, on (date) 

, but this contract shall be effective as of (date) October 1,2013 

ATTEST: Alabama Symphonic Association 

Zach Davis Curtis S. Long 
Its Institutional Giving Manager Its Executive Director 

ATTEST: City of Mountain Brook 

Steven Boone Lawrence T. Oden 
Its City Clerk Its Mayor 

Exhibit A 



Friends of Birmingham Botanical Gatdens* 
Funding Request 
City of Mountain Brook 

Bkmingham Botanical Gardens features 67.5 aues of breathtaking gardens h c h  include over 3,000 types of 
plants, a large conservatory (scheduled to reopen this Fall) and more than 30 works of outdoor sculpture, all 
enjoyed by over 350,000 annual visitors. With more than 25 separate speaalty gardens and woodland areas 
representing the best of Alabama's horticultural wonders, The Gardens is an important part of our region's 
biodiversity as well as a beautiful asset to our city. In our urbanized and mechanized society, the need for this 
urban oasis becomes more apparent daily. 

Friends of Bimmgham Botanical Gardens (The Friends) works as a public/p$vate partnership with the City 
of Birmingham's Park & Recreation Board. While the City of Birzningham owns the campus and operates the 
physical plant, The Friends provides staff, volunteers and funding for educational programming, garden 
maintenance, plant and library collections expansion, long-range planning and physical development The 
Friends is also responsible for duection and day to day management of all BBG employees. 

Most importantly, The Friends raises and administers funds that provide year-round educational 
programming for children and adults, helps to keep The Gardens clean and green, assists in maintaining the 
most extensive living plant collection in the region and provides the best deal in town for an enjoyable family 
outing - Fcee admission for all. 

Education is the keystone of The Friends' mission. Friends of Birmingham Botanical Gardens was the tirst 
area organization to base its children's education programs on the approved state science curriculum. Today, 
Friends' Education Programs serve over 47,000 children and adults annually. Of the more than 17,600 
children in all programs, 98% did so for free, including the award winning Discovery Field Trips. These 
curriculum-based adventures were the tirst field trips offered by cultural institutions in our area that were 
designed to correlate with the Alabama Course of Study: Science. 

Discovery Field Trips are hands-on interactive activities for children - not merely passive lectures provided 
by docents. Participants learn about interdependence of plants and animals in the ecosystem, basic plant and 
flower parts and methods of propagation, the life and scientific contributions of Dr. George Washington 
Carver, varieties of plants utilized by Native Americans, plant adaptation in tropical rain forests and "The 
Secret Life of Trees." 

The standmg long-term goal has been to extend Discovery Field Trips to students of all  ages so it can become 
a cumulative, comprehensive program. The Friends' education staff has worked hard to accomplish this goal 
by introducing the new field trip, "Photsynthesis and Respiration: It's All About the Leaves" desjgned to 
meet middle school cuniculum requirements. 

Discovuy Field Trips are available he-of-charge to City of Mountain Brook students. More than 2,000 
students horn Mountain Brook have come to The Gardens for a Discovery Field Trip since 2006. Dwkg the 
2012-2013 academic year, we had 211 students £ram Mountain Brook participate in Gee supplemental science 
education. With the city's continued support, we hope to increase the number of children served fiom your 
school system. 

Friends of Birmingham Botanical Gatdens tespectfuy. requests continued support in the amount of 
$5,000 from the City of Mountain Btook to help underwrite Discovery Field Trips fot 2014. Funds 
provided by the Clty of Mountain Brook will support the administrative costs, materials and equipment for 
the field trips, maintenance of gardens where aips take place and professional development teacher 
workshops. 

W~th your help, The Friends will continue to expand educational programming, environmental awareness, 
facilities maintenance and development, as well as horticultural health and dtversity. Our Birmingham 
Botanical Gardens constitutes a valuable resource for our community which must be maintained and 
enhanced for present and future visitors. 

*Birmingham Botanical Society, Inc. dba Friends of Birminghm.~ Botanical Gardens 



e n b a a r i n g  l i f e  w i t b  p l a n t s  

bbgardcns.org 

BOARD OFDTRECTORS UPDATE: AUGUST 22,2013 for the period: July 1,2012 -June 30,2013 

This record year for the educational programs at Birmingham Botanical Gardens demonstrates a continued strong 
use of The Gardens' traditional and newly emerging education programs that are inclusive of people of all ages, 
cultures and capabhties. It also demonstrates the deep commitment that the staff has for The Gardens' mission of 
delivering high quality educational programs both on- and off-site. Programs are nature-based, with an emphasis on 
plants and the environment and the interactions of people with them. 

Overall participation in all education programs in 2012/13 trended upward with a record hkh of 26,182 
individuals, 4% over 2011/12, itself a record high of 8% over 2010/11. Participation of 15,314 chddren in 
2012/13 was approximately equivalent to those participating in 201 1/12 following a 12% increase over 
2010/11. Participation of adults in 2012/13 was 10,868,12% over 2011/12 following a 13% increase over 
2010/11. 

Significant Metrics in 2012/13 program participation include: 
Children's "Discoverv" Programs 

Discovery Field Trips (docent-guided) broke the eoal of 10.000 children for the second year in a row, 
posting an increase of 9% in 2012/13 following a 4% increase in 201 1/12. 
Discoveq Backpack Promam increased 4% in 2012/13 following a 12% increase in 201 1 /12 over 
2010/11, its first year. 
Treasure Map, a self-guided nature-based activity, increased by 500 students in 2012/13 following its 
introduction in 2011/12, when 70 students participated. 

Summer Children's Programs 
J (fee-based) participation increased to a record h i ~ h  of 280 in 2012/13 

following a 379'0 increase in 201 1/12 over 2010/11. 
Gross-out Camp (fee/scholarship-based) participation doubled with 120 children in 2012/13 from 60 
children in 201 1 /12. 

Adult Promams 
On-Site Adult Pro-mams overall increased slightly: up 3% over 201 1 /12 to a record hieh of 7,231 
participants, due principally to increased weekend programming and self-guided "passport tours" by 
college students in the Birmingham Area Consortium of Higher Education (BACHE) in which The 
Gardens participates with a dozen cultural institutions. 
Plant Adventures up 29% to 1,208 participants from 937 participants in 2011 /12 and 365 in 2010/11. 
Ccrnficate of Native Plant Studies up 15% to 625 participants in 2012/13 from 545 in 2011/12. 



August 22.20 13: Education Summary & Report 201 2-1 3 

Volunteers Participating in education programs increased 20% over 2011/12 with an increase of 2% in 
contributed hours, indicating more volunteers working fewer hours (19 hours/year/volunteer). 

Revenue: Year end 2012 revenue = $88,645 (Revenue budget = $94,000) 
June 30,201 3, YTD revenue = $73,240 (YTD budget = $66,760) 

Strategic Planning After the adoption of The Gardens' Strategic Plan in January 2012, the Education staffworked 
to align new program initiatives with the "Tactics" identified within it (see p. 17, Birmingham Botanical Gardens 
2012-2016 Strategic Plan). These are identified below and more fully explained in the detailed narrative that follows. 

Stakeholders & Community Engagement 
J Tactic C2: "Develop and implement programs, opportunities and incentives to atttact younger and more 

ethnically diverse members and volunteers." 
2012/13 Action: Education programs at The Gardens are intended to be inclusive and collaborative in 
nature and diverse in terms of age, race, ability levels, etc. of volunteers and participants. Program 
development focuses on both participant diversity and on d e h e y  of information. 

Strategic Planning: Partnerships 
4 Tactic D2: Research potential partnerships models in education, funding, facilities improvements and 

stakeholder engagement 
2012/13 Action: Continuing process of listing potential partners and assessing the level of involvement 
The partnership list is reviewed and updated at the end of each academic year. 

J Tactic D2: Seek partnership agreements. 
2012/13 Agreed on a formal contractual partnership with the Community Garden Coalition for 
Birmingham( signed on July 1,2013). This partnership initiates a long-term educational outreach 
program concerning community-grown vegetables. High program growth potential. 

Education 
J Tactic El: Develop messaging about educational impact and pursue media exposure. 

2012/13 Action: Completed 2nd Education Impact Statement from data in this report for use with grant 
applications and compliance and with public information campaigns. 

4 Tactic E2: Develop partnerships and programming to reach underserved groups. 
2012/13 Action: Developed new middle-school Discovery Field Trip that includes transportation 
funding, often limiting to schools. Implemented free weekend on-site programs, "Get Into the 
Gardens" and "Sunday Scenes" to serve weekend visitors, frequently those with limited financial means. 
EvIet with Birmingham Mayor William Bell and City Counul President Roderick Royal to discuss tree 
planting in communities damaged by 201 1 tornadoes and with few funds for purchasing trees. 

J Tactic E2: Actively recruit and uain new educational docents. 
2012/13 Action: The placement of The Gardens' volunteer coordinator, who serves all departments, 
within Education ensures that classes, field trips and tours are staffed with trained education docents. 
Teacher and education volunteer recruitment and training are key to developing the new middle school 
field trip and weekend educational programs. 

4 Tactic E2: Strengthen partnerships with school systems. Identi4 key players; teacher (continuing 
education) outreach with CEUs. 
2012/13 Action: Planned for additional opportunities for summer teacher workshops, initiated in 2012 
in partnership with the McWane Center. 

- 2 -  



August 22.2013: Education Summary & Report 2012-13 

4 Tactic E2: Develop and implement more outreach programs. 
2012/13 Action: Four major outreach initiatives with community partners are being developed 
andcontinually improved: (1) Community gardening and nutrition, (2) Urban habitat restoration with 
native plants (3) Weekend education and (4) High school and college internships. 

J Tactic E3: Build new educational spaces in master plan. 
2012/13 Action: Contributed to design development of educational &splays and spaces for new 
Conservatory exhibits. Initiated re-design for the Orientation Room to create additional capacity. 

Additional Program Highlights 
The efforts listed below contributed &rectly and/or indirectly, quantitatively and/or qualitatively, to the excellent 
year of 2012/13. Not all educational efforts immediately result in quantifiable metrics. Summer interns, for example, 
yield no numerical results but contribute immeasurably to the quality and stature of the educational program. 

Plant Adventures Program Refined its programs, participants and values in new categories that broadly define 
the tenets of the educational program as a whole (see "Plant Adventures" section, below). 

Discovery Field Trip (DFT) Progtam Innovation: Developed 'Wants Inside-Out" a new botany-based 
(photosynthesis/respiration) Discovery Field Trip meeting Alabama State Course of Study standards for middle 
school, but with application to high school biology curriculum. Launch goal of late 2013 or early 2014. New 
Pollinator DFT has been developed for elementary students at the request of a teacher with a launch goal of late 
2014 or early 201 5. 

Weekend Education: Began Saturday and Sunday informal education programs prirnanly for those already 
visiting The Gardens. Renovated the Discovery Cart by adding casters and painting it by Vestavia Htgh School 
art students, giving it a renewed utility for informal outdoor education settings. Four new weekend fee-based 
children's classes were offered on the theme of the use of plants for different cultural holidays. 40 attended two 
classes dedicated to the Girl Scouts and 29 attended the other two classes. These were offered as partial 
compensation for the cancellation of Holly Day Magic. 

Community Gardening: Developed a formal partnership agreement with the Community Garden Coalition 
for Birmingham (signed on July 1,2013). 

Centennial Tree Progtam: Titled under the auspices of national partner, Garden Club of America, represented 
locally by the Little and Red Mountain Garden Clubs, tree seedlings were planted for the fourth consecutive 
year in George Ward Park in October 2012 with participation from numerous community and governmental 
groups. Goal was met to plant 1,000 native seedlings, grown from locally collected seed, by fall, 2012. 
Birmingham city councilwvoman, Valerie Abbott, planted the thousandth tree. 

Certificate in Native Plant Studies: Ended its successful second year with 625 classroom seats filled, 
compared with 545 in 2011/12. Instructor and subject diversity expanded in 2012113. 

Education Committee: Completed its third year of monthly meetings. Added four members of The Gardens' 
board of directors: Gary Burley (2012), Mary Williamson (2012), Mary Boehm (2013) and Chris Boles (2013). 
Additional members are: Albert Burge, Hana Burwinkle, Verna Gates, Carol Hagood, Joyce Lanning, Mike 
Malone and Sharon Nelson. 

Hosting Meetings: The Gardens plays a significant role in planning and conducting meetings for educational 
and environmental groups, serving as neutral ground for dialogue. 

- 3 - 



August 22,2013: Education Summary & Report 2012-13 

Summer Interns: Ian Hazelhoff, 2013 biology graduate of the University of the South, Sewanee, was funded by 
the Rotary Club of Shades Valley for a 12-week internship, the sixth since 2008. For the first time, a second 
college intern was added, funded by the Little and Red Mountain Garden Clubs and Birmingham-Southern 
College. Caroline Rowan, rising junior at Birmingham-Southern interned for 10 weeks. Also for the first time a 
high school student interned. Reid Pearlman, rising senior at Vestavia High School, interned for 10 weeks, 
receiving a small scholarship from The Gardens upon completion. 

Vana: From time to time, The Gardens is asked to pamdpate in activities by institutions that require significant 
effort by the education staff. In 2012/13, we completed the editing of America's Tree of Life: A Cultural and 
Natural Historv of the Pecan, for the University of Alabama Press. We produced clonal "copies" of The 
Gardens' Moon Tree for use in the celebration of the hundredth anniversary of the University of Michigan's 
Space and Aeronautics Department. 

Vision 
Friends of Birmingham Botanical Gardens' vision is to make Birmingham Botanical Gardens one of the nation's 
preeminent botanical gardens. 

Mission 
Friends of Birmingham Botanical Gardens promotes public knowledge of plants, gardens and the environment and 
receives, raises and administers resources for these purposes. 

Educational P r o ~ r a m s  
Core programs include botany, horticulture, natural history, ecology, landscape design and environmental science. 
Plants and nature sen-e as context for classes in science, art, travel, crafts, food, cooking, and human wellness. 

Pumose 
Friends of Birmingham Botanical Gardens (The Friends) provides education and educational resources for all ages 
and all sectors of the community, principally by stimulating interest in plants and nature, human dependence on 
them, and the need both to manage and to protect them. 

Educational Resources 
The Library at Birmingham Botanical Gardens, Gerlach Plant Information Center (GPTC), Adventure and 
Exploration Classrooms, Arrington Plant Adventure Zone (PAZ), Enabling Garden, Conservatory and The 
Gardens' living and non-living collections are all utilized for educational programs. Outreach programs may be 
conducted off-site and larger classes, such as conferences and seminars, may be held in the Garden Center rooms. 

S ~ e c i a l  Note on Funding 
General funding for all education programs and activities is provided by private donations from numerous 
foundations, individuals and businesses, and revenue from events such as the Spring and Fall Plant Sales and 
Antiques at the Gardens. Program-specific funding sources are listed after the program(s) funded. Because of h s  
support, of the 15,000+ chrldren who attended The Gardens' programs in 2012-13,98% did so for free. 

In-Kind S u p ~ o t t  
For nearly 50 years, The Gardens has been an excellent example of a public/private partnership between the City of 
Birmingham (through its Park & Recreation Board) and Birmingham Botanical Society, Inc., dba Friends of 



August 22.2013: Education Summary & Report 2012-13 

Birmingham Botanical Gardens. Education programs depend on invaluable administrative and operational in-kind 
support from the City of Birmingham. 

Volunteer S U D D O ~  
Delivering our education programs would not be possible without the support of volunteers. In 2012/13,300 
volunteers gave 5,641 hours to support education programs and activities. The 2013 Volunteer Educator of the 
Year was Sallie Lee of the Alabama Cooperative Extension System. 

Education Staff 
Ellen Hardy Education Program Coordmator 
Henry Hughes Director of Education 
Jennifer Sanders Plant Adventures Coordinator 
Taylor Steele Volunteer Coordinator 
Phyllis Sutton Education Activities Specialist (Until May 2013) 

2013 Interns 
Ian Hazelhoff Shades Valley Rotary Club Summer Intern (14 weeks) 
Caroline Rowan Birmingham-Southern Summer Intern (10 weeks) 
Reid Pearlman High School Summer Intern (10 weeks) 

Children's Education Ptonrame 
Discovery Field Trips OFTI') 
Our award-winning, flagshp program is designed to meet the Alabama State Course of Study (lundergarten - sixth 
grade) on six elementary school science themes: plant growth and development, nutrient cycling (George 
Washington Carver), Native American history, tropical rainforests, interdependence of plants and animals, and 
trees. These programs are offered free to schools and students and are led by trained docents. 

2012/13 Accorn~lishments 
Educated 10,152 students (overall 9% increase over 2011/12) 

Urban school systems (principally City of Birmingham) = 6,260 students 
Suburban schools = 1,278 students 
Out of county schools = 1894 students 
Private and home-schools = 720 students 

2012/13 DFT Partnerships 
The Tunior Learme of Rirrnin~ham funds bus transportation and books for each participating Birmingham 
City School attending DFTs and is providing two project chairs and 21 active volunteers. 
Vulcan Materials is providing transportation funding for Bessemer City Schools. 
Birmingham - Audubon Sodetv "Bird Walks" started on Mondays and Fridays during April and May in the 
Alabama Woodlands in partnership with DFT. Birmingham Audubon Society provided mini-grants dwectly 
to teachers for transportation costs. 
Citv of Birmin~harn -During Conservatory renovation, continued with Tropical Rainforest DFT by virtue 
of Gregg Clark setting up displays of tropical plants outside. 

Discoverv Backpack Promam 
Based on Alabama Performance Standards for 4-year olds @re-school) and Alabama Course of Study: Science (K- 
6), Biology and Botany @gh school). Pre-school students discover plants and nature in all seasons by exploring 
through the senses. High school students identify trees native to Alabama. The backpacks may be checked out at 
the receptionist's window at no cost. 



August 22.2013: Education Summary & Report 2012-13 

2012/13 Accom~lishments 
Educated 698 students (increased 4% over 2011 /12). 
Meet The Guden~: A Tnaspln Map designed and implemented for students, teachers, and families for self- 
guided discovery of The Gardens. Curriculum-based activity gods were designed to promote observation 
skills and collaboration. 570 students participated in the second year, an &fold increase. 

New Middle School DFT: "Plants Inside-Out' 
201 2/13 Accomolishments 

Based on the Alabama Course of Study and National Science Education Standards, subjects d include 
plant cellular anatomy, growth and development, and physiology. Focus is on seventh grade but applicable 
to sixth and eighth grades, and adaptable for high schools. 

201 2/13 ~ar tne rsh l~s  
Consulted with partners Dr. Beverly Radford and Ms. Becky Striplin of the University of Alabama at 
Birmingham, Mr. Ryan Reardon of the Jefferson County International Baccalaureate School and Mr. Sam 
Kindervator of the Highlands School to determine content and teaching methods. 

Funding 
Funding was received from City of Mountain Brook, City of Vestavia Hills, The Hugh Kaul Foundation, Junior 
League of Birmingham, Mike and Gillian Goodrich Charitable Foundation, Regions Financial Corporation, Robert 
R, Meyer Foundation, Vulcan Materials Company, and Wells Fargo Foundation. 

Junior League of Birmingham provided 22 volunteers, transportation, and books for Birmingham City 
Schools. 
Regions Financial Corporation provided transportation funding for schools impacted by the 201 2 tornadoes 
in the Birmingham area. 
Vulcan Materials Company hnded buses for Bessemer City Schools. 

Children's Summer Workshops 
This annual children's program is revenue producing and led by experienced certified teachers. Week-long topics are 
designed to promote creativity and to provide opportunity for dscovery. Topics include: cooking with fresh herbs 
and vegetables harvested fiom The Gardens, nature exploration, and visual arts. New topics in 2012 included 
"American Girl" and "Legos in the Landscape." Workshops span June and July; reporting is for the previous 
complete program, in this case June and July 2012. 

2012  accomplishment^ 
280 children attended in June/July, 2012 (2% increase over 201 1). 
2012 program generated $36,000 (highest revenue on record and 6% increase over 2011). 

Children's Classes 
201 2/13 Accom~lishments 

New W'eekend Classes: Introduced fee-based children's classes, taught by certified teachers, with plant based 
themes seasonally to encourage children's continued participation and offer learning opportunities 
throughout the school year. 
"Seasons on Saturdays," free session with themes to discover plants that make each season special. 
'Van Gogh in The Gardens." Facihated by Mary Jane Coker, a certified elementary art teacher, students 
painted using the style of Van Gogh. Each student completed a painting to be framed and displayed. 



August 22.2013: Education Summary & Report 2012-13 

"Fall Butterfly Expedition," facltated by Sharon Pollard was our first fee-based class designed exclusively 
for girl scouts. A total of 10 scouts attended. Each child took home a milkweed plant in addition to new 
knowledge about monarch butterflies. 
Held nvo "experimental" educational classes on chocolate on the morning and afternoon of one Saturday. 
One was a private birthday party; one was open to the public. 

Children's Outreach Education 
201 2/13 Accom~lishments 
Free on- and off-site programs which The Gardens helped to organize with community partners: 

Earth Day at the Gardens: 250 participants. 
Fresh Air Family ccGross-Out Camp:" 120 participants for 40 hours per participant for 6 weeks. 
Fresh Air Family Saturday morning "Hikes for Tykes:" 250 participants. 
Tree identification and seed collection, Red Mountain School: 20 participants. 

Free on- and off-site programs in which The Gardens participated: 
Better Basics: 500 participants. 
Birmingham Cultural Alliance Partnership (BCAP): 235 participants. 
Member Appreciation Day: 50 participants. 
Salamander Festival: 325 participants. 
Urban Forestry Fair: 500 participants. 

Funding 
BCAP program funding was through the 21Y Century Community Learning Center. 

Garden Exblotations 
This free program is designed for elementary children ages 6-12 enrolled in the City of Birmingham Park and 
Recreation Center programs. It is led by experienced certified teachers, who introduce camp participants to basic 
gardening topics, such as: Soils, Plant Propagation and Plant Maintenance. 
2012/13 Accomplishments 

386 participants 

Funding 
This program has been funded for 12 years by generous gifts from Mrs. Jirnmie Hess, through the Hess 
Foundation. Transportation is provided by the Birmingham Parks & Recreation Department. 

Adult Education Pm~rams 
Adult Classes and Wotkshops 
Fee-based activities with topics including gardening and horticulture, cooking and crafts, art and photography, 
nature and family, wellness, and the Certificate in Native Plants Studies program. 

2012/ 13 Accomolishments 
Traditional fee-based adult classes decreased in participation 42% to 1,687. This was due to a new emphasis 
on developing "series" classes with partners, such as the Alabama Cooperative Extension System and the 
Green Resource Center of Alabama, offered free of charge, with the intent of drawing larger audiences per 
class. Brown Bag Lunch & Learn seminars, for example, drew 65 participants ('Prune & Feed") and 50 
participants ("Tree Care") in August 2012. Many others were offered during the year drawing substantial 
audiences. Development of partnership-classes is continuing in 2013 to increase diversity and attendance to 
classes with practical application to homeowners. 



August 22.2013: Education Summary & Report 2012-13 

Completed the second year of the Certificate in Native Plant Studies program. Very strong participation 
increased 15% over 2011/12, attracting 625 students to 34 classes and field trips. This ylelded an average of 
90% capacity on classes capped at 20 participants each to ensure quality education. 
Continued popular weekly yoga classes for a £dl year in 2012/13, which had been running for nine months 
in 2011/12. Over 30 indviduals repeatedly participated in over 40 classes in 2012/13. 
The Birmingham Audubon Society offered several birding classes during the year, principally as a means to 
reinforce its new education partnership with The Gardens. Monthly meetings were moved to The Gardens 
beginning in January 2013 and will continue in 2013/14. 
Junior Board evening classes targeting young professionals continued successfdy for a second year. 
Southern Tales: Songs, Stories and Sing-A-Long event featured Dolores Hydock and Bobby Horton, who 
performed to a sold out crowd - now for four years in a row. 

Meetines and Seminars 
The Gardens provided "neutral ground" for dialogue concerning important environmental issues and hosts 
opportunities for on-going discussions which education partners organized: 
201 2/13 Accom~lishments 

Hosted the (fourth) annual environmental "Forum 2012," in partnersbp with the Interfaith Environmental 
Initiative of Alabama (IEIA; www.InterfaithEn~~ironmental.org.), drawing over 90 participants from 
business, government, the environmental community and a diversity of faith-based organizations. 
Hosted the Alabama Environmental Council's Climate Change Symposium 2013; drew approximately 70 
participants. 
Hosted an all-day "In-Stream Flow" Symposium with the Alabama Rivers Alliance and the Southern 
Environmental Law Center concerning the development of a state-\vide water policy by the end of 2013, as 
directed by Governor Robert Bentley. Keynote speaker was the head of ADEM. Ninety attendees 
represented diverse stakeholder agencies and organizations across Alabama. 
Hosted the 401h anniversary celebration of the Clean Water Act, partnering with the Alabama Coastal 
Foundation and the Alabama Rivers Alliance, drawing over 100 participants. 
Hosted a two-day conference of the southeastern region of the Sentinel Plant Network (a collaboration 
between the American Public Gardens Association and Cornell University) on the subject of an insect that 
is the vector for a fungal disease of host plants in the laurel family, that includes sassafras and red bay, both 
native to Alabama. 

The Gardens also hosted meetings and event for whlch it was the principal organizer: 
201 2/13 Accomplishments 

Taylor Steele hosted the Greater Birmingham Volunteer Managers Association monthly meeting. 
Jennifer Sanders hosted a regular meeting of the Community Garden Coalition at The Gardens and is 
continuing to explore collaborative possibilities. 
Jennifer Sanders hosted the em ere in^ Young Leaders Droeram, a group of middle school-aged girls from 
various schools around the ciq:. This program is a service project of the Phi Iota Omega chapter of Alpha 
Kappa Alpha. The children and adults toured the Gardens, learned about native ecosystems, and assisted 
with trail maintenance as a part of their environmental learning unit. 
Hosted Earth Day at The Gardens 2013, drawing 550 participants. 

2012/13 Accomplishmentg 
Educational lectures and Gardens tours of at least one hour given by staff for students, garden dubs, 
professional associations, etc., totaled 2,086 participants, approximately equal to 2012/13. Presentations 
were made by a number of staff members. Examples include: 



August 22,201 3: Education Summary & Report 2012-1 3 

4 Jennifer Sanders presented at the annual VA Southeastern Blind Rehabilitation Center Veteran's 
Conference. 

4 Ellen Hardy spoke about The Gardens' education programs to the Kiwanis Club of Invemess, the 
Master Gardeners of Jefferson County and at the Birmingham City School Teacher Science 
\Vorkshops. 

4 Taylor Steele presented at the annual meeting of the Environmental Education Association of 
Alabama. 

4 Annual presentations at the Audubon Mountain Workshop in May by John Manion (Native 
Alabama Wildflowers) and Henry Hughes (fhparian Trees). Total audience was 80 adults and 
children for three hours per participant. 

Communitv Outreach 
These may range from one-time events with one partner to events conducted over a number of years with multiple 
community partners. 
20 12/13 Accom~lishments (a sam~linv'l 

Completed a 5-year project begun in 2008 with the Little and Red Mountain Garden Clubs (Garden Club of 
America chapters) to plant 1,000 trees in the City of Birmingham's George Ward Park. Seedlings were 
grown at The Gardens with seed collected from 100+ year-old park trees, which were ahve in 1925 when 
the park opened. The trees are native to the site and are generally not commercially available. Over 25 
volunteers and FOBBG staff participated. 
Participated in the celebration event in George Ward Park in April 2013 with the two participating garden 
clubs and the City of Birmingham. Councilwoman Valerie Abbott, Fred Spicer and Henry Hughes spoke. 
Collected -4,000 seeds to ensure 1,000 community trees for planting in 2011. Five hundred seedlings are 
available for plan titlg in fall 201 3. 
Potted 2,300 native tree seedlings with student-volunteers from the Arlington School in Birmingham in 
preparation for launching a larger community tree planting program in 2013/14. 
Taylor Steele conducted a 2-day education program, "hparian Stream Study," with one hundred 6th graders 
from North Jefferson Middle School at Turkey Creek Nature Preserve. 
Taylor Steele conducted 5 all-day classes for 260 students at Trussville Middle School on the leadership role 
of The Gardens in plant and water conservation. 
Henry Hughes led six off-site field classes on forest biomes for 80 students of environmental science from 
Homewood High School. 
Henry Hughes attended the Samford University senior biology seminar poster session, aslung students to 
explain their research results. (Professors request that community representatives attend to give the students 
the experience of articulating their research results in an extemporaneous setting.) 
90 Pel1 City High School 9th grade honors biology students were at The Gardens for a two-day botany field 
study. Taylor Steele was assisted by teacher Brad Wagauspack and Tom Diggs, adjunct professor at 
Birmingham-Southem College. 
50 students from the \V.J. Christian and Robertson Elementary Readers Club toured the Herb Terrace in 
conjunction to finishing their last book of the year Flutter, by Erin Moulton. 
45 students from Tuscaloosa Center for Technology toured the BBG potting shed and greenhouses, led by 
Taylor Steele and Henry Hughes. 
Taylor Steele and Henry Hughes led afternoon tours of The Gardens for Dr. Juan Lopez and hls 20 botany 
students from the University of Alabama. 
Taylor Steele and Henry Hughes provided a 2-hour tour of The Gardens to 30 docents from the University 
of Tennessee arboretum in Oak Ridge, TN. 



August 22,2013: Education Summary & Report 2012-13 

Plant Adventures 
Plant Adventures offers an evolving framework to explore the significance of people-plant interactions in 
promoting human well-being and the health of the planet. One role of the Birmingham Botanical Gardens is to 
facilitate such interaction in this unique urban plant space and in outreach to the community. 

Four programs, all offered free of charge to all participants, have been developed: 
J In the Zone to offer experiential opportunities in the Arrington Plant Adventure Zone outdoor 

classroom space. (231 participants in 2012/13) 
J Adventures in the Gardens to provide appropriately-adapted botanical education in The Gardens. 

Occasional golf cart tours are offered for people with genuine mobihty impairments. (498 
participants in 201 2/13) 

J Plant Adventures Student to provide hands-on opportunities to work and learn for youth and young 
adults in school-to-work transition programs. (Participants included in In the Zone for 2012/13) 

4 Outreach Adventures provides outreach educational experiences for children and adults in the 
community. (394 participants in 2012/13) 

201 2/13 Accom~lishments 
Provided appropriately-adapted botanical education to 1,117 participants from varied parts of the 
Birmingham community, including Children's Hospital, United Cerebral Palsy, Disabihty Rights and 
Resources, Glenwood, Triumph Services, P.E.E.R. Inc, Princeton Towers, Golden Living Trussville, 
Wenonah High School, Western Mental Health Center, Mount Royal Towers, UAB Psychiatric Services, 
and Kirkwood by the River. 
Collaborated with the Volunteer Coordinator to develop a program for inclusion volunteering at The 
Gardens to allow individuals with disabilities to engage in meaningful volunteer opportunities. 
Completed native plantings in the Enabling Garden. 
Continued working with the principles of universal design to improve the accessibility of The Gardens. 
Continued to develop appropriate, adaptable education materials for use with diverse groups both at The 
Gardens and in outreach in the community. 
Hosted a meeting with Glenwood and Triumph Services concerning increasing their participation in Plant 
Adventures (to a weekly basis. 
Visited Skyland Trail, a non-profit, community-based facility for mental health in Atlanta, with an intensive 
program in horticultural therapy, and the Atlanta Botanical Gardens. 
Attended the open house for the new Disability Rights and Resources center and suggested program ideas 
for how their consuiners might make use of the existing plantings. 
Created an ongoing poetry garden exhibit and recreated the classical seven-circuit labyrinth in the Arrington 
Plant Adventure Zone after numerous expressions of interest from people in the community. 

Funding 
Plant Adeventures-specific fundmg was provided by Publix Super Market Charities, Inc. and Hill Crest Foundation. 

Summer Intemshi~s 
Internships provide Alabama high school and college students or recent graduate with the opportunity to explore 
careers in public garden management. This effort tripled over that of 2011/12. 
201 2/13 Accomplishments 

Hosted the sixth consecutive Rotary Club of Shades Valley summer college intern. Ian Hazelhoff, a graduate 
of the University of the South, Sewanee, with a major in biology, was chosen from seven finalists 
representing six colleges and universities. Funding was provided with money raised at the annual Botanical 
Bash held at The Gardens. Ian's special project involved habitat restoration of Avondale Park, Birmingham. 



August 22.201 3: Education Summary & Report 201 2-1 3 

For the first time, a second college intern was added, funded by the Little and Red Mountain Garden Clubs 
and Birmingham-Southem College. Caroline Rowan, rising junior at Birmingham-Southem interned for ten 
weeks. Caroline's special project involved tree planting and herbaceous plant colonization in George Ward 
Park, Birmingham. 
Also for the first time a high school student interned. Reid Pearlman, rising senior at Vestavia High School, 
interned for ten weeks, receiving a small scholarshp from The Gardens upon completion. Reid assisted the 
two college interns and participated in a broad range of horticultural activities at The Gardens. 

Volunteer Proerams - 
Volunteers impact every aspect of The Gardens' operations and are essential to delivering education programs. 
Volunteers are critical to the success Discovery Field Trips, serving as facilitators, motivators and role models for 
over 10,000 school children every year. They also are indispensable in delivering outreach education and garden 
tours. 

Discoverv Fieldttib Promams. Outreach Education Events and Docent-Led Garden Touts 
201 2/13 Accom~lishments 

In 2012/13,300 individuals gave 5,641 hours to support education programs, clddren's summer camps, and 
education outreach. 
The Gardens' docents lead over 500 visitors interpreting many elements pertaining to the botanical, 
historical, and horticultural highlights of each garden. Docents are required to complete training sessions, 
held on a monthly basis with invited guest speakers, who provide valuable educational insight. 

Volunteer Develobment and Education Promammatic Develobment 
To maintain excellence in the delivery of adult and children's education programs, the following was provided to 
volunteers: 
Continuinv Education Classes for Discovery Field T ~ D  & Garden Docent Volunteers 

Launched plan for Discovery Field Trip Docents, Garden Docents and Plant Adventure Zone Volunteers 
to take up to 16 hours of free classes including, but not limited to, Certificate in Native Plant Studies 
Saturday classes and Alabama Cooperative Extension System classes. 

J Benefits indude increasing diversity among volunteers interested in botany but who may be on a 
limited budget (e.g., High School, College Student, Fixed/Low Income) 

J Participants assist with recruitment of new volunteers during classes. 
Opportunity for new Master Gardeners to continue horticulture/botany classes, and accrue 
volunteer hours for certification 

Weekend Program- - Spring, 201 3 
Get Into The Gardens! Saturday "family friendly" hands-on educational talks/activities given throughout 
The Gardens to inform, inspire and engage participants were launched. 

Sunday Scenes - Guided tours, geared to adults, showcasing specific gardens, or plants, based on seasons or 
docent interest were launched. 

and Professional Develo~ment - Spring 201 3 
Middle school project-based learning launched. 

Volunteer Coordinator Professional Develo~ment 
Taylor Steele completed training to be credentialed as a Certified Volunteer Administrator after submitting a 17 
page narrative on his duties as volunteer coordinator at The Gardens. 



August 22,2013: Education Summary & Report 2012-13 

Pattnetshir, Develo~ment  and Strategic Plan Imblementation 
In 2012/13 The Gardens continued to develop formal relationships with community partners for richer program 
development. Each partner vanes in its degree of involvement with education programs, however certain 
characteristics define all of them, such as: sharing and promoting our educational mission, sharing our values and 
ethics, enhancing our reputation, sharing resources (such as instructors and venues), deepening and broadening our 
separate and shared programs, and impacting our metrics positively. 

201 2/13 Accom~lishments 
Worked on significant partnership development with several key organizations: 
Birrnineham Audubon Society: Moved monthly meetings to The Gardens. 
Birmingham Parks & Recreation De~wtment: Collaborated on community tree planting. 
Central Alabama Science Educator's Exchanee: Taylor Steele became staff contact. 
Cornmunitv Garden Coalition for Birminnhm: Collaborated to develope formal agreement. 
Environmental Educators' Association of Alabama: Displayed at annual meeting for first time. 
Environmental Initiative of Alabama: Participated in process of renaming and redefining mission. 

Air Familv. Inc.: Increased number of and instruction in summer nature camps. 
Greater Birmin~ham Volunteer Manager's Association: Taylor Steele became certified; hosted meeting. 
Green Resource Center of Alabama: Developed series of "brown bag" lunch lectures. 
Jefferson C o u n u e  artrnent of Health: Developed series of public information posters. 
International Services Council (U.S. State Deoartmeno: Hosted garden tours (Africa). 
Junior Leame of Birmin am: Discovery Field Trip funding and docent leadership. 

Example of a partnership development (with Community Garden Coalition (CGC) for Birmingham): 
bueust 2012: Met members of the CGC at a film on agricultural soils hosted by The Gardens. 
Se~ternber 2012: Met with the board of the CGC about potential collaboration. 
October 2012: Participated in a regular meeting of t l~e  CGC at a community garden site. 
November 2012: Hosted a "meet & greet" for CGC at The Gardens with 30 attendees. 
Februarv 2013: Toured eight community gardens in east Birmingham with Laure Friedman. 
A~ril2013: Conducted Earth Day at the Gardens 2013 in partnership with the CGC . 
June 2013: Drew up partnership agreement (memorandum of understanding, signed on July 1,2013). 

In addrtion, The Gardens participated in the following activities supportive of community gardening: 
Hosted lecture by Felder Rushing, promoting his new book Garden Heam drawing 132 participants. 
Hosted a meeting with Jennifer Ropa and Mark Rubino from the Food Policy Council. 
Participated in a panel on the film 'Truck Farm" for the Sidewalk Film Series environmental series. 

Education Proetam Administration 
2012/13 Accom~lishments 

Monthly Education Summary Reports to the executive committee of the board of directors, begun in 
December 2010, have been submitted each month in database and narrative form. This provides a 
"snapshot" of the education program status, progress and plans. 
"Mission Minute," begun in 2012, is a brief summary of education program highlights delivered verbally to 
the board of ditectors at each monthly meeting. The education staff and other FOBBG staff tangentially 
related to the education program rotate in the delivery, highlighting one aspect of the program each month. 
This allows board members to know the staff and the programs that they represent better. 
The Education Committee meets monthly for approximately one hour to discuss the education program. 
Membership is comprised of education staff, members of The Gardens' board of directors, and members of 
the community involved in the educational programs. 



August 22.20 13: Education Summary & Report 201 2-1 3 

Pro~ram Summatv Date 
Following is the summary data &om the previous three years from which calculations within this report were made. 

BIRMINGHAM BOTANICAL GARDENS 
EDUCATION PROGRAMS 

THREE-YEAR SUMMARY: 2001 011 1 - 201 211 3 

ACADEMIC YEARS: 1 Julv - 30 June 201 0-1 1 201 1-1 2 201 2-1 3 

CHILDREN'S PROGRAMS 13,663 15,390 15,314 

ADULT PROGRAMS 8,57 1 10,185 10,868 

TOTAL ALL PROGRAMS - ALL AGES 22,234 25,575 26,182 

CHILDREN'S PROGRAMS 

- - - 

DISCOVERY FIELD TRIPS - SCHOOL TYPES 2010-1 1 201 1-1 2 201 2-1 3 

Urban Schools 6,645 6,654 6,260 

Suburban Schools (including OTM schools) 601 1 ,I 64 1 278 

Out-of County Schools 1,178 81 8 1894 

Other, Private, Parochial and Home Schools 1,243 1,420 720 

SUBTOTAL - DISCOVERY FIELD TRIPS 9,667 10,056 10,152 

OTHER ON-SITE CHILDREN'S PROGRAMS 201 0-1 1 201 1-1 2 201 2-1 3 

Discovery Backpack Program 597 668 698 

Better Basics M.O.R.E. Luncheons 485 525 500 

Children's Classes * 32 150 

Earth Day at The Gardens 450 430 250 

Garden Explorations 44 1 425 386 

Children's Summer Workshops 200 274 280 

"Plants: Try Itl" Girl Scout Project 215 152 198 

Various Events (Weekend Ed., Butterflies, etc.) 1 25 * 200 

Treasure Map (independent from DFT) * 70 570 

Guided Tour/Program (other than DFT) * 375 375 

Fresh Air Family Nature Camps 9 1 60 1 20 

Fresh Air Family Saturday Nature Hikes 300 41 6 250 

Birmingham Cultural Alliance Partnership 1 80 235 235 

SULTOTAL - OTHER ONIlTE CHILDREN'S PROGRAMS 3,084 3,662 4,212 

TOTAL ON-SITE CHILDREN'S PROGRAMS 1 2,751 13,718 14,364 

- 1 3 -  



August 22.201 3: Education Summary & Report 201 2-13 

OFF-SITE CHILDREN'S PROGRAMS 2010-1 1 201 1-1 2 2012-1 3 

Urban Forestry Fair 25 5 469 500 

Member Appreciation Day * 175 50 

Fishing Rodeo / Spring Fling 257 572 2 5 

Christmas Tree Lighting at Linn Park 150 * 50 

Salamander Festival 250 300 325 

Clover Crawl ** 156 * 
TOTAL OFF-SITE CHILDREN'S PROGRAMS 91 2 1,672 950 

ALL CHILDREN'S PROGRAMS 201 0-1 1 201 1-1 2 201 2-1 3 

DISCOVERY FIELD TRIPS 9,667 10,056 10,l 52 

OTHER ON-SITE PROGRAMS 3,084 3,662 4,2 1 2 

OFF-SITE PROGRAMS 91 2 1,672 950 

TOTAL PARTICIPATION CHILDREN'S PROGRAMS 13,663 15,390 15,314 

ADULT PROGRAMS 

PLANT ADVENTURES 2010-1 1 201 1-1 2 201 2-1 3 

Plant Adventures (Children & Adults) 365 937 1208 

SUBTOTAL PLANT ADVENTURES 365 937 1,208 

-- - - -- - - 

OTHER ON-SITE ADULT PROGRAMS 201 0-1 1 201 1-1 2 201 2-1 3 

Certificate in Native Plant Studies * 545 625 

Adult Classes and Workshops 1,870 2,372 1,062 

Southern Tales 325 302 289 
Discovery Field Trips 1,350 1,408 1,436 

Docent Training Program 21 0 208 235 

Docent Led Garden Tours / College Cultural Passport * 1101 1727 

Spencer Lecture 243 30 1 33 1 

Celebrity Lectures (includes Antiques' speakers) 595 365 345 

Earth Day at The Gardens 1 00 120 250 

Various Events (US State Dept., Weekend Ed., etc.) 50 * 470 

Teacher Workshops 25 * 25 

"Plants: Try-It!" Girl Scout Proied 80 60 76 

Birmingham Cultural Alliance Partnership 25 25 25 

Garden Explorations 6 3 40 85 

Fresh Air Family Saturday Nature Hikes 178 1 85 250 

SUB-TOTAL OTHER ON-SITE ADULT PROGRAMS 5,114 7,032 7,23 1 



August 22,2013: Education Summary & Report 2012-1 3 

OFF-SITE ADULT PROGRAMS 20141 1 201 1-1 2 201 2-13 

Member Appreciation Day * 2 0 1 00 

Teacher Workshops * 40 25 

Other 200 * 21 8 

SUB-TOTAL OFF-SITE ADULT PROGRAMS 200 60 343 

CONFERENCES & MEETINGS 2010-1 1 201 1-1 2 201 2-1 3 

Botanical Gardens, Colleges & Universities 150 479 298 

Environmental Orgs. & Professional Associations 300 130 298 

Horticultural Orgs. & Societies, Master Gardeners 

Garden Clubs 

Civic Organizations & Government 

Other 

Environmental 8 Horticultural Conferences 595 41 0 298 

SUBTOTAL CONF. & MEETINGS 2,892 2,156 2,086 

ALL ADULT PROGRAMS 201 41 1 201 1-1 2 201 2-1 3 

PLANT ADVENTURES (Includes about 25% children) 365 937 1,208 

OTHER ON-SITE PROGRAMS 5,l 14 7,032 7,23 1 

OFF-SITE PROGRAMS 200 60 343 

CONFERENCES 8 MEETINGS 2,892 2,156 2,086 

TOTAL PARTICIPATION ADULT PROGRAMS 8,571 10,185 10,868 

VOLUNTEER 201 1-12 201 2-1 3 

PARTICIPATION * #VOLS HOURS #VOLS HOURS 

EDUCATION PROGRAMS 250 5,524 300 5,64 1 

TOTAL VOLUNTEER PARTICIPATION 250 5,524 300 5,64 1 

* The average education volunteer worked: 

22 hours in 201 0-1 1 (230 volunteers worked 4,981 hours) 

22 hours in 201 1-1 2 (250 volunteers worked 5,524 hours) 

19 hours in 201 2-1 3 (300 volunteers worked 5,641 hours) 

261 2 Ime Park Road 
B i g h a m ,  Alabama 35223 

205.414.3950 bbgudcns.org 
- 15 - 



IRESOLUTION NO. 2013-167 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that 
either the Mayor or the City Manager of the City is hereby authorized and directed, for and on 
behalf of the City, to enter into a contract with the Birmingham Botanical Society subject to such 
minor changes as may be determined appropriate by the City Attorney, a copy of which contract 
is attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

ADOPTED: This 12th day of November 20 13. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 12th day of November 20 13. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby 
certify the above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the 
City of Mountain Brook at its meeting held on November 12,2013, as same appears in the 
minutes of record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Authorize execution of Birmingham Botanical Society contract 



CONTRACT FOR SERVICES 
Fiscal Year 2014 

This contract for services ("Contract") is entered into by and between City of Mountain 
Brook, an Alabama municipal corporation ("City") and the Birmingham Museum of Art, a non- 
profit corporation organized under the laws of the State of Alabama ("Contractor"). 

Whereas, City desires to increase the learning opportunities for students in its school 
system; and 

Whereas, Contractor has developed certain programs, exhibitions and learning laboratories 
which, in City's opinion, will be helpful and instructive to such students; and 

Whereas, such programs, exhibitions and learning laboratories are not available in the 
Mountain Brook school system; and 

Whereas, City has agreed to pay Contractor the sum of thirteen thousand dollars 
($13,000.00) in consideration of Contractor providing City the services referred to in this 
Contract. 

Now, therefore, in consideration of the premises and in consideration of the covenants and 
agreements contained herein, City and Contractor hereby agree as follows: 

1. City shall pay to Contractor the sum of thirteen thousand dollars ($13,000.00), upon 
execution of this contract for services for one year from the date of execution. 

2. In consideration of the payment of the Contract Funds as provided herein, Contractor shall 
provide at least the following services to City ("Services"): 

a. Contractor will continue to provide, free of charge, tours of the permanent 
collection to all students in the Mountain Brook Education system. 

b. Teachers of the Mountain Brook school system will be permitted to attend 
teacher-training seminars and special in-service workshops conducted by 
Contractor. In addition, teachers will have access without charge to materials in 
the Contractor's Teacher Resource Center. The Contractor will also make Culture 
Cases, poster sets, and other educational materials available to teachers for 
curriculum enhancement. Teachers also have the option for interdisciplinary 
museum tours and studio classes. These offerings focus on the Museum's 
permanent collection and complement and enhance core curricula of language 
arts, social studies, science and math. Tours may include hand-on art lessons that 
tie into these various curricula. 



c. Contractor will offer the opportunity for an art-making outreach program 
onsite at a Mountain Brook City school or Emmet O'Neal Library targeting 
elementary, middle school and high school students. 

d. During each year of the term of this Contract, Contractor will make 
available a series of lectures and other programs relating to the Museum's 
permanent collection and special exhibitions as a part of the programs 
conducted by the Emmet O'Neal Library, or other locations, in the City of 
Mountain Brook. 

e. The City will have the opportunity to host one "Mountain Brook Night" at 
the Museum, during the year of its contract for services. Museum rental fee 
will be waived for the event (overhead charges for security and catering will 
be the responsibility of the City). 

3. Contractor shall provide the personnel, supplies, equipment and expertise necessary 
to fulfill its obligations under this Contract. Contractor is an independent contractor 
and none of its agents or employees shall be deemed to be under the control of City 
nor shall any of the agents, or employees of other persons, firms or corporations 
conducting business for or on behalf of Contractor be deemed to be agents or 
employees df City. 

4. Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the City and its agents, employees 
and elected officials, from and against all actions, causes of action, claims, 
demands, damages, losses and expenses of any kind, including but not limited to 
attorneys' fees and court costs, which may be asserted against, or suffered by, City 
or its agents and employees arising out of, or in connection with: (a) the 
performance, or attempted performance, by Contractor or its agents or employees 
of Contractor's obligations under this Contract; and (b) any claim that the Contract 
Funds were improperly paid by City to Contractor. 

Contractor agrees to employ accounting procedures which are appropriate to the 
types of operations conducted by Contractor and which are customary to similar 
operations. All financial records and other documents pertaining to this Contract 
shall be maintained by Contractor for a period of three (3) years after the expiration 
or termination of this Contract. City shall have full access to, and the right to 
examine, any of such financial records and other documents at all reasonable times 
during the term of this Contract and during said three-year period. Contractor 
agrees that upon request from the City, Contractor will submit to, and cooperate 
with, periodic audits by the Alabama Department of Public Examiners or other 
audit procedures requested by the City. 

6 .  If Contractor fails to comply with the provisions of this Contract, such failure shall 
constitute a default under this Contract and, unless corrected by Contractor within 
thirty (30) days following receipt of written notice from City of such 



default, shall be deemed a breach of this Contract and City shall have a right to 
terminate this Contract by giving Contractor twelve (12) days prior written notice 
of such termination, and City shall not be obligated to make any additional 
payments to Contractor. Such termination of this Contract by City shall not 
relieve Contractor of any of its obligations or liabilities to City under the 
provisions of paragraph 4 of this Contract, whether such obligations or liabilities 
occur or accrue before or after the termination of this Contract. 

In witness whereof, the Birmingham Museum of Art has caused this Contract to 
be executed by its duly authorized Director and City of Mountain Brook has caused this 
Contract to be executed by its duly authorized Mayor, all a s f  the - day of 

,2013. 

ATTEST: Birmingham Museum of Art 

By: By: 
Secretary Its Director 

ATTEST: City of Mountain Brook 

By: By: 
City Clerk Its Mayor 



RESOLUTION NO. 2013-168 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that 
either the Mayor or the City Manager of the City is hereby authorized and directed, for and on 
behalf of the City, to enter into a contract with the Birmingham Museum of Art subject to such 
minor changes as may be determined appropriate by the City Attorney, a copy of which contract 
is attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

ADOPTED: This 12th day of November 20 13. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 12th day of November 20 13. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby 
certify the above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the 
City of Mountain Brook at its meeting held on November 12,2013, as same appears in the 
minutes of record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Authorize execution of Birmingham Museum of Art contract 2013-168 



September 27,201 3 

B I R M I N G HAM 
M US EU M OFART 

Sam Gaston 
City of Mountain Brook 
P O  Box 130009 
Mountain Brook, AL 35213 

ZOO0 Kec. Ahraha~n Woods. Jr. Blrd 
Liirnitiphrm. * I r b a l ~ r  352111-1278 
"I. ~05.254.1565 F A X  105.154.2il4 
w ~ ~ ~ r v . ~ r t s b m a . o r g  

O n  behalf of the Birmingham Museum of Art, I would like to sincerely thank you, Mayor Oden, and the 
Mountain Brook City Council for their generous support of our educational programming. The signed 
contract is enclosed. 

The Museum has been an integral part of Birmingham's cultural fabric for over a half century. We are 
committed to providing an unparalleled cultural and educational experience to you, your citizens, and the 
thousands of individuals who visit the Museum each year. Your support reflects your commitment to help us 
enrich the quality of life for your citizens and we are grateful for die role that you have taken in creating 
access to the arts, recognizing the positive role that our museum plays in building strong communities. 

After the first of the year, Madeleine Walker, our Development Manager for Grants & Proposals, will be 
requesting to be put on the agenda to formally thank the City for its ongoing support and to talk about some 
of exciting thmgs we have coming up at the Museum in 2014. 

, 

Gail Andrcws 
The R. Hugh Daniel Director 
205.254.2855 / gandrews@artsbma.org 

EXPLORE THE WORLD 1 DISCOVER YOURSELF 



CONTRACT FOR SERVICES 
Fiscal Year 2014 

This contract for services ("Contract") is entered into by and between City of 
Mountain Brook, an Alabama municipal corporation ("City") and the Birmingham 
Museum of Art, a non-profit corporation organized under the laws of the State of 
Alabama ("Contractor"). 

Whereas, City desires to increase the learning opportunities for students in its 
school system; and 

Whereas, Contractor has developed certain programs, exhibitions and learning 
laboratories which, in City's opinion, will be helpful and instructive to such students; and 

Whereas, such programs, exhibitions and learning laboratories are not available in 
the Mountain Brook school system; and 

Whereas, City has agreed to pay Contractor the sum of thirteen thousand dollars 
($13,000.00) in consideration of Contractor providing City the services referred to in this 
Contract. 

Now, therefore, in consideration of the premises and in consideration of the 
covenants and agreements contained herein, City and Contractor hereby agree as follows: 

1. City shall pay to Contractor the sum of thirteen thousand dollars ($1 3,000.00), 
upon execution of this contract for services for one year from the date of 
execution. 

2. In consideration of the payment of the Contract Funds as provided herein, 
Contractor shall provide at least the following services to City ("Services"): 

a. Contractor will continue to provide, free of charge, tours of the permanent 
collection to all students in the Mountain Brook Education system. 

b. Teachers of the Mountain Brook school system will be permitted to attend 
teacher-training seminars and special in-service workshops conducted by 
Contractor. In addition, teachers will have access without charge to 
materials in the Contractor's Teacher Resource Center. The Contractor 
will also make Culture Cases, poster sets, and other educational materials 
available to teachers for curriculum enhancement. Teachers also have the 
option for interdisciplinary museum tours and studio classes. These 
offerings focus on the Museum's permanent collection and complement 
and enhance core curricula of language arts, social studies, science and 
math. Tours may include hand-on art lessons that tie into these various 
curricula. 



c. Contractor will offer the opportunity for an art-making outreach program 
onsite at a Mountain Brook City school or Ernmet OYNeal Library 
targeting elementary, middle school and high school students. 

d. During each year of the term of this Contract, Contractor will make 
available a series of lectures and other programs relating to the Museum's 
permanent collection and special exhibitions as a part of the programs 
conducted by the Emmet OYNeal Library, or other locations, in the City of 
Mountain Brook. 

e. The City will have the opportunity to host one "Mountain Brook Night" at 
the Museum, during the year of its contract for services. Museum rental 
fee will be waived for the event (overhead charges for security and 
catering will be the responsibility of the City). 

3. Contractor shall provide the personnel, supplies, equipment and expertise 
necessary to fblfill its obligations under this Contract. Contractor is an 
independent contractor and none of its agents or employees shall be deemed to be 
under the control of City nor shall any of the agents, or employees of other 
persons, fums or corporations conducting business for or on behalf of Contractor 
be deemed to be agents or employees of City. 

4. Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the City and its agents, employees 
and elected officials, from and against all actions, causes of action, claims, 
demands, damages, losses and expenses of any kind, including but not limited to 
attorneys' fees and court costs, which may be asserted against, or suffered by, 
City or its agents and employees arising out of, or in connection with: (a) the 
performance, or attempted performance, by Contractor or its agents or employees 
of Contractor's obligations under this Contract; and (b) any claim that the 
Contract Funds were improperly paid by City to Contractor. 

5. Contractor agrees to employ accounting procedures which are appropriate to the 
types of operations conducted by Contractor and which are customary to similar 
operations. All financial records and other documents pertaining to this Contract 
shall be maintained by Contractor for a period of three (3) years after the 
expiration or termination of this Contract. City shall have full access to, and the 
right to examine, any of such financial records and other documents at all 
reasonable times during the term of this Contract and during said three-year 
period. Contractor agrees that upon request from the City, Contractor will submit 
to, and cooperate with, periodic audits by the Alabama Department of Public 
Examiners or other audit procedures requested by the City. 

6. If Contractor fails to comply with the provisions of this Contract, such failure 
shall constitute a default under this Contract and, unless corrected by Contractor 
within thirty (30) days following receipt of written notice from City of such 



default, shall be deemed a breach of this Contract and City shall have a right to 
terminate this Contract by giving Contractor twelve (1 2) days prior written notice 
of such termination, and City shall not be obligated to make any additional 
payments to Contractor. Such termination of this Contract by City shall not 
relieve Contractor of any of its obligations or liabilities to City under the 
provisions of paragraph 4 of this Contract, whether such obligations or liabilities 
occur or accrue before or after the termination of this Contract. 

In witness whereof, the Birmingham Museum of Art has caused this Contract to 
be executed by its duly authorized Director and City of Mountain Brook has caused this 
Contract to be executed by its duly authorized Mayor, all as of the - day of , 
2013. 

ATTEST: 

Secretary 

ATTEST: 

City Clerk 

Birmingham Museum of Art 

BY 
Its Director 

City of Mountain Brook 

BY 
Its Mayor 



Mountain Brook Statistics - Fiscal Year 2012-2013 (July 1,2012 -June 30,2013) 

Students Benefitted 

Total: 475 Youth 

45 
60 
78 
80 
90 
122 

Total: 38 Youth 

38 

Total: 85 Youth 

85 

Total: 0 Youth 

N/A 

Adults Benefitted 

Total: 69 Adults 

15 
20 
2 
12 
12 
8 

Total: 4 Adults 

4 

Total: 3 Teachers 

1 Teacher 

2 Teachers 

Total: 1 Teacher 

1 Teacher 

Total: 0 Adults 

N/A 

Criteria 

List of tours with attendance for Mountain Brook schools 

Crestline Elementary School 
Crestline Elementary School 

Brookwood Forest Elementary School 
Cherokee Bend Elementary School 

Mountain Brook Elementary School 
Crestline Elementary School 

List of tours with attendance for any groups based in Mountain Brook 

N. E. Miles Jewish Day School 

Number of attendees to teacher training seminars and teacher in-service 
workshops. 

Mountain Brook Junior High School (Using Visual Arts to Encourage 
Thinking & Writlng) 

Crestline Elementary School (Kalediometria) 
List of classrooms and teachers who used educational materials (culture 
cases, teacher resource center materials, posters, etc.) 

Cherokee Bend School (Meredith Attar) 

List of Studio Classes for Mountain Brook Schools 

Date of Program 

11.15.12 
11.16.12 
11.29.12 
12.18.U 
12.21.12 
5.16.13 

1.2.13 

2.7.13 

5.2.13 

2.19.13 

N/A 



Mountain Brook Statistics - Fiscal Year 2012-2013 (July 1,2012 -June 30,2013) 

Any art-making outreach through Emmet O'Neal Library 

Any lectures or programs related to the collection that occurred in 
Mountain Brook (i.e. at the library) 

Number of students/people in the 35213 and 35233 zip codes who 
attended studio classes 

Number of students/people in the 35213 and 35233 zip codes who 
attended art camp 

Number of students/people in the 35213 and 35233 zip codes who were 
involved in the Teen Program 

Number of students/people in the 35213 and 35233 zip codes who were 
involved in the Ambassador Program 

Number of students/people in the 35213 and 35233 zip codes who were 
involved in Student Exhibitions 

Youth Art Month 2013 
Visions: The Civil War in Symbolic Images 

N/A 

N/A 

3.3.13 
5.13 

MB Total 
Benefitted FY 

, 2012-2013 

Total: 0 Adults 

N/A 

Total: 0 Adults 

N/A 

Total: 4 Adults 

Total: 0 Adults 

Total: 0 Adults 

Total: 4 Adults 

Total: 0 Adults 

85 Adults 

Total: 0 Youth 

N/A 

Total: 0 Youth 

N/A 

Total: 7 Youth 

Total: 50 Youth 

Total: 0 Youth 

Total: 0 Youth 

Total: 32 Youth 

2 Youth 
30 Youth 

687 Youth 



RESOLUTION NO. 2013-169 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that 
either the Mayor or the City Manager of the City is hereby authorized and directed, for and on 
behalf of the City, to enter into an agreement with the Alabama Veterans' Memorial Foundation, 
in the form as attached hereto as Exhibit A, subject to such minor changes as may be determined 
appropriate by the City Attorney. 

ADOPTED: This 12th day of November 20 13. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 12th day of November 2013. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby 
certify the above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the 
City of Mountain Brook at its meeting held on November 12,2013, as same appears in the 
minutes of record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Alabama Veterans' Memorial Foundation 



CONTRACT FOR SERVICES 

This Contract for Services ("Contract") is entered into between the City of Mountain 
Brook, an Alabama municipal corporation ("City") and the Alabama Veterans Memorial 
Foundation ("Foundation"). 

WHEREAS, the City desires to promote learning opportunities and resources for its 
citizens; and 

WHEREAS, the Foundation provides educational resources to the citizens of the City by 
operating and maintaining a park which honors Alabama veterans; and 

WHEREAS, the City has determined that it is in the public interest to engage the 
Foundation in order .lo assist in the development and promotion of said educational resources. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and in consideration of the 
covenants and agreements contained herein, the City and the Foundation hereby agree as 
follows: 

1. This contract shall be effective on the 1st day of October, 2013, and will 
continue in effect until September 30, 2014, unless terminated sooner by either party. 

2. The City shall pay to the Foundation the sum of One Thousand Dollars 
($1,000.00) upon execution of this contract for services. 

3. In consideration of the ayment of the funds as provided herein, the f Foundation shall provide at least the fol owing services to the City ("Services"): 

a. The Foundation will continue to operate and maintain the Alabama Veterans 
Memorial Park so that the park will remain a symbol of our servicemen's and 
servicewomen's dedication to their country. 

b. The Foundation will provide educational resources to the citizens of the City 
through the Alabama Veterans Memorial Park that will not only teach the high 
cost of war, but celebrate peace and democracy. 

4. The Foundation shall rovide the personnel, supplies, equipment, and expertise 
necessary to fulfill its obligations un f er this Contract. The Foundation is an independent 
contractor and none of its agents or employees shall be deemed to be under the control of the 
City, nor shall any of the agents or employees of other persons, f m s ,  or corporations conducting 
business for or on behalf of the Foundation be deemed to be agents or employees of the City. 

5 .  The Foundation shall indemnify and hold harmless the City and its agents, 
employees, and elected officials, from and against any and all actions, causes of actions, 
claims, demands, damages, losses, and expenses of any kind, including but not limited to 
attorney's fees and court cost, which may be asserted against, or suffered by, the City or its 
agents and employees arising out of, or in connection with: (a) the performance or attempted 
performance, by the Foundation or its agents or employees of the Foundation's obligations under 
this Contract; and (b) any claim that the Con- Funds were improperly paid by the City to the 
Foundation. 



6 .  The Foundation agrees to employ accounting procedures which are appropriate to 
the types of opemtions conducted by the Foundation and which are customary to similar operations. All financial 
records and other documents pertaining to this Contract shall be maintained by the Foundation for a period of 
three (3) years after the expiration or termination of this Contract The City shall have fill access to, and the 
right to examine any of such financial records and other documents at all reasonable times during the term of 
this Contract and during said threeyear period. The Foundation agrees that upon request fiom the City, the 
Foundation will submit to, and COO- with, periodic audits by the Alabama w e n t  of Public Examiners 
or other audit procedures requested by the City. 

7. If the Foundation fds to comply with the provisions of this Contract, such failure 
shall constitute a defiult under this Contract and, unless c o w e d  by the Foundation within thirty (30) days 
following receipt of written notice h m  City of such defiult, shall be deemed a breach ofthis Contmt and 
the City shall have the right to terminate this C o n W  by giving the Foundation twelve (12) days prior written 
notice of such t e w o n .  Such termination ofthis Contract by the City shall not relieve the Foundation of 
any of its obligations or liabilities to the City under the provisions of paragraph 4 of this Contract, whether 
such obligations or liabilities occur or accrue before or after the termination of this Contract. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Alabama Veterans Memorial Foundation has caused this 
Contract to be executed by its duly authorized Executive Director on the day of 

,2013 and the City of Mountain Brook has caused this Contract to be executed 
by its duly authorized Mayor, on the day of ,2013. 

ALABAMA VETERANS 
MEMORIAL FOUNDATION 

By: 
Its: Executive Director 

ATTEST: 
ALABAMA 

Steven Boone, City Clerk 

CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, 

By: Lawrence T. Oden 
Its: Mayor 



Monday, September 30, 201 3 
Alabama Veterans Memorial.qdfrn - AVMF checking 

Page: 1 

Register Listing 
9/1 /I 3 through 9/30/13 

Date Num Split Line Transaction 

9/3/13 DEP Donation 
StepStone Donations Anna Alldredge/Alfred H. Steve ... 
StepStone Donations Wendi Boyen/Richard E. Boyen ... 
StepStone Donations Wendi Boyen/Paul D. Ward, Sr 
StepStone Donations Wendi Boyen/Paul D. Ward Jr 
StepStone Donations Wendi Boyen/Michael P. Ward 
StepStone Donations Wendi Boyen/Joseph P. Hullar 
StepStone Donations Steve Daughtry/Charles E. Dau ... 
StepStone Donations Kent Palcanis/Donald E. Everet ... 
StepStone Donations Kent Palcanis/James R. O'Brion 

Payment R Deposit Balance - 
900.00 33,277.88 
100.00 
100.00 
100.00 
100.00 
100.00 
100.00 
100.00 
100.00 
100.00 

DEP Donation 
StepStone Donations Roger BaldwinCharles T. Barr 
StepStone Donations Roger Baldwin/ Donald R. Rice 
StepStone Donations Roger Baldwin/Harry E. Barr 

DEP 

DEP 

Donation 
Gloria WatsodMack B Puckett 
StepStone Donations 

Donation 
StepStone Donations Stella GambleMarvin B. lngram 
Stepstone Donations StellaGamble/Robert R. INgram 
StepStone Donations Stella Gamble/Clarence W. Ing ... 
StepStone Donations Ronnie D. Maddox/Sherry M. M... 

DEP Donation 
Ridout's Valley Chapel for gdf . . . 
Private Donations 

Water Works 
Utilities 

Alabama Power 
Utilities 

Landscape Workshop 
Grounds Keeping Service 
Maintenance 

Angelia Mance 
McFarland Consulting 
Education Program 

AT&T 
Utilities 



Monday, September 30, 201 3 
Alabama Veterans Mernorial.qdfm - AVMF checking 

lncome Statement 
9/1/13 through 9/30/13 

9 / 1 / 1 3 -  
Category 9 / 3 0 / 1 3  

Income/Expenses 
Income 

Private Donations 280.00 
Stepstone Donations 1,700.00 

Total Income 1,980.00 

Expenses 
Education Program 500.00 
Maintenance 250.00 
Utilities 196.56 

Total Expenses 946.56 

Page: 1 

Total Income/Expenses 1 ,0 3 3 . 4 4  



Monday, September 30, 201 3 
Alabama Veterans MemoriaLqdfm - AVMF checking 

lncome Statement 
10/1/12 through 9/30/13 

Category 
- 

Income/Expenses 
lncome 

City of Birmingham Donation 
City of Mountain Brook Donation 
Col Robert Howard, MOH Project 
lnsurance Premium Refund 
Private Donations 
Stepstone Donations 
Yes, We Remember Campaign 

Total lncome 

Expenses 
Bank Charges 
Education Program 
Events Costs 
lnsurance 
Maintenance 
Marketing Costs 
Office Lease 
Registration 
Stepstone Costs 
Taxes 
Utilities 

Total Expenses 

Total Income/Expenses 

Page: 1 



Page 1 of 1 

A / 3 -  I 70  
Sam Gaston 

From: Linda Nelson 
Sent: Thursday, October 31,201 3 3:39 PM 

To: Sam Gaston 
Subject: Annual report for 2013 

Hi, Sam-- 

Sorry for the delay but I'm struggling to get out of town for the week-end and had to finish up some 
critical things. I'm so glad you caught me the other day about the annual report. 

As you know, the activities of the Jefferson County Historical Commission don't change much from 
year to year, especially now that our funding is so limited. In keeping with the terms of our contract 
with the City of Mountain Brook, I can report that we have continued to: 

Review applications for the award historic markers to applicants throughout the County, some of 
which have been in Mountain Brook. 
Participate in programs related to historic preservation and historic house research, the latter in 
association with the Birmingham Library. 
Finish up the programming for the digitization of our marker register to make it available on-line 
to the public. 
Participate with the Vulcan Park Association in conducting walking tours in the historic districts. 
In the year coming up, we will be directing a tour of Mountain Brook Village. 
Maintain our traditional availability to the public for inquiries into local history; resources for 
building, historical and genealogical research; information and assistance with the various tax 
advantages and programs associated with historic properties; and being a general switchboard 
for putting people and resources together. 
Review the historic resources at sites planned for communications towers, as requested by 
environmental organizations. 

I have not at this point had the time to  give you actual counts of markers and so forth, but if the 
Council would like that I will do it when I return to Birmingham next week. 

Again, please express the Commission's gratitude for Mountain BrooKs good support for our efforts. 
At this time it is even more critical than ever. 

Many thanks, 

Linda Nelson, Executive Secretary 
Jefferson County Historical Commission 



RESOLUTION NO. 2013-170 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that either the 
Mayor or the City Manager of the City is hereby authorized and directed, for and on behalf of the City, to 
enter into an agreement with the Jefferson County Historical Commission, in the form as attached hereto 
as Exhibit A, subject to such minor changes as may be determined appropriate by the City Attorney. 

ADOPTED: This 12th day of November 2013. 

- -- 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 12th day of November 2013. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby certify 
the above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Mountain Brook at its meeting held on November 12,2013, as same appears in the minutes of record of 
said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Jefferson County Historical Commission 



This Contract for Services ("Contract") is entered into between the City of Mountain Brook, an 
Alabama municipal corporation ("City") and the Jefferson County Historical Commission 
("Commission"). 

WHEREAS, the Commission was established in 1971 by a act of the Alabama Legislature; and 

WHEREAS, the Commission sponsors publications on Jefferson County history and works with 
other organizations and agencies to further historic preservation and the documentation and protection of 
the historic resources of the City of Mountain Brook. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and in consideration of the covenants and 
agreements contained herein, the City and the Commission hereby agree as follows: 

1. This contract shall be effective on the 1st day of October, 2013, ,and will continue in 
effect until September 30, 2014, unless terminated sooner by either party. 

2. The City shall pay to the Commission the sum of One Thousand Dollars ($1,000.00), 
upon execution of this contract for services. 

3. In consideration of the payment of the contract fund as provided herein, the Commission 
shall provide at least the following services to the City ("Services"): 

a. The Commission, through its Historic Marker Program, shall identify and recognize 
houses, commercial, or public buildings, churches, and sites of historic interest and 
integrity, encouraging the preservation of these historically important places. 

b. The Commission shall sponsor publications on Jefferson County history and 
cooperate with property owners, historical societies and authors in the publication of 
books, videotapes and audiotapes concerning the City of Mountain Brook and 
Jefferson County. 

c. The Commission shall furnish information concerning advantages of 
preservation/restoration and provide assistance for architectural/preservation/ design 
interns, teachers, students, and other citizen groups. 

d. The Commission shall furnish speakers for civic clubs, parent-teacher associations, 
and school groups about history and historic preservation and its importance to the 
past, present, and future. 

4. The Commission shall provide the personnel, supplies, equipment, and expertise 
necessary to hlfill its obligations under this Contract. The Commission is an independent contractor and 
none of its agents or employees shall be deemed to be under the control of the City, nor shall any of the 
agents or employees of other persons, firms, or corporations conducting business for or on behalf of the 
Commission be deemed to be agents or employees of the City. 



5 .  The Commission shall indemnify and hold harmless the City and its agents, employees, 
and elected officials, from and against any and all actions, causes of actions, claims, demands, damages, 
losses, and expenses of any kind, including but not limited to attorney's fees and court cost, which may be 
asserted against, or suffered by, the City or its agents and employees arising out of, or in connection with: 
(a) the performance or attempted performance, by the Commission or its agents or employees of the 
Commission's obligations under this Contract; and (b) any claim that the Contract Funds were improperly 
paid by the City to the Commission. 

6 .  The Commission agrees to employ accounting procedures which are appropriate to the 
types of operations conducted by the Commission and which are customary to similar operations. All 
financial records and other documents pertaining to this Contract shall be maintained by the Commission 
for a period of three (3) years after the expiration or termination of this Contract. The City shall have full 
access to, and the right to examine any of such financial records and other documents at all reasonable 
times during the term of this Contract and during said three-year period. The Commission agrees that 
upon request from the City, the Commission will submit to, and cooperate with, periodic audits by the 
Alabama Department of Public Examiners or other audit procedures requested by the City. 

7. If the Commission fails to comply with the provisions of this Contract, such failure shall 
constitute a default under this Contract and, unless corrected by the Commission within thirty (30) days 
following receipt of written notice from City of such default, shall be deemed a breach of this Contract 
and the City shall have the right to terminate this Contract by giving the Commission twelve (12) days 
prior written notice of such termination. Such termination of this Contract by the City shall not relieve 
the Commission of any of its obligations or liabilities to the City under the provisions of paragraph 4 of 
this Contract, whether such obligations or liabilities occur or accrue before or after the termination of this 
Contract. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Jefferson County Historical Commission has caused this 
Contract to be executed by its duly authorized Executive Director on the day of 

2 0  13 and the City of Mountain Brook has caused this Contract to be executed 
by its duly authorized representative, on the d a y  of ,2013. 

ATTEST: JEFFERSON COUNTY HISTORICAL 
COMMISSION 

By: 

Its: 

ATTEST: CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 

By: Lawrence T. Oden 
Its: Mayor 



May 7,201 3 

Mr. Sam Gaston 
City of Mountain Brook 
56 Church Street 
P.O. Box 13009 
Mountain Brook, AL 3 52 13 

Dear Mountain Brook City Council: 

Thank you very much for your generous donation for the 2012-201 3 school year. With 
y o u  support, The Exceptional Foundation continues to provide mentally andlor 
physically challenged individuals a place to socialize, play games, participate in sports, 
and most importantly, a place where they "fit in." 

The Exceptional Foundation is a non-profit organization that strives to meet the social 
and recreational needs of the mentally andlor physically challenged population of the 
greater Birmingham area. We offer a variety of programs that improve the quality of life 
for over 350 exceptional people and their families. The overall daily goal of The 
Exceptional Foundation is to enhance the lives of its participants through a variety of 
activities but, more importantly, provides a community for mentally challenged 
individuals. This enables them to achieve normalized social development and greater 
self-confidence. These services are offered both during and after school hours, along 
with an eight-week summer day camp. 

The Exceptional Foundation serves a growing number of residents of the City of 
Mountain Brook in its various year-round programs. During this past year 
individuals fiom the Mountain Brook School System participated in our volunteer 
program to receive community service hours. Each summer, The Exceptional 
Foundation employs Mountain Brook High School graduates as counselors. During 
Youth Basketball in the fall each year, many Mountain Brook community leaders and 
residents serve as assistant coaches. The ion also participates in the 
Career Cooperative Education program wi k High School students. The 
Exceptional Foundation respectfully r The City of Mountain 
Brook for the 2013-2014 year. 

support, 

ricia Kirk 
Executive Director 

1616 Chmwa Rasd 
7' 

Binninghsm. Alabama 35209 
Pharo. (205) 870-0776 
Fax: (205) 871-2555 



RESOLUTION NO. 2013-171 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that 
either the Mayor or the City Manager of the City is hereby authorized and directed, for and on 
behalf of the City, to enter into a contract with the Exceptional Foundation, subject to such minor 
changes as may be determined appropriate by the City Attorney, a copy of which contract is 
attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

ADOPTED: This 12th day of November 20 13. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 12th day of November 20 13. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby 
certify the above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the 
City of Mountain Brook at its meeting held on November 12,2013, as same appears in the 
minutes of record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Authorize execution of Exceptional Foundation contract 



STATE OF ALABAMA 

JEFFERSON COUNTY 

WITNESS this contract entered into this 2gR day of October 2013, by and between the City 
of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereinafter referred to as "City", and the Exceptional Foundation, Federal 
ID # 63-1096855 hereinafter referred to as "Contractor": 

WHEREAS, Contractor is a duly incorporated non-profit corporation, incorporated under the 
laws of the State of Alabama 

WHEREAS, Contractor has agreed to accept a General Fund appropriation fiom City 
hereinafter designated and to thereafter perform in consideration thereof, the herein described public services 
and the provisions of this contract: 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above premises and consideration of mutual 
covenants and agreements contained herein, the parties hereto do hereby agree, covenant and contract as 
follows: 

I. For the fiscal year ending September 30,2014, City will pay to Contractor the following 
amount: $8,000. 

2. That upon receipt by Contractor of the contract funds contemplated herein, Contractor 
shall be responsible for providing the personnel, supplies, equipment and expertise necessary to comply with 
all provisions, stipulations, terms and conditions of this contract. 

3. Contractor is an independent contractor and none of its agents, servants or employees shall 
be deemed to be under control of City nor in any way shall any of its agents, servants or employees or other 
persons, firms or corporations conducting business for Contractor be deemed to be employees or agents, 
servants or employees of City. 

4. Contractor shall indemnify and save City safe and harmless from any claims made by any 
person, firm or corporation against City for injury to property or person arising directly or indirectly out of any 
activity or pursuit of Contractor, which said obligation of indemnity shall include the payment by Contractor to 
City of any and all attorneys' fees, costs of defense and judgments rendered, if any, in favor of such person, 
firm or corporation. 

5. Contractor shall: 

(a) Provide to the City and to the citizens of the City the following public services during the applicable 
fmcal year: (Here list and describe all public services to be performed by Contractor) 

To provide social and recreational activities to individuals with special needs. 

6. Contractor shall be responsible for providing its eligible employees medical, dental, life 
and disability insurance as Contractor shall deem advisable. No agents, servants or employees of Contractor 
shall be provided nor be eligible for medical, dental, life or disability insurance under any policy or policies 
offered or provided by or in the name of City or any of its agencies. No employees of Contractor will be 
carried as an insured on any City insurance policy nor will any Contractor employee be eligible for retirement 
or other benefits offered by City to City employees. 

7. Contractor shall be responsible for all filing and accounting responsibilities for its 
corporation and its employees, including but not being limited to Social Security, all federal and state tax 
reporting, unemployment compensation and retirement benefits. 

8. Contractor will keep complete records of all sums of money received fiom City and 

boone
Text Box
XXXXX  $7,500.



complete records of all disbursements and purchases from such funds. Contractor will submit upon request, 
and in no event less than quarterly, itemized statements to the City listing all purchases and expenditures from 
the contract funds provided by City. 

9. Audit of Funds: Contractor agrees to employ accounting procedures which are appropriate 
to the type of operation conducted and which are customary to similar operations. All records pertaining to 
this agreement shall be maintained by Contractor for a period of three (3) years after termination of this 
contract. Contractor agrees to arrange and assume all financial obligations for required audits provided for in 
grant application or the grant itself, utilizing the normal City Auditing Procedures. 

Contractor agrees that upon request from City, Contractor will submit to and cooperate with 
periodic audits by the City Auditors or other City requested audit procedures. 

10. Contractor agrees that it will establish and maintain all accounting records, document all 
project costs and keep all invoices, checks and financial records separate, will make progress reports as 
required by the City or other applicable agency or governmental entity and otherwise do all things undertaken 
by City in connection with any such grant, payment or other contract by which such funds are supplied. 

1 1. Contractor will retain all books, records and other documents relative to this agreement, 
or any part thereof, for a period of three (3) years after project termination or close out. City or any other 
parties entitled to such records provided in any separate grant document or contract executed by and between 
the City and any other supplier of funds which are ultimately paid to or for the use and benefit of Contractor, 
shall have full access to and right to examine any of said materials at all reasonable times during said period. 

12. In the event that Contractor shall in any manner fail to comply with any provisions or 
requirement of any grant document or contract or provisions of this agreement, such failure will constitute a 
default and unless corrected by Contractor within thirty (30) days following receipt of written notice from City 
of such default, shall be deemed a breach of this agreement and City shall have a right to terminate this 
agreement by giving ten (10) days written notice of such termination. 

ATTEST: CITY OF Mountain Brook 

By: 
Witness Mayor 

ATTEST: t eptional Foundation) ContraF 4 1  



The Exceptional Foundation 

2012 Annual Summary Report 

TheEXCEPTIONAL 
Foundation. 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Organization Profile 

Mission and Vision statements .................................................. 3 
History ................................................................................ - 3  
Staff - 3  ................................................................................... 
Employment Flow Chart .......................................................... -4 

Program and Participant Profile 

Programs ............................................................................. -6 
Program Criteria .................................................................... -6 
Participants .......................................................................... -6  

Enrollment Trends 

School Year Daily Program ...................................................... 7 
Summer Daily Program ........................................................... 7 
Demographics ....................................................................... 8 

Financial Data 

Income and Expense Reports ................................................ 9 
Participant School Year Fee Schedule ..................................... 11 
Participant Summer Fee Schedule ........................................... 12 

Board of Directors Listing ........................................................... 13 



ORGANIZATION PROFILE 

Mission and Vision 

The mission of The Exceptional Foundation is to meet the social and recreational needs 
of the mentally andlor physically challenged population of the Greater Birmingham area. 

The vision of The Exceptional Foundation is to create a model organization to provide 
social growth and recreational opportunities for exceptional individuals. 

History 

Programming for special needs individuals began in 1987 with activities being offered 
through Homewood Parks & Recreation. In 1993, The Exceptional Foundation was 
established and took over the programming previously offered by Homewood Parks & 
Recreation. 

A building campaign began in the mid-1 990s raising $1 -5 million to build a 12,000 
square foot building adjacent to Homewood Park. The building was completed in 1999 
and includes a full gymnasium. The Exceptional Foundation owns the building free and 
clear of any debt. 

In 2005, the Board of Directors concluded more clients could be served with additional 
building space. Construction of an additional 12,000 square feet began in January 
2006. 

A second capital campaign for the construction began in early 2006 with pledges 
coming in over 5 years. The $2,000,000 additionlrenovation was completed in 
September 2006. Financing for the addition was paid in full to Regions Bank in 2008. 
All building fund pledges are maintained separately from operating and programming 
funds. 

The expansion and renovation allowed an increase in programs offered and number of 
clients served. 

Staff 

The Exceptional Foundation employs a full-time, salaried staff of eighteen and a part- 
time, hourly staff of five. The Exceptional Foundation relies on volunteers year-round. 
Additional part-time staffing is added during the summer program due to increased 
enrollment of participants (see flow chart, page 4). 



Employment Flow Chad: 

cia Klrk 

I 
ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF 

I 
PROGRAM STAFF 



PART-TIME SUMMER STAFF 

VOLUNTEERS 

xu1 
Hou 



PROGRAM AND PARTICIPANT PROFILE 

Programs 

The Exceptional Foundation provides year-round social and recreational programs for 
special needs individuals. During the school year, full-day, half-day and after-school 
programs are offered Monday through Thursday as well as evening and weekend 
activities. During the summer program, full-day and halfday programs are offered 
Monday through Friday. These programs include activities ranging from athletics such 
as bowling, softball, and basketball leagues, to social events such as art classes, 
dances, movie nights, karaoke, cooking and scouting. 

Program Criteria 

Participants in the program must have independent seH-help skills (i.e., toileting, feeding 
without assistance). All participants must be able to follow simple commands and 
participate in activities with minimal assistance from staff. Individuals enrolled in the 
program must have established social maturity to the degree they are able to interact 
appropriately with other program participants. The physical, cognitive and medical 
needs of participants must be such that they do not require one-on-one assistance or 
exceed the established participantlstaff ratio of 10:l. If a participant's needs change 
after enrollment and he or she no longer meets the program's criteria, The Exceptional 
Foundation will assist the family with potential alternatives. 

Participants 

The Exceptional Foundation serves individuals with special needs including Downs 
syndrome, autism, mentally delayed and other exceptionalities. The client population 
consists of individuals age 5 to 69, and approximately two-thirds of participants fall into 
the age range of 20 to 39 years (see chart, page 9). The mature age of the population 
is due mostly to the fact that school systems offer special education programs through 
age 21. Participants come from the Greater Birmingham metropolitan area. 
Transportation is provided by the public transit system, The Exceptional Foundation, Kid 
One transport and parentstguardians. A small percentage of participants live 
independently. 

The Exceptional Foundation served approximately 293 participant families in 2012 
through the summer andlor fall daily programs as well as extracurricular events, such as 
dances, sporting events and other activities outside the daily programs. Seventy-three 
percent of participants were identified as Caucasiantwhite; 25% African-Americanlblack; 
and 2% other. Sixty percent of participants were male, and 40% were female. The 
Exceptional Foundation's mailing list reaches over 500 families that include an 
individual who either currently participates or has previously participated in our 
programs (see charts, page 8). 



ENROLLMENT TRENDS 

School Year Daily Program Enrollment 

In 2012, 202 individuals were enrolled in daily and after-school programs, Monday 
through Thursday, during the school year with a daily average attendance of 101 
individuals. This represents a 27% increase in enrollment and 14% increase in 
attendance from the 201 1 school year. 

Number Enrolled 

Summer Dailv Program Enrollment 

In 2012, 201 individuals were enrolled in the summer program, Monday through Friday, 
with a daily average attendance of 100 individuals. This represents a 8% increase in 
enrollment and no increase in attendance from the 201 1 summer program. 

I 
- , - 

Number Enrolled 
140 

"Rm= 
lie( 

I bmge 
antWm2 

Daily Attendance 
Average 

. ,  -- 

148 161 

76 

201 185 

8 i 

. 

8% 

92 100 100 0% 



Demographics 

Age* 

Jan - b 

Race* 

Gender" 

+Age, Race and Gender figures are based on the total number of participants sewed in 2012 
through daily programs and extracurricular programs such as sports, dances, scouting, etc. 



FINANCIAL DATA 

Total 
Expense 

Net 
Income 

$638,450 

$1,133,189 

$747,500 

$281,959 

$822.467 

$32,584 

$934,526 

$32,873 

$1,043,607 

$59,071 

$1,129,576 

$454 

$1 ,I 34,509 

$12,582 



Budget v. Actual: Expense A c t u a l  

+Budget 

-- 
January - December 2012 

- 

' 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec 

Month 

Budget v. Actual: Revenue mBudget (2012) 

2011 Compared to 2012 Actua l  (2012) 

8 Last Year (2011) 

$450 7 

$400 

$350 

3 $300 
c 1 $250 

f - $200 
f 
1 $150 

$100 

$50 

$0 
Part. Fees Grants Gov't Donations Fundraisers 

Revenue Type 

, 



2012 FEE SCHEDULE 
School Year 

- 
9 
- 

Days per Week Monthly Per Hour Equivalent 

$1 35 $1.69 

Drop-in Fee: $40 fullday or $25 half-day 
(for those already enrolled in the program) 

Annual Registration Fee: $100 for year-round participants 

3 

2 

1 

-P-- 
- 
'1 

$1 25 

$1 10 

$85 

Per Hour Equivalent 

$2.29 

$2.78 

$3.54 

$5.42 

Days per Week lnthly 

$2.08 

$2.75 

$4.25 

4 

3 

2 

1 

$1 10 

$100 

$85 

$65 



2012 FEE SCHEDULE 
Summer Program 

-. 

Jr Equh 

br Week 

Drop-in Fee: $25 full-day or $1 5 half-day 
(for those already enrolled in the program) 

Registration Fee: $100 for summer-only participants 



2012 BOARD OF DIRECTORS 



RESOLUTION NO. 2013-172 

WHEREAS, the Birmingham Zoo ("Zoo") is a regional educational and entertainment 
attraction located adjacent to the municipal limits of the City of Mountain Brook ("City"); and 

WHEREAS, the Zoo serves the Mountain Brook community and its citizens through 
educational and informational programs, offering educational and family entertainment options, 
and through its cooperation in the City's recent flood control efforts; and 

WHEREAS, the City, as a community partner, supports the mission and purpose of the 
Zoo, and has provided financial commitments to the Zoo as a result of the Zoo's commitments 
and service to the City; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook wishes to extend those 
financial commitments to the Zoo for an additional year, all as set forth in the attached 
Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 
Mountain Brook that the City's financial commitments to the Zoo shall be and hereby is 
extended for an additional year as set forth in the attached Agreement. 

BE IT  FURTHER RESOLVED that the commitments between the parties expressed in 
the Agreement are deemed to be fair and adequate and serve a public purpose, and the Mayor is 
hereby authorized to execute the Agreement on behalf of the City. 

ADOPTED: This 12th day of November 2013. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 12th day of November 20 13. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk for the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby certify the 
above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Mountain Brook at its meeting held on November 12,2013, as same appears in the minutes of 
record of said meeting. 

Steven Boone, City Clerk 

Birmingham Zoo, Inc. Agreement for Services 



AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 

THIS AGREEMENT made this 12th day of November, 2 0  1 3  by and between the CITY OF 
MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA ("Mountain Brook"), a municipal corporation of the State of Alabama, 
and the BIRMINGHAM ZOO, INC. ("Zoo"), an Alabama non-profit corporation. 

WHEREAS, the City desires to increase the learning opportunities for students who attend 
Mountain Brook City Schools; and 

WHEREAS, the Zoo has developed certain programs, exhibits, and learning opportunities which, in 
the City's opinion, will be helpful and instructive to said students; and 

WHEREAS, such programs, exhibits, and learning laboratories are not available at Mountain Brook 
City Schools; and 

WHEREAS, the Zoo has agreed to work cooperatively with and assist the City with future public 
works projects; and 

WHEREAS, the City has agreed to pay the Zoo the sum of Seventy-Five Thousand Dollars 
($75,000.00), in consideration of the Zoo providing the City the services referred to in this Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, consideration of the premises and in consideration of the covenants and 
agreements contained herein, the Cityand the Zoo hereby agree as follows: 

1. The City shall pay to the Zoo Seventy-Five Thousand Dollars ($75,000.00) i n June  o f 
20 14.  

2. In consideration of the payment of the funds as provided herein, the Zoo shall provide at 
least the following services to the City ("Services';): 

a. The Zoo will provide guides and educational enrichment for all pre-scheduled field trips 
to the Zoo from Mountain Brook City Schools for one (1) year from the date of execution 
of this Agreement. In addition, all participants in pre-scheduled field trips from Mountain 
Brook City Schools to the Zoo will be eligible to participate in the Zoo's group discount 
admission program. 

b. The Zoo will provide to Mountain Brook City Schools a series of educational 
programming and classes targeting elementary, middle, and high school students free of 
charge for one (1) year from the date of execution of this Agreement. 

c. The Zoo will use its best efforts to work cooperatively with the City and provide 
assistance and support to the City with the City's future public works projects that are 
located near the Zoo. 

3. The Zoo agrees to continue to allow Mountain Brook to store the soil, dirt, earth and other 
excavated material that was removed as a result of the City's Flood Control Project ("Materials") where the 
Materials are currently stored. Mountain Brook will remove the Materials on or before September 30,2014. If 
Mountain Brook is unable to remove the Materials by said date, the parties agree to negotiate in good faith to 
extend the time period for storage of the Materials. 

Page 1 of 2 



4. The Zoo shall provide the personnel, supplies, equipment, and expertise necessary to fulfill 
its obligations to Mountain Brook City Schools under the terms of this Agreement. The Zoo is an 
independent contractor and none of its agents or employees shall be deemed to be under the control of the 
City nor shall any of the agents or employees, or other persons, firms, or corporations conducting business 
for or on behalf of the Zoo be deemed to be agents or employees of the City. 

5.  The Zoo shall indemnify the City and its agents, employees, and elected officials and hold 
them harmless from and against all actions, causes of action, claims, demands, damages, losses and expenses 
of any kind, including, but not limited to attorneys' fees and court costs, which may be asserted against, or 
suffered by the City or its agents and employees arising out of, or in connection with: (a) the performance or 
attempted performance by the Zoo or its agents or employees of the Zoo's obligations under this Agreement; 
and (b) any claim that the payments described herein were improperly paid by the City to the Zoo. 

6. The Zoo agrees to employ accounting procedures which are appropriate to the types of 
operation conducted by the Zoo and which are customary to similar operations. All financial records and 
other documents pertaining to this Agreement shall be maintained by the Zoo for a period of three (3) years 
after the expiration or termination of this Agreement. The City shall have full access to, and the right to 
examine any of such financial records and other documents at all reasonable times during the term of this 
Agreement and during said three-year period. The Zoo agrees that upon request from the City, the Zoo will 
submit to and cooperate with periodic audits by the Alabama Department of Public Examiners or other audit 
procedures requested by the City. 

7. If the Zoo fails to comply with the provisions of this Agreement, such failure shall 
constitute a default under this Agreement and, unless corrected by the Zoo within thirty (3 0) days following 
receipt of written notice for the City of such default, shall be deemed a breach of this Agreement and the 
City shall have a right to terminate this Agreement by giving The Zoo twelve (12) days prior written notice 
of such termination, and the City shall not be obligated to make any additional payments to the Zoo. Such 
termination of this Agreement by the City shall not relieve the Zoo of any of its obligations or liabilities to 
the City under the provisions of paragraph 4 of this Agreement, whether such obligations or liabilities occur 
or accrue before or after the termination of this Agreement. 

In witness whereof, the Birmingham Zoo, Inc. has caused this Agreement to be executed by its duly 
authorized Chief Executive Officer and the City of Mountain Brook has caused this Agreement to be 
executed by its duly authorized Mayor, all as of the - day of November, 20 13. 

CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK BIRMINGHAM Zoo, INC. 

Lawrence T. Oden William R. Foster 
Mayor, City of Mountain Brook Chief Executive Officer, Birmingham Zoo, Inc. 

Attest: Attest: 

Page 2 of 2 



RESOLUTION NO. 2013-173 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that 
the City Council hereby authorizes the appropriation of two thousand one hundred dollars 
, ($2,100) to the Jefferson-Blount-St. Clair Mental Health Authority in consideration of its 
commitment to provide mental health programs, activities, and services to residents of the City of 
Mountain Brook, Alabama for the fiscal year ending September 30,2014. 

ADOPTED: This 12th day of November 2013. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 12th day of November 20 13. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby 
certify the above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the 
City of Mountain Brook at its meeting held on November 12,2013, as same appears in the 
minutes of record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Jefferson-Blount-St. Clair Mental Health Authority 



JEFFERSON - BLOUNT - ST. CLAlR MENTAL HEALTH AUTHORITY 
940 Montclair Road Suite 200 Birmingham, Alabama 35213 www.jbsmha.com 

Telephone: (205) 5954555 Voice Mail: (205) 380-8460 Fax: (205) 592-3539 TDD: 1-800-5451833 ext. 516 
Executive Committee of the Board 

Marianne Sharbel 
Pmsident 

Lois Scott 
-ry 

Cathy lwln 
F h t  ViceRbsident 

Margie Sanford 
Second Wcs-Pmsident 

J. Marvin Thomton Cindy Smith 
Tmaurer As8t Secretary I Tmasumr 

Scotty Colson Ann Glass Lamar Kelly 
MemberAtlarge Member-AtIarge Member&-Lage 

October 1,201 3 

Mr. Steven Bwne 
City Clerk 
City of Mountain Brook 
56 Church Street 
Mountain Brook, AL 35213 

Dear Mr. Boone: 

This is to request the fiscal year 2013 - 2014 appropriation to the Jefferson - Blount - 
St. Clair Mental Health Authority. Please remit the funds at your earliest convenience. 

Thank you for your support. 

Sincerely, 

fionne Gallman 
Senior Accountant 

Board of Dlfoctora compowd of three appointees each b. 
Bessemer - Birmingham - Blwnt County - Faiffield - Gardendale - Homewood - Hueytown 

J e f f e m  County - Lseds - Mountain Bmok - Onmta  - Pel1 City - St. Chir County - T m n t  - Vestavia Hills 



Agenda item 9 - Lockerbie Lane annexation petition 

The annexation petition was not delivered prior to the release of the agenda packets. Attached is the 
financial analysis. If the petition is not received prior to the meeting, the matter will be continued 
indefinitely. 

boone
Text Box
X

boone
Text Box
10



201 3 
Ad Valorem Tax Revenue (est. 44.7 Mills) $23,852,157 
Enrollment 4,464 

Ad Valorem Tax : Student $5,343.23 

Students 
Households 

Students : Household 

Or 1 student for every 1.78 households 

Ad Valorem Tax : Student 
Students : Household 

School Tax Required to Meet Criteria $2,982.27 
BOE Millage Rate 44.7 

Assessed Property Value $66,717 
10% Assessment Factor 10.00% 

Required FMV of Home to Meet Criteria $667,170 



RealQuest.com 03 - Report Page 1 of 1 

Property Detail Report 
For Property Located At : 
106 LOCKERBIE LN, MOUNTAIN BRK, AL 35223-2902 RealQuest. Professional 

f \ 

Owner lnformation 
Owner Name: WIDEMAN GILDER L 8 FRANCES D 
Mailing Address: 106 LOCKERBIE LN, MOUNTAIN BRK AL 35223-2902 COO5 
Vesting Codes: I I 

9 For Sale 

Location lnformation 
Legal Description: 
County: 
Census Tract I Block: 
Township-Range-Sect: 
Legal Bookipage: 
Legal Lot: 
Legal Block: 
Market Area: 
Neighbor Code: 
Owner Transfer lnformation 
RecordinglSale Date: 
Sale Price: 
Document #: 

LOT 1 CLUSTER 1 LOCKERBIE PHASE IV 141167 AMENDED MAP 148120 
JEFFERSON, AL APN: 28-1 6-3-000-01 1.008-RR-00 
108.04 1 1 Alternate APN: 
28-00-16 Subdivision: LOCKERBIE P 04 AM 28-163 
148-20 Map Reference: 28-1 6-3 1 28-1 6-3 
I Tract #: 
I School District: 

School District Name: 
MuniclTownship: OUTSIDE MUNlC 

Deed Type: 
1st Mtg Document #: 

Last Market Sale lnformation 
RecordinglSale Date: 1 0913011985 
Sale Price: $69,000 
Sale Type: 
Document #: 
Deed Type: DEED (REG) 
Transfer Document #: 
New Construction: 
Title Company: 
Lender: 
Seller Name: 
Prior Sale lnformation 
Prior RedSale Date: I 
Prior Sale Price: 
Prior Doc Number: 
Prior Deed Type: 
Property Characteristics 
Gross Area: 8,335 Parking Type: 
Living Area: 7,392 Garage Area: 
Tot Adj Area: Garage Capacity: 
Above Grade: 6,070 Parking Spaces: 

Total Rooms: 
Bedrooms: 
Bath(F1H): 
Year Built I Eff: 
Fireplace: 
#of Stories: 
Other Improvements: 
Site lnformation 

Zoning: 
Lot Area: 
Land Use: 
Site Influence: 
Tax lnformation 
Total Value: 
Land Value: 
Improvement Value: 
Total Taxable Value: 

R-7 
13,113 
SFR 

Basement Area: 
Finish Bsmnt Area: 
Basement Type: 
Roof Type: 
Foundation: 
Roof Material: 

Acres: 
Lot WidthIDepth: 
ResIComm Units: 

Assessed Year: 
Improved %: 
Tax Year: 

1 st Mtg AmountlType: 
1st Mtg Int. Rateilype: 
1 st Mtg Document #: 
2nd Mtg AmountlType: 
2nd Mtg Int. Rateilype: 
Price Per SqFt: 
MultilSplit Sale: 

Prior Lender: 
Prior 1st Mtg AmtlType: I 
Prior 1st Mtg Rateilype: I 

Construction: 
Heat Type: FORCED AIR 
Exterior wall: WOODlBRlCK 

Porch Type: CONCRETEIMASONRY 
PORCH . - . . . . . 

2,265 Patio Type: 
1322 Pool: 
BASEMENT Air Cond: CENTRAL 
GABLE Style: 
CONT. FOOTING Quality: 
ASPHALT SHINGLE Condition: 

County Use: SINGLE FAMILY (I1 1) 
State Use: 
Water Type: PUBLIC 
Sewer Type: PUBLIC SERVICE 

2012 Property Tax: 
74% Tax Area: 0020000 

Tax Exemption: MISCISENIOR 



@
@

@
la 
O 

8 @
 ; 

F;F!+ 
i

Z
3

H
 

8
 

!I 
f 

K
N
:
 

2
, 

%
B

e
 

8
3

 
1 

'"I' 
-9 -2 8 

Z
iti8 

8 
f I 11 E! 5s 2 9 

3 3s
 3 J$

 rq 
a 

z
Q
 

9 I 
: Iilil J ii 8/ it 1 fp ~

~
:p

ii 
I 



ORDINANCE NO. 1897 

AN ORDINANCE TO PROVIDE FOR A STOP SIGN ON MONTEVALLO PARK 
PLACE AT ITS INTERSECTION WITH MONTEVALLO ROAD AND TO PROVIDE 

FOR PUNISHMENT THEREOF 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, as 
follows: 

Section 1. It shall be unlawful for the driver of any vehicle to cause or allow such 
vehicle traveling in a southerly direction on Montevallo Park Place to enter its intersection with 
Montevallo Road when there is standing at such intersection a "Stop" sign facing in the direction 
of such driver without having first brought such vehicle to a complete stop within ten (10) feet of 
said intersection. 

Section 2. Any person violating the provisions of this ordinance shall be punished 
by a fine not to exceed $500.00, or by imprisonment not to exceed 180 days, or both. 

Section 3. All ordinances or portions of ordinances conflicting with this ordinance 
are hereby repealed. 

Section 4. This ordinance shall become effective when published as required by 
law. 

ADOPTED: This 12th day of November, 20 13. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 12th day of November, 20 13. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby certify the 
above to be a true and correct copy of an ordinance adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Mountain Brook, Alabama, at its meeting held on this 12th day of November, 2013, as same 
appears in the minutes of record of said meeting, and published by posting copies thereof on 
November ,2013, at the following public places, which copies remained posted for five (5) 
days as required by law. 

City Hall, 56 Church Street Overton Park, 3020 Overton Road 
Gilchrist Pharmacy, 2850 Cahaba Road The Invitation Place, 3 150 Overton Road 

City Clerk 



Mountain Brook, Alabama Zoning 

Page 1 of 1 

Ofiicial Site of Mountain Brook Mountain Brook Municipal Code Help 



Pr
op

er
tie

s 
E

lig
ib

le
 f

or
 R

ez
on

in
g 

to
 V

ST
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

Le
ge

nd
 

Lo
ck

er
bi

e 
Sp

lit
 Z

on
in

g 

Lo
ck

er
bi

e-
10

-fo
ot

-Z
on

in
g 

To
ta

l-P
ro

pJ
un

e2
00

6 
Zo

ni
ng

 C
lu

st
er

ed
 R

es
id

en
tia

l 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

ho
pp

in
g 

E
st

at
e 

R
es

id
en

ce
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

Lo
ca

l B
us

in
es

s 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

M
X

D
 

O
ffi

ce
 P

ar
k 

D
is

tr
ic

t 

P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l D
is

tr
ic

t 

P
U

D
 

[
 

R
es

id
en

ce
 A

 D
is

tr
ic

t 

R
es

id
en

ce
 B

 D
is

tr
ic

t 

R
es

id
en

ce
 C

 D
is

tr
ic

t 

R
es

id
en

ce
 D

 D
is

tr
ic

t 

R
es

id
en

ce
 E

 D
is

tr
ic

t 

[e
q
 R

es
id

en
ce

 F
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

R
ec

re
at

io
n 

D
is

tr
ic

t 

R
ID

 

R
ec

-2
 

C
H

U
R

C
H

 S
T 



ORDINANCE NO. 1899 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTIONS 129-551,129-552,129-553 AND 129-416 OF THE 
CITY CODE ALL INVOLVING THE ADDITION OF THE VINE STREET TRANSITIONAL 

DISTRICT ZONING CLASSIFICATION TO THE ZONING CODE 
OF THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK 

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, to 
amend certain sections of the City's zoning code; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook 
the following: 

SECTION 1. Chapter 129 of the City Code is amended to include the following new 
sections: 

"ARTICLE - VINE STREET TRANSITIONAL (VST) DISTRICT 

Sec. 129-- - Intent and Purpose. 

The Vine Street Transitional (VST) District is intended to provide compact, appropriate-scaled 
buildings along the west side of Vine Street in Crestline Village for detached single family, 
attached single family (townhouse dwelling), professional and business offices and mixed use 
(residential above office). The district may be applied to sites which can establish an effective 
transition from the Local Business District in Crestline Village to adjacent residential 
neighborhoods and the Crestline Elementary School site. The district is intended to provide a 
high degree of pedestrian connectivity within Crestline Village to increase accessibility and 
patronage of businesses, and to enhance the pedestrian character of Crestline Village. 

The Vine Street Transitional (VST) District is also intended to emphasize lot frontages, and the 
orientation, location, and faqade design of the buildings, as a key determinant of development that 
is transitionally compatible with the neighboring Local Business, Residence-A, Residence-C and 
Recreation Districts, and a key element in shaping the transitional character and streetscape of 
Vine Street in Crestline Village. 

The VST District may be applied to those properties abutting the west side of Vine Street in 
Crestline Village, as that Village is defined by reference to the Village Boundary Line for 
Crestline Village in Section 129-557 of the City Code. 

Sec. 129-- - Permitted uses. 

The uses permitted in the Vine Street Transitional District shall be as follows: 

(a) Detached single family dwellings; 

(b) Attached single family dwellings (townhouse dwelling units); 

(c) Professional offices; 

(d) Business offices; 



(e) Mixed use, with residential uses above office uses; 

( f )  The uses in any of the above permitted uses may be condominium units; 

(g) Accessory structures and accessory buildings customarily incidental to the above 
permitted uses. 

Sec. 129--. -- Area and Dimensional Requirements. 

(a) Minimum dimensions of parcel. 

(1) Minimum area of parcel ... 7,500 square feet 

(2) Minimum width of parcel at all points between the street line and the front setback line ... 
50 feet 

(3) Minimum number of feet of the parcel which must abut a street ... 50 feet 

(b) Minimum yards and building setbacks. 

(1) Minimum front (primary) yard setback.. . 5 feet 

(2) Minimum front (secondary) yard setback.. . 8 feet 

(3) Minimum rear yard setback ..... 5 feet 

(4) Minimum side yard setback ..... 

0 feet if party wall; 

5 feet for end units, or a detached single family dwelling. 

(5) An enhanced primary entrance feature may extend up to 5 feet beyond the permitted and 
constructed front building line of the building provided that: 

a. It occupies no more that 30% of the front fagade (primary or secondary) of the 
lot; 

b. It remains unenclosed, with no fixed windows or screens; 
c. Any roof structure on or associated with the feature is up to one and one-half 

stories; 
d. It is designed as an extension of the primary building using the same foundation, 

building materials, architectural styles and ornamentation as the primary 
building. 

The front lot line shall be deemed to be the edge of the adjacent public right-of-way, or the edge 
of the adjacent sidewalk which is nearest the building, whichever is farther from the centerline of 
the such right-of-way. 

(c) Building limitations. 

(1) Maximum building area ... 
For detached single family dwellings: 60% of the total area of the parcel, reduced by 
additional Open Space required by Section 129-554 for residential uses. 



For attached single family dwellings (townhouse dwellings): 80% of the total area of the 
parcel, reduced by additional Open Space required by Section 129-554 for residential 
uses. 

For office and mixed use: 80% of the total area of the parcel, reduced by additional Open 
Space required by Section 129-554 for residential uses. 

(2) Maximum building height ... 36 feet 

At any and all points, the maximum external building height shall be measured from the 
existing grade of the sidewalk at the lot frontage, or the proposed grade at the front 
building line, whichever is lower. 

(3) Maximum number of stories ... none 

(4) Maximum allowable density ... One dwelling unit per 2,500 square feet of land 
contained in the parcel 

(5) All rooftop equipment shall fall within the permissible roof heights, be located away from 
slopes or areas exposed to the public street, and otherwise be screened from view from 
adjacent public streets or be incorporated into the skin of the building or internal to the 
block. 

Sec. 129-- - Off-Street Parking. 

(1) Location of parking must be in accordance with Section 129-555 of the Village Overlay 
Standards. 

(2) Minimum off-street parking per dwelling unit: Two spaces. 

(3) Visitor and accessory parking for 2 or more attached single family dwellings; shall be 
one-half parking space per unit; 

(4) Surface parking, interior parking or parking structures for the dwelling units and for 
visitor or accessory parking shall meet the parking design and vehicle access limitations 
of Section 129-555 of the Village Overlay Standards. 

Sec. 129--. - Additional requirements. 

(a) Compliance with Village Overlay Standards. All uses allowed in the VST District are 
excluded from the building type specifications in Section 129-553 of the Village Overlay 
Standards, but must otherwise conform to the remainder of the Village Overlay Standards in its 
entirety. 

(b) Exterior lighting. If artificial illumination is provided for a parking area, it shall be arranged 
so as to shine and reflect away from any adjacent residential areas and away from any streets 
adjacent to or near the parcel. No lighting fixtures used for any parking area shall be elevated 
more than 14 feet above the ground, except for a light which is installed on the ceiling of a porch 
of a dwelling unit and is designed to illuminate only such porch. Each lighting fixture shall be 
designed and installed so as to direct its beam of light below the horizontal plane of such lighting 
fixture." 

Sec. 129--. - Master Development Plan. 



Each application for Vine Street Transitional Zoning shall be accompanied by a Master 
Development Plan. The Master Development Plan shall contain the following information, in 
addition to the general requirements for a zoning amendment found in Article XXV of the City's 
Zoning Ordinance: 

A. Written documentation, including: 

(a) A legal description and confirmation of current zoning of the subject property. 

(b) The names and addresses of the applicant and owner of the property. 

1. If a corporation, the principal officers and members of the Board of Directors 
must be provided. 

ii. If a partnership or limited liability company, general and managing partners must 
be provided. 

(a) A statement of development objectives to be achieved through the particular approach 
proposed by the applicant, including a detailed description of the character of the 
proposed development and its relationship to surrounding areas. 

(b) The substance of covenants, easements, and other restrictions that will be imposed on the 
use of the subject property, structures, and other improvements. 

(c) A statement describing how the proposed development will meet the objectives of the 
district and how it will minimize the impact of increased densities, both within the zone 
and for surrounding properties, and otherwise offset increased density. 

(d) A written description of all efforts made to contact and discuss with neighboring 
residential property owners the proposed development, along with a general statement of 
neighborhood concerns and proposed actions to address said concerns. 

B. A site plan, which shall include the following items, either on the site plan or on an 
accompanying document. 

(a) North arrow, scale, size, boundary lines, and dimensions of the subject property; 

(b) Means of access to and from the development, including a delineation as to how said 
access is to be provided (e.g., identification of easements, etc.); 

(c) The areas to be devoted to each use if multiple uses are proposed; 

(d) The location, size, and character of any common spaces and improvements identifying 
the nature and type of material for such improvements, if applicable; 

(e) Streets, driveways, and sidewalks; 

(f) A grading plan identifying existing and proposed contours; 

(g) A general landscape and buffer plan identifying the nature and type of materials proposed 
to be utilized; 



(h) An exterior lighting plan; 

(0) 

Sec. 

a. 

A preliminary drainage plan that indicates the location of proposed detention areas; 

Location and identification of all utilities, easements, and fire hydrants; 

General location of structures and the minimum floor area, height, and number of floors 
to be proposed in each dwelling; 

A rendering generally describing the conceptual character of the development and of 
individusl structures, including examples of architectural styles and types of building 
materials to be utilized; 

Building setbacks from the boundaries of all property lines, proposed lot lines, public and 
private streets, and other buildings; 

The number, location, and size of all parking spaces and the locations thereof relative to 
the streets and driveways that provide access to and from the development; and 

Description of all paving materials for private improvements. 

129--. - Review and approval process. 

Application process and preliminary conference. 

1. Except as provided to the contrary in this ordinance, applications for zoning or 
rezoning property to the Vine Street Transitional (VST) classification shall 
I'ollow the application procedures established for all zoning or rezoning 
applications. 

. . 
11. At least thirty (30) days prior to the first public meeting at which the proposed 

rezoning is to be considered, the applicant shall meet with the City's zoning 
officer to review the application and Master Development Plan and to discuss 
any revisions thereto that would, in the view of the zoning officer, bring the plan 
into conformity with applicable city codes and ordinances, including the zoning 
ordinance, and which would better meet the objectives of this ordinance. 

iii. Following the aforementioned meeting and any revision to the plan agreed to as a 
result thereof, the application shall be set for consideration by the Planning 
Commission at the earliest practicable date, taking into account any notice and 
hearing requirements that must be met in connection therewith. 

Review by Planning Commission. The approval process shall comply both with 
procedures set forth in Article XXV of this chapter for a zoning amendment and any 
additional procedure required by this Article. After submission of a Master Development 
Plan by the applicant, the proposed Vine Street Transitional (VST) Zoning proposal shall 
be placed on an agenda of the Planning Commission for consideration. The Planning 
Commission shall hold a public hearing on the Vine Street Transitional Application and 
make a recommendation to the City Council thereupon in accordance with Article XXV, 
Section 19-25-1, of the Mountain Brook City Code. The Commission may consider all 
factors allowed by law in making its recommendation and should specifically consider 



the compatibility of the project with surrounding property, the impact of the project on 
surrounding uses, the conformity of the project with the objectives of the City's Master 
Plan, and the purposes of the Vine Street Transitional District. 

c. Review by andFina1 Action by the City Council. Following action on the rezoning 
application by the Planning Commission, the Commission shall forward its 
recommendation and any accompanying report on the application to the City Council, 
along with the proposed Master Development Plan and any related documents. After 
providing notice of the proposed rezoning and a public hearing thereupon in the manner 
provided by the City Code and by applicable law, the City Council may approve the 
rezoning request (with accompanying master plan) as submitted, approve the rezoning 
request conditionally, amend and approve the rezoning request, or deny the rezoning 
request. In reviewing and acting on the rezoning request, the City Council may consider 
any factor permitted by law, and specifically the compatibility of the project with 
surrounding property, the impact of the project on surrounding uses, the conformity of 
the project with the City's master plan, and the purposes of the Vine Street Transitional 
District. In approving any application for Vine Street Transitional Zoning, the City 
Council may impose such terms, conditions, restrictions, or limitations as it deems 
reasonable, appropriate, and necessary to meet the objectives of this ordinance or to 
protect and promote the health, safety, and welfare of the City of Mountain Brook. 

d. Binding Effect of Approved Master Development Plan. The Master Development Plan 
that is required to be submitted with an application for zoning or rezoning shall be 
deemed an integral and essential element of any zoning or rezoning approved hereunder; 
and the plan, if and as modified and approved by the City Council, shall be binding on 
the property and any subsequent development thereof unless and until the property is 
subsequently rezoned or modified in the manner prescribed by law; provided, however, 
that in order to accommodate such minor adjustments to the approved Master 
Development Plan as may be required by engineering or other circumstances unforeseen 
at the time of its approval by the City Council, the City's zoning officer is authorized to 
approve alterations to the Master Development Plan which, in his opinion, are incidental 
or minor in scope, and which maintain the intent and character of the approved Master 
Development Plan; further provided that, as an overlay district, approval of a Vine Street 
Transitional Zoning classification shall not preclude use or development of property that 
is permitted under its underlying zoning classification. 

SECTION 2. Section 129-55 l(b) of the City Code is hereby amended as follows: 

"(b) General Applicability. The Village Overlay Standards supplement the standards of 
the current Base Zoning District of each parcel to the extent that the standards herein do 
not conflict with the standards in the base zoning district. To the extent that the standards 
set forth in the Base Zoning District conflict or are inconsistent with the standards herein, 
the standards set forth in this Article shall apply; all uses allowed on lots in the Base 
Zoning District "Vine Street Transitional NST) District?' shall be exem~t from the 
Building: Type Specifications of the Village Overlav Standards. The standards in this 
section are applicable to the following Base Zoning Districts which exist in the Villages: 

(1) Local Business; 

(2) Professional; 



(3) Mixed Use; 

(4) Vine Street Transitional; and 

(5) Any residential zoning districts that exist in the 
Village boundaries." 

SECTION 3. Section 129-551(c) of the City Code is hereby amended as follows: 

"(c) SpeciJic Applicability. The Village Overlay Standards address building types, 
building heights, building form and orientation (relationship to streets and open spaces), 
and are specifically applicable to the following areas: 

(1) Crestline Village (except for lots zoned Vine Street Transitional NST) 
District), as indicated on the attached Building and Development Regulating Plan 
for Crestline Village; 

(2) English Village, as indicated on the attached Building and Development 
Regulating Plan for English Village; 

(3) Mountain Brook Village, as indicated on the attached Building and 
Development Regulating Plan for Mountain Brook Village; 

(4) Overton Village, as indicated on the attached Building and Development 
Regulating Plan for Overton Village. 

The boundaries officially approved for the Village Overlay Standards, as specified above, 
are adopted herein by reference, and shall become a part of OEcial Zoning Map of 
Mountain Brook as defined in Section 129-17 of the Zoning Ordinance." 

SECTION 4. ~ection 129-55 1 (d) of the City Code is hereby amended as follows: 

"(d) Building and Development Regulating Plans. The Building and Development 
Regulating Plans for Crestline Village [exceut for lots zoned Vine Street Transitional 
[VST) District), English Village, Mountain Brook Village and Overton Village are 
attached hereto, included within, and made a part of these Village Overlay Standards, and 
apply in all areas identified thereupon." 

SECTION 5. Section 129-552 of the City Code is hereby amended as follows: 

d Vine Street Transitional District Uses. There is no specified building twe  for 
uses on lots zoned Vine Street Transitional District in the Village Overlay area: proposed 
building plans are subiect to review by the Planning Commission and Village Design 
Review Committee for com~liance with the VST District regulations. the Village Master 
Plan. the Design Guidelines and intent and purposes of the base zoning district and this 
Article." 

SECTION 6. Section 129-553(b) of the City Code is hereby amended as follows: 

"(b) Standards. Permitted building types shall meet the following building standards, 
which standards shall control over any conflicting standard of the Base Zoning District 



(with the excevtion of anv permitted use on lots zoned Vine Street Transitional (VST) 
District):" 

SECTION 7. Section 129-553 of the City Code is hereby amendedlcorrected as follows: 

'The reference to "Section 19-3 1-4" (See "Maximum % of Lot Coverage 
(building footprint)-CD129:89) is hereby changed to "Section 129-554". 
The reference to "Section 19-3 1-5(d) (See Site Access - Vehicles-CD129:89) is 
hereby changed to "Section 129-555(dYY. 
The reference to "Section 19-3 1-5" (See Legend [I]-CD 129:9 1) is hereby 
changed to "Section 129-555". 
The reference to "Section 19-3 1-4" (See "Maximum % of Lot Coverage 
(building footprint)-CD 129:92) is hereby changed to "Section 129-554". 
The reference to "Section 19-3 1-5(d) (See Site Access -Vehicles-CD129:92) is 
hereby changed to "Section 129-555(d)". 
The reference to "Section 19-3 1-5" (See Legend [I]-CD129:94) is hereby 
changed to "Section 129-555". 
The reference to "Section 19-3 1-4" (See "Maximum % of Lot Coverage 
(building footprint)-CD129:95) is hereby changed to "Section 129-554". 
The reference to "Section 19-3 1-5(d) (See Site Access - Vehicles-CD129:95) is 
hereby changed to "Section 129-555(dTy. 
The reference to "Section 19-3 1-5" (See Legend [I]-CD129:97) is hereby 
changed to "Section 129-555". 
The reference to "Section 19-3 1-4" (See "Maximum % of Lot Coverage 
(building footprint)-CD 129:98) is hereby changed to "Section 129-554". 
The reference to "Section 19-3 1-5(d) (See Site Access - Vehicles-CD129:98) is 
hereby changed to "Section 129-555(d)". 
The reference to "Section 19-3 1-5" (See Legend [I]-CD129: 100) is hereby 
changed to "Section 129-555". 

SECTION 8. Section 129-4 16(a) of the City Code is repealed and replaced with the following: 

"Sec. 129-416. Advisory design review required in the Villages of Mountain Brook. 

The Villages of Mountain Brook, for purposes of this section, are composed of those properties located 
within the "Village Boundary Line" shown on the Village Maps found in Section 129-557 of the City 
C 0 d e . C  

. . 

ADOPTED: This 12th day of November, 20 13. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 12th day of November, 201 3. 

Mayor 



CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby certify the above to 
be a true and correct copy of an ordinance adopted by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, 
Alabama, at its meeting held on this 12th day of November, 2013, as same appears in the minutes of 
record of said meeting, and published by posting copies thereof on November ,2013, at the 
following public places, which copies remained posted for five (5) days as required by law. 

City Hall, 56 Church Street Overton Park, 3020 Overton Road 
Gilchrist Pharmacy, 2850 Cahaba Road The Invitation Place, 3 150 Overton Road 

City Clerk 


	2013-Nov-12 Formal Agenda
	1.  Minutes
	2.  Cahaba Village surface parking
	3.  Surplus equipment
	4.  Delicios ABC license
	5.  Police uniform bid
	6.  License hearing
	7.a. Alabama Symphony
	7.b. Botanical Gardens
	7.c. Museum of Art
	7.d. Veterans' Memorial Foundation
	7.e. Historical Commission
	7.f. Exceptional Foundation
	7.g. Zoo
	8.  Jefferson-Blount-St. Clari Mental Health Authority
	9.  Stop sign Montevallo Park Lane
	10.  Lockerbie Lane annexation
	11.  Vine Street Transitional District



